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I.
Summary
1.
Type of Solicitation:



Request for Offer (RFO)

2.
Issuing Office:




Comptroller of Public Accounts








Purchasing Section








Room G-2, Attn: RFO 304-08-0441JS







111 E. 17th Street









Austin, Texas 78774






OR
Comptroller of Public Accounts







Purchasing Section







Attn: RFO 304- 08-0441JS
P O Box 12050







Austin, Texas 78711-2050

3.
Responses Requested From:
Qualified Vendors
4.
Additional Requirements/Qualifications:
N/A
5.
Type:





Treasury Solution
6.
Responses to RFO:



Sealed Competitive Offers

7.
Deadline for Offers:



In Issuing Office No Later Than:








April 18, 2008; 2:00 p.m., CZT
8.
Contract, if any, resulting from RFO:

Purchase Order, PO, or Contract; Will Incorporate RFO

9. Initial PO Term.  



Date of award through August 31, 2009 
10. CPA Optional Terms. 


September 1, 2009 through August 31, 2010 and






September 1, 2010 through August 31, 2011  
11. CPA Contact Person for this RFO:

John Stewart








Fax Number: 512 475-0223;








Email: john.stewart@cpa.state.tx.us

12. Faxed Offers




Not Acceptable

13. Pre-Offer Conference:


N/A

14. Pre-Offer Inspection:



N/A
15. Questions and Answers:
Questions regarding this RFO shall be in writing and shall be submitted to the Comptroller of Public Account’s (CPA) Contact Person specified above in Part 11, no later than March 28, 2008; 2:00 p.m., CZT. Telephone inquiries will not be accepted. Questions may be submitted by fax or email. CPA intends to post answers to these questions on the Electronic State Business Daily on or before April 4, 2008. Respondents are solely responsible for verifying CPA’s timely receipt of their questions by the deadline specified above.

Respondents are strongly encouraged to submit written questions during the official question and answer period, for example, regarding any term or condition of this RFO and whether or not CPA may negotiate that provision under this particular RFO.

16. Letters of Intent to Submit an Offer:

N/A

17. Top Respondent Presentations:
CPA may request that Top Scoring Respondents present an overview of the Treasury Solution and a demonstration of the software proposed in their Offers. Such Respondents will be notified on or about April 30, 2008. The presentations may be performed at CPA offices located at LBJ Building, 111 E. 17th Street, Austin, Texas on May 5 – May 7, 2008.  Times to be arranged. 

18. Top Respondent Customer Site Visits:
CPA may request that Top Scoring Respondents arrange for CPA staff to visit to Respondent’s customer site which uses the proposed solution.  If CPA requests a customer site visit, Top Scoring Respondents will be notified on or about May 8, 2008.  CPA anticipates that site visits, if requested, would occur  May 9, 2008 – May 14, 2008. Times to be arranged. 

19. Evaluation of Offers under Best Value Standard (Section 2157.003, Texas Government Code):
Criteria






           Weight

Cost
  



40%

Proposed Services, including initial project plans, Project Management 

and Methodologies

 


30%

Respondent’s Past Performance and Experience



10%

Qualifications and Experience of Respondent’s Proposed Personnel
10%
Respondent’s Financial Stability                                                                        5%
Capability of Proposed Treasury Solution to Integrate with an 

Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) product        


  5%

Total:







100%

The factors listed in Sections 2155.074, 2155.144, 2156.007, and 2157.003, Texas Government Code shall also be considered in making an award when specified.

20. 
Anticipated Schedule of Events:
CPA currently anticipates that the selection of Successful Respondent and award of any Purchase Order resulting from this RFO will proceed according to the following schedule:

	March 20, 2008
	Issuance of RFO

	March 28, 2008
	Deadline for Submission of Questions (2:00 p.m., CZT)

	April 4, 2008
	Release of Official Responses to Questions (or as soon thereafter as practical)

	April 18, 2008
	Deadline for Submission of Offers (2:00 p.m. CZT)

(Late Offers will not be considered)

	April 30, 2008
	Notification and Scheduling of Top Scoring Respondents’ Presentations 

	May 5, 2008 – May 7, 2008 
	Presentations from Top Respondents at CPA offices (Times to be arranged)

	May 8, 2008
	Notification and Scheduling of Top Respondents’ customer site visits 

	May 9, 2008 – May 14, 2008 
	Visits to Top Scoring Respondents’ customer sites (Times to be arranged)

	May 23, 2008
	Anticipated Contract Award

	May 27, 2008
	Project Kickoff 


CPA reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to change the above dates.  Notices of changes to items directly impacting the original RFO or Offer process will be posted on the Electronic State Business Daily (ESBD) located at: http://esbd.cpa.state.tx.us.  Respondents should check the ESBD frequently for updates.  Respondents are solely responsible for verifying CPA’s receipt of their questions, if applicable, and Offers by the deadlines specified above. 

21. Building Security: Due to building access procedures at CPA’s LBJ State Office Building location, all Respondents are encouraged to allow additional time to obtain a visitor’s pass in order to deliver their Offers to the Issuing Office. CPA recommends arrival at the building a minimum of forty-five minutes prior to the deadline for receipt of Offers in the Issuing Office; however, regardless of arrival time, Respondents are solely responsible for ensuring delivery of Offers to and receipt of Offers in the Issuing Office by the deadline in order to be considered.

22. 
A response to this RFO is an offer to contract based upon the terms, conditions, and specifications contained herein (Offer). Offers do not become contracts until they are accepted through a purchase order.  Any contract resulting from this RFO shall be governed, construed, and interpreted under the laws of the State of Texas. Any legal actions shall be filed in Travis County, Texas.

II.
Statement of Work

A. 
Introduction and Business Need
The Comptroller of Public Accounts (CPA), an agency of the State of Texas, issues this Request For Offer (RFO) to solicit pricing from qualified vendors for a Treasury Solution as described in this Section and in this RFO.  CPA’s objective is to obtain a Treasury Solution that represents the best value for CPA and the State of Texas according to the terms and conditions listed in this RFO.  

CPA seeks to replace its Treasury Operations’ aging systems hardware and software.  In addition, CPA seeks to re-engineer its business processes to gain efficiencies, such as reducing or eliminating time-consuming manual processes, manual reconciliation, duplicate data entry, and paper processing. 

The Treasury Solution shall include all software and hardware implementation and related services. The Treasury Solution shall support all treasury operations, including but not limited to, banking and electronic processing services, treasury accounting, cash and securities management, and reporting functions.  The Treasury Solution shall use data from many sources, including CPA, other state agencies, Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company (TTSTC), the Federal Reserve, institutions of higher education, and other entities and financial institutions. 
The Treasury Solution shall also interface with existing legacy systems and integrate with CPA’s future architecture and environment. CPA has recently implemented a new business intelligence solution using Business Objects software. The Treasury Solution shall integrate with and leverage both the Business Objects software and the Business Intelligence data warehouse for reporting and inquiry.  CPA’s future environment will be based on a Service-Oriented Architecture (SOA); therefore, the Treasury Solution shall include technology to support this architecture (e.g., an Enterprise Service Bus (ESB)). Moreover, CPA is in the initial stages of developing Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) requirements and a statewide strategic direction in accordance with House Bill 3106, 80th Legislature, Regular Session. CPA desires that the Treasury Solution be a subset of, or easily integrated into, a statewide ERP solution. Since the Treasury Solution will be a phased implementation, CPA requires Successful Respondent to manage and remedy all integration and interfacing issues that may arise throughout the life cycle of the project. CPA does not seek a Treasury Solution which utilizes an outsourced hosting service. 
CPA solicits offers to procure a Treasury Solution for a firm fixed price. CPA requires line-item pricing to allow CPA to select a partial solution if not all of the Treasury Solution components are implemented. CPA reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to purchase hardware and operating system software outside of this RFO.

Please refer to Appendix A for definitions of terms used in this RFO.

CPA reserves the right not to award a Purchase Order (PO) for the performance of all or part of the requirements of this RFO.  This RFO is not exclusive and CPA reserves the right to issue additional solicitations regarding the services described in this RFO or similar services at any time.  All Respondents are encouraged to offer their best pricing at all times.  

All costs associated with the Treasury Solution, as defined by this RFO, shall be included in Respondent’s Offer.  Offers that do not meet all of the requirements or contain all of the required documentation specified in this RFO will be rejected as non-responsive.  

B.
Agency and Treasury Operations Overview
B.1. 
Agency Overview 
As Texas’ chief financial officer, the Comptroller’s duties may be broadly grouped into five categories:

· Chief tax collector

· Chief accountant

· Chief revenue estimator

· Chief treasurer

· Chief purchaser

CPA serves every citizen in the state in its role as steward of the state’s fiscal affairs.  State agencies depend on CPA to pay their bills and issue paychecks to state employees. Legislators rely on CPA to report the state’s financial condition, to collect the state’s revenue and to estimate revenue. Taxpayers rely on CPA to provide assistance regarding compliance with tax laws. CPA strives to provide transparency in government to the citizens of Texas, economic data to businesses, and operational intelligence to state employees.

In Fiscal Year 2007, CPA collected over $162 billion dollars in taxes and fees owed to the Texas state government. As chief treasurer, CPA carries out the state’s treasury operations under the authority found in Chapter 404, Texas Government Code. CPA’s Treasury Operations Division manages and reconciles the state’s bank accounts, transactions, and deposits for collected fees and taxes. Average daily deposits for Fiscal Year 2007 were $411 million. The largest daily deposit exceeded $5.2 billion when the Tax and Revenue Anticipation Note (TRAN) was funded.

B.2. 
Treasury Operations Division Overview 

CPA’s Treasury Operations Division (Treasury Operations) is staffed by approximately sixty (60) individuals from 7 a.m. to 7 p.m. each banking business day; however, transactions are processed 24x7/365.  Treasury Operations is comprised of three sections fulfilling the following core functions:

1. 
Banking & Electronic Processing serves as the primary bank operations area for the Texas state government. It performs the following functions:

· Processes checks for all state agencies. 
· Deposits checks in banks.

· Receives and originates Automated Clearing House (ACH) debits and credits.
· Receives and pays all warrants.

· Performs all warrant research. 
· Offers a variety of lockbox services to numerous state agencies.
2.
Treasury Accounting recognizes and reconciles the state’s cash assets. It performs the following functions:

· Accounts for cash transactions posting to all agency funds within the Uniform Statewide Accounting System (USAS).

· Accounts for all moneys deposited to, or investments placed in, approved financial institutions (State Depositories). 
· Collects interest due on the state’s pooled investments.
· Determines and allocates interest to agency funds, as directed by statute.
3. 
Cash & Securities Management consists of four areas: Funds Transfer, Securities Management, Cash Flow              Forecasting, and Cash Management. It performs the following functions:

· Manages and secures deposits in CPA accounts.

· Monitors depository relationships.

· Safe-keeps securities and assets in the vault.

· Registers municipal bonds.

· Provides all state agencies with cash management product development and consulting assistance.

· Forecasts revenues, expenditures and fund balances for investment, and Tax and Revenue Anticipation Note (TRAN) issuance purposes.
Treasury Operations performs services which are similar to those performed by commercial banks and other state treasuries.  For instance, Treasury Operations performs services which are similar to a commercial bank in that it:

· Provides teller services.
· Processes checks and warrants.
· Adheres to Check 21 Method of Processing.
· Performs lockbox services.
· Performs cash management activities.
· Processes credit card receipts.
· Originates ACH.
· Processes return checks and electronic transactions.
· Performs correspondent bank activity.
· Follows most U.S. Federal Reserve Regulation CC compliance.
· Adheres to National Automated Clearing House Association (NACHA) standards.
· Provides research for customer and state agency requests.
· Performs custody and trust services.
· Manages collateral.
Although Treasury Operations performs services which are similar to banks and other state treasuries, the combination of services provided to state agencies for banking, treasury management, and government make its business processes and systems unique.  Treasury Operations is also different from other state treasuries in terms of the wide range of complex functions, high-dollar values and volume of transactions.  Treasury Operations business processing is unique in that it:
· Provides banking services for state agencies that do not have in-house expertise or resources. Treasury Operations customizes deposit input and output information based upon state agencies’ business needs. 

· Processes extremely high transaction volumes and dollar values during a single business day, similar to one of the top ten banks in the State of Texas.  It shall identify and rectify all financial transaction exceptions efficiently and accurately within that day, with zero tolerance.

· Performs consolidated accounting functions for each of  the following levels:
· Bank accounting – tracks, reconciles and collateralizes all state-owned bank accounts.
· Fund accounting (General Ledger) – tracks and reconciles all state agency transactions impacting available funds of the state.
· Statewide accounting – tracks and reconciles all cash balances to the Uniform Statewide Accounting System (USAS).
· Statewide agency assistance – assists agencies in identifying and resolving posting discrepancies.
· Positions funds throughout the day, using inputs from different systems within and outside Treasury Operations, to maximize the amount invested at the earliest point in time within a day to increase investment earnings. Major clearing bank accounts and the CPA’s Federal Reserve account activity are monitored continuously throughout the business day.

· Is mandated to conform to state statutory requirements in addition to banking regulations.

· Is part of CPA that is visible and active with the public as the trusted steward of the state’s finances and fiscal duties.
· Uses up-to-date industry standards and best practices that are required of a corporate treasurer.

· Does not round or allow for “write-off” discrepancies.
· Provides state agencies with immediate credit for their deposits.

· Is mandated to work with over 400 financial institutions on a daily basis.

Treasury Operations systems utilize customized processing systems that have been developed to provide unique, statutorily-mandated processing and posting of financial transactions on behalf of state agencies.  These systems are flexible and are routinely modified based upon changing needs.  There are multiple methods to automatically identify and process financial transactions received through various systems, in order to apply funds at the detailed agency-specific level (e.g., Automated Clearing House (ACH), TexasOnline, Internal System H, Lockbox).  
 XE "Definitions" C.
Current and Future Production Environments

C.1. 
Current Production Environments 

C.1.1. CPA’s Current Production Environment.  CPA’s current production environment consisting of mainframe, mid tier, access, and networking system environments is described below.
Mainframe
CPA’s mainframe system operates twenty-four (24) hours a day, seven (7) days a week, 365 days a year. CPA’s Innovation and Technology Division currently manages a statewide data center running on an IBM z9 2094 S08 EC 704 mainframe computer with computing capacity of 2156 MIPS or 298 MSUs, 128 GB of storage and 132 channels (44 FICON and 88 ESCON). The CPA Data Center contains 17 TB of mainframe DASD, four (4) automated tape cartridge silos with (44) 3490E tape drives, 2.5 TB Virtual Tape Subsystem emulating two hundred and fifty-six (256) 3490E tape drives, sixteen (16) Storagetek 9840 high capacity tape drives, and three (3) Storagetek 9940B tape drives.

Mid Tier
CPA supports several hundred mid-tier servers running Windows and AIX. Database systems include Oracle and SQL Server, and web-based applications utilizing Websphere 6.0.2 and .Net 2.0. Windows 2003 Server, SP 2 and Web server - IIS 6.0 are also used.
Access

CPA uses several different methods of access for its systems. The type of data being accessed and the type of user determine the method of access for each system. Active Directory for internal CPA users, RACF for internal CPA users and external agency/university users, LDAP for internal CPA users, and native database security for Oracle and SQL Server are all types of access currently in use at CPA.
Networking System Environment
CPA’s network provides inter-agency connectivity during normal business hours (7:00 a.m. – 7:00 p.m. each banking business day, with transactions processed 24x7/365) for information sharing between all state agencies and universities, as well as internal connectivity between CPA’s mid-range computer platforms and the mainframe.  The Networking System Environment consists of a Cisco-based network environment with DMZ, perimeter controls, layered and redundant architecture consisting of, but not limited, to firewalls, routers, and switches with 10/100/1000 Mbps connectivity to desktops with high speed interlinks.  Servers are connected to a 100/1000 Mbps network with a collapsed core network of redundant (6513) switches.
C.1.2. Treasury Operations’ Current Production Environment.  Treasury Operations' current production environment consists of one dual processor server with 600 GB of drive space for all DOS based systems.  Additionally, it consists of a Windows web server and a clustered SQL server database environment along with an IVR server and backup IVR.  The existing hardware utilizes mainframe, x86, Windows servers/desktops and Apple Macintosh.  

The aging systems’ applications are written in Computer Associates (CA) Clipper, Microsoft (MS) Visual Basic (VB), MS FoxPro, MS .NET, IBM COBOL, MS Excel, IBM Lotus 123, and FilemakerPro. Existing databases are: VSAM, DB2, FoxPro, SQL and text-based files. Treasury applications currently interface within their own technology (e.g., DB2 to DB2) and to other technologies listed above (e.g., DB2 to SQL and/or Clipper to COBOL).

C.2.
Future Production Environment 

CPA is in the process of a technology modernization initiative that will result in significant changes to our current environment.  Below is a summary of the planned architecture and environment.

Strategic Architecture

· New applications will be developed in Java or .Net.

· Existing tax applications will be rewritten in Java.

· Enterprise Unix environment will be used for application and web servers.

· DB2 on the mainframe will be used as the primary repository for agency data.

· Mainframe transaction processing will be reduced.

· A Service Oriented Architecture with Web Services will be used to allow for business logic re-use.

 Mainframe 
· CPA mainframe software will operate in a Parallel Sysplex environment.

· Where applicable, new software shall be compatible with:

· IBM z/OS 1.8, JES3.

· Security Server (RACF).

· IBM DB2 for z/OS V8 and V9.

· IBM CICS Transaction Server for z/OS 3.1.

· Interfaces to the mainframe DB2 subsystems will use CPA’s DataDirect zDirect ODBC/JDBC subsystems.

· Mainframe DB2 transactions will use static SQL.

Mid-Tier

The primary hardware environment will involve a small number of large UNIX servers hosting a significant number of virtual servers. RDBMS for the UNIX environment will be IBM DB2 LUW 9. Secure External Web Service Requests will be supported.
Access

Active Directory will be used for internal CPA users (employees and contractors). RACF will be used for internal CPA users and external agency/university users. LDAP will be used for internal and external user authentication.

Networking System Environment

The Networking System Environment will consist of a Cisco-based network environment with DMZ, perimeter controls, layered and redundant architecture consisting of but not limited to firewalls, routers, and switches with 10/100/1000 Mbps connectivity to desktops with high speed interlinks. Servers will be connected to a 1000 Mbps network. The server farm network will use redundant stacked Cisco 4900 series layer-three switches with a collapsed core network redundant (6513) switches.
 XE "Definitions" D.
Treasury Solution Requirements

D.1.
Treasury Solution Scope and General Requirements 
Successful Respondent shall design, develop, deliver, install, and implement a Treasury Solution as described in Section II of this RFO.  The Treasury Solution shall be located at CPA’s offices in Austin, Texas.  CPA prefers that Successful Respondent not perform any work offshore for the Treasury Solution.
The Treasury Solution must include the following Eleven Business Processes, described in Section II, Part D.2 (Treasury Operations’ Eleven Business Processes), and in further detail in Appendix B (Software Requirements Specifications (SRS)) and Appendix C (Process Flows) of this RFO: 
1. Process Electronic & Miscellaneous Financial Transactions.
2. Deposit State Agency Receipts.
3. Process Deposit & Disbursement Returns.
4. Allocate Earned Fund Interest.
5. Reconcile Statewide Funds.
6. Perform Cash Management.
7. Manage Assets & Securities.
8. Execute Agency Disbursements.
9. Perform Agency 311 Accounting Services.
10. Provide Teller Services.
11. Provide Lockbox Services.


In addition, Successful Respondent shall provide a Treasury Solution that consists, at a minimum, of the following which is described in further detailed in Section II, Parts D.3-D.9: 
1. Treasury Solution Services.

2. Formal Training.

3. Enterprise Service Bus or Functional Equivalent.

4. Software.

5. Software Maintenance and Support.

6. Hardware.

7. Hardware Maintenance and Support.

Successful Respondent shall provide a Treasury Solution that meets the following minimum specifications: 

1. The Treasury Solution must interface with CPA’s existing legacy systems and integrate with CPA’s future architecture and environment.  The current legacy system environment is described in Section II, Part C.1 (Current Production Environments). The future environment and architectural direction is described in Section II, Part C.2 (Future Production Environment).
2. The Treasury Solution must be flexible so as to allow for the implementation of one or more of the Eleven Business Processes without requiring the implementation of other processes.  However, the implemented processes must seamlessly interface with existing Treasury Operations’ systems and also take into account CPA’s future architecture and ERP statewide strategic direction.

3. The Treasury Solution processes must be designed in such a way that the components can be modified by CPA as needed in the future. Examples of modifications will include, but are not limited to, the ability to add/update/delete data sources, user interfaces, programs, reports, downloads, and interfaces to other systems.

4. The Treasury Solution must provide scalability by allowing for hardware, software, and services expansion up to 30% over the next 5 years.
5. The server hardware operational availability must meet or exceed 24x7/365 after Go-Live with system availability of 99.99% i.e., unscheduled downtime must not exceed 0.01% per year. Scheduled downtime must not exceed 120 minutes in any 12 month calendar period. 

6. All hardware and software must be delivered to, and housed onsite at, a CPA-specified facility in Austin, Texas. 
7. Successful Respondent must install the hardware and software for the Treasury Solution. The installation services shall be coordinated and overseen by CPA.
8. The Treasury Solution must either provide a native alert notification for system failures and warnings (e.g., email, pager, mobile phone (SMS – Short Message Service), SNMP – Simple Network Management Protocol), or one that integrates with existing CPA systems.
9. Treasury Solution systems must allow for varying IP addresses or subnets so that they will be able to fail over to another data center for business continuity purposes.
10. The Treasury Solution must adhere to CPA security standards, as described in Section II, Part E (CPA Security Review). 

11. Confidential data must be encrypted in transmission between new systems, between new and existing systems, and when at rest.

12. The Eleven Business Processes’ reporting must utilize CPA’s Business Intelligence solution using Business Objects software and a comprehensive data warehouse system.
CPA is in the initial stages of developing Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) requirements and a statewide strategic direction in accordance with House Bill 3106, 80th Legislature, Regular Session. CPA desires that the Treasury Solution be a subset of, or easily integrated into, a statewide ERP solution. ERP systems attempt to integrate all data and processes of an organization into a unified system. A typical ERP system will use multiple components of computer software and hardware to achieve the integration. A key ingredient of most ERP systems is the use of a unified database to store data for the various system modules. ERP systems attempt to cover all basic functions of an enterprise, regardless of the organization's business or charter. ERP software integrates multiple, core, enterprise-wide software products such as Procurement, Accounts Payable, General Ledger, Accounts Receivable, Human Resources, Job Cost/Contract Billing, Proposals, Project Management into one total ERP solution. In its Offer, Respondent must specify whether the Treasury Solution is an integral part of a total ERP solution and provide detailed descriptions of the ERP Treasury modules. If the Treasury Solution is separate from an ERP solution, Respondent, in its Offer, must clearly, accurately and comprehensively describe the Treasury Solution’s compatibility and integration with an ERP solution. 
CPA requires the total Treasury Solution to be completed on or before December 31, 2010.   In order to meet anticipated business needs, CPA has developed two implementation timelines for the Treasury Solution.  

Timeline A

1. Go-Live to CPA production environment for Processes 1-3 on or before 5:00 p.m. CZT November 26, 2008.

2. Go-Live to CPA production environment for Processes 4-11 on or before 5:00 p.m. CZT December 31, 2009.

Timeline B

1. Go-Live to CPA production environment for Processes 1-3 on or before 5:00 p.m. CZT November 26, 2008.

2. Go-Live to CPA production environment for Processes 4-11 on or before 5:00.p.m. CZT December 31, 2010.

In its Offer, Respondent shall provide all costs associated with the Treasury Solution on the Mandatory Pricing Form set forth in Section IV of this RFO. Respondent shall provide pricing for both Timeline A and Timeline B. Line-item costs shall be provided for each process, so that individual processes may be selected for implementation, as determined by CPA. Respondent must also provide a separately-priced Treasury Solution to deliver server hardware operational availability to meet or exceed 24x7/365 after Go-Live with system availability of 99.999% i.e., unscheduled downtime must not exceed 0.001% per year. For the 99.999% server hardware operational availability solution, scheduled downtime must not exceed 120 minutes in any 12 month calendar period. 
D.2. 
Treasury Operations’ Eleven Business Processes
D.2.1. 
Overview
CPA has identified eleven business processes for inclusion in the Treasury Solution. High-level requirements for each of the Eleven Business Processes are provided below. In addition, Software Requirements Specifications (SRS) are provided in Appendix B of this RFO. Current process flows for Processes 1-11 and future process flows for Processes 1-3 are included in Appendix C of this RFO. Due to security concerns, CPA reserves the right to only disclose more detailed Software Requirements Specifications and technical components of CPA systems to the Top Scoring Respondents who have signed the Non-Disclosure Agreement in Section IX of this RFO. All processes require report generation and shall leverage and expand upon CPA’s Business Intelligence Solution which includes Business Objects software and a data warehouse. 
D.2.2. 
Process 1 – Process Electronic and Miscellaneous Financial Transactions
Successful Respondent shall provide a solution that receives and processes electronic transactions and miscellaneous financial transactions completely, accurately, efficiently and in accordance with state and federal requirements. Specifically, Process 1 for the Treasury Solution, at a minimum, shall:  
· Receive and process all incoming ACH transactions from CPA, other state agencies and approved financial institutions in accordance with NACHA rules.
· Send electronic notifications to state agencies regarding ACH status and provide them with on-line access to view and approve incoming ACH transactions. 
· Format non-formatted ACH transactions received from state agencies.
· Receive and process credit card, concentration account, TexNet, TexasOnline, CPA field office transactions, and other miscellaneous financial transactions (e.g., chargebacks, chargeback credits, credit card fees and electronic benefits transfer (EBT) debits).
· Generate reports using business intelligence software (Business Objects) and data warehouse. Provide CPA and state agencies with on-line access to view report information.
· Verify and balance daily deposits transactions.
· Generate customized files and send to state agencies.
· Send financial transaction data to CPA and other state agencies to update their internal systems.
· Identify, correct and post financial transactions (e.g., exceptions, additions and corrections).
· Reduce or eliminate manual processing of financial transactions.

D.2.3.
Process 2 – Deposit State Agency Receipts
Successful Respondent shall provide a solution that receives, processes, and records revenue transactions to apply to state agencies’ funds. Specifically, the Treasury Solution for Process 2, at a minimum, shall:

· Record financial transactions (e.g., checks, currency, TexNet, concentration, credit card, CPA field office transactions, ACH).

· Send financial transaction data to CPA and other state agencies to update their internal systems.

· Identify, correct and post financial transactions (e.g., exceptions, additions and corrections).
· Verify and balance daily deposits transactions.

· Generate reports using business intelligence software (Business Objects) and data warehouse. Provide CPA and state agencies with on-line access to view report information.
· Reduce or eliminate manual processing of financial transactions.
D.2.4. 
Process 3 – Process Deposit & Disbursement Returns
Successful Respondent shall provide a solution that records daily returns and adjustment transactions to reflect financial impact on state agency funds in accordance with banking regulations. Specifically, the Treasury Solution for Process 3, at a minimum, shall:

· Receive and process “return” transactions and miscellaneous adjustments for CPA and other state agencies (e.g., ACH, credit card, checks, CPA field office transactions, TexasOnline, concentration).

· Send “return” transaction data to CPA and state agencies, and provide on-line access to view “return” information.

· Send financial transaction data to CPA and other state agencies to update their internal systems.

· Generate reports using business intelligence software (Business Objects) and data warehouse. Provide CPA and state agencies with on-line access to view report information.
· Reduce or eliminate manual processing of “return” transactions.
D.2.5.
Process 4 – Allocate Earned Fund Interest
Successful Respondent shall provide a solution that allocates monthly earnings to agencies on a pro-rata basis. Specifically, the Treasury Solution for Process 4, at a minimum, shall:

· Calculate, record and balance daily interest earnings statements from the Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company (TTSTC), depository banks and concentration accounts to the appropriate fund.

· Record daily service charges from financial institutions. 

· Update appropriate funds in USAS with interest earnings and service charges. 

· Generate reports using business intelligence software (Business Objects) and data warehouse. Provide CPA and state agencies with on-line access to view report information. 
· Reduce or eliminate manual processing of earned fund interest.
D.2.6. 
Process 5 – Reconcile Statewide Funds
Successful Respondent shall provide a solution that reconciles state funds to total cash in state bank accounts and investments (one day lag). Specifically, the Treasury Solution for Process 5, at a minimum, shall:

· Balance cash in state bank accounts to CPA systems.
· Balance daily USAS account activity to cash control reports and update fund accounting balances.
· Balance total cash assets in financial institutions and investment portfolios to USAS.
· Generate reports using business intelligence software (Business Objects) and data warehouse. Provide CPA and state agencies with on-line access to view report information.
· Reduce or eliminate manual reconciliation of funds.
D.2.7.
Process 6 – Perform Cash Management
Successful Respondent shall provide a solution that manages the state’s cash assets timely, efficiently, and securely on a daily basis to maximize the state’s earning potential and minimize the risk of financial loss.  Specifically, the Treasury Solution for Process 6, at a minimum, shall:

· Initiate, balance and record cash transfers through financial transactions to meet the state’s daily needs.

· Update internal accounting systems with cash transfer information.

· Establish and maintain cash management programs for processing the state’s revenue.

· Prepare and distribute state agency bond information as required.

· Establish, monitor and maintain the state’s daily cash position.

· Establish, monitor and maintain a working relationship with approved state depositories and other financial service providers.

· Generate reports using business intelligence software (Business Objects) and data warehouse. Provide CPA and state agencies with on-line access to view report information.  
· Generate the state’s annual report of revenue and expenditures.

· Generate the annual report comparing forecasted and actual revenue/expenditure data.

· Forecast the state’s cash needs by using historical economic data and trends.

D.2.8. 
Process 7 – Manage Assets & Securities
Successful Respondent shall provide a solution that maintains, monitors, and safe-keeps the state’s assets and registers state bonds. Specifically, the Treasury Solution for Process 7, at a minimum, shall:

· Provide trust and safe-keeping services to hold the state’s assets.
· Record official ownership of bearer bonds.

· Record and register municipal bonds.

· Record and monitor collateral pledged by financial institutions to secure the state’s deposits.

· Generate reports using the business intelligence software (Business Objects) and data warehouse to reflect the state’s assets.

D.2.9. 
Process 8 – Execute Agency Disbursements

Successful Respondent shall provide a solution that provides funding for state disbursements and serves as the state’s warrant record keeper. Specifically, the Treasury Solution for Process 8, at a minimum, shall:

· Maintain official registry of warrants.

· Receive and process warrants presented for payment on CPA systems.

· Balance warrant issues, payments, warrant cancellations, voided warrants, and electronic payment detail to control reports.

· Deposit unpaid warrants to financial institutions.

· Initiate and record transfer of funds to financial institutions daily in payment of presented warrants and electronic payment transactions.

· Collect payments for forged warrants and breach of warranty from financial institutions.
· Record settlement information for electronic payments from state agencies.

· Generate reports with historical warrant information using the business intelligence software (Business Objects) and data warehouse. Provide CPA and state agencies with on-line access to view reports.

D.2.10. 
Process 9 - Perform Agency 311 Accounting Functions
Successful Respondent shall provide a solution that prepares and distributes the required Agency 311 Annual Financial Report to CPA’s Budget and Internal Accounting Division. Specifically, the Treasury Solution for Process 9, at a minimum, shall:

· Perform special accounting functions and services related to Tobacco Funds.
· Perform specific banking and accounting services for the Texas Workforce Commission.

· Perform accounting functions for TRAN activities.

· Process federal funds pass-through payments.

· Establish the state’s annual credit interest rate for next year.

· Generate the Annual Financial Report using the business intelligence software (Business Objects) and data warehouse. Provide CPA’s Fund Accounting Division with on-line access to view reports.

D.2.11.  
Process 10 – Provide Teller Services
Successful Respondent shall provide a solution that receives state agency deposits, and conducts various cash transactions in a centralized and secure environment. Specifically, the Treasury Solution for Process 10, at a minimum, shall:
· Determine and secure cash for daily use. 

· Establish and maintain teller services for the state’s needs.

· Generate reports using the business intelligence software (Business Objects) and data warehouse. 
D.2.12.
Process 11 – Provide Lockbox Services
Successful Respondent shall provide a solution that receives, processes and deposits state revenue received at U. S. Post Office Boxes on behalf of state agencies and universities. Specifically, the Treasury Solution for Process 11, at a minimum, shall:

· Record payments and details remitted to state agencies received through Auto Wholesale, Wholesale, and Retail Accounts.
· Provide state agencies with images of source documents attached to payment received in the Lockbox.

· Generate customized files and send to state agencies.
· Generate Auto-Wholesale, Wholesale and Retail Account reports using the business intelligence software (Business Objects) and data warehouse. Provide state agencies with on-line access to view reports.
D.3. 
Treasury Solution Services 
D.3.1.
Overview
For each of the Eleven Business Processes described in Section II, Part D.2, Successful Respondent must provide the services described below in Section II, Part D.3 of this RFO.  The Treasury Solution Services listed in this Section II, Part D.3 of the RFO are not independent, separately priced services.  In other words, the line item cost associated with each of the Eleven Business Processes listed on the Mandatory Pricing Form in Section IV of this RFO must include all costs associated with providing the applicable Business Process and the following Treasury Solution Services: 

D.3.2.  
Project Management and Resource Management
D.3.2.1
Project Manager
Successful Respondent shall designate one of its resources to perform the tasks of the Successful Respondent’s Project Manager. Successful Respondent’s Project Manager will be CPA’s point-of-contact for CPA project-related issues. Successful Respondent’s Project Manager will be responsible for reporting, coordination, adherence to project schedules and accountability for the entire project. CPA reserves the right to approve, disapprove and request removal of Successful Respondent’s Project Manager throughout the contract term.  
Successful Respondent’s project management activities may include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. Provide project management, quality assurance, and risk management for the duration of the project.
2. Ensure all requirements outlined in the deliverables set forth in the CPA-approved Project Plan are implemented in accordance with the CPA-approved timeline.
3. Coordinate the conversion and implementation work required in the deliverables set forth in Section II, Part D.2 (Treasury Operations’ Eleven Business Processes) of this RFO.
4. Identify and promptly provide written notice to the CPA Project Manager describing any problems or issues that arise.
5. Maintain regular communications with the CPA Project Manager. Meet with CPA staff (system users and support staff) to coordinate project activities and keep CPA informed of the progress. 
6. Participate in weekly status meetings with the CPA Project Manager, which shall include Successful Respondent’s Project Manager, as agreed upon or requested by the CPA, in either a face-to-face meeting or telephone conference.
7. Prepare and submit weekly status reports in a form approved by the CPA Project Manager, which shall include, at a minimum, the progress of deliverables and resolutions to any issues identified by Successful Respondent and/or CPA staff. 
8. Provide daily status updates to the CPA Project Manager of any issues that affect the project.
9.
Use the Department of Information Resources (DIR) Texas Project Delivery Framework, located online at www.dir.state.tx.us/pubs/framework/index.htm, or CPA approved alternative, for project planning and management reporting.
10.
Raise any scope issues with the CPA Project Manager promptly. Successful Respondent shall not perform any out-of-scope work without a signed change request that follows CPA’s change request process and format. If Successful Respondent performs such work without obtaining a signed change request, Successful Respondent will not invoice and CPA shall not pay for the out-of-scope work.

D.3.2.2.
Project Team; Substitution and Removal of Personnel
Successful Respondent must provide and manage all Successful Respondent’s resources necessary to perform services and implementation for each process of the Treasury Solution, unless specifically stated as the responsibility of CPA. Successful Respondent’s resources management activities include, but are not limited to, providing qualified personnel that have excellent communications skills and conduct themselves professionally and courteously.  
Successful Respondent’s Project Manager must have a minimum of ten (10) years of project management experience managing projects of similar scope and complexity to the Treasury Solution. CPA prefers that the Successful Respondent’s Project Manager have a Project Management Professional Certification.  Other project personnel must have a minimum of three (3) years of experience performing the same skills of the position that they would provide for the Treasury Solution and have relevant experience on projects of similar scope and complexity.  In its Offer, Respondent shall identify the persons who will perform the services requested under this RFO and provide a detailed resume for each individual that describes the qualifications applicable to the performance of tasks for which the individual would be responsible.

Successful Respondent, upon CPA’s prior written approval, may substitute appropriate project personnel to accomplish its duties so long as the substituted personnel are equally qualified and skilled in the tasks necessary to accomplish the services required.  Successful Respondent shall provide written notice of a change to assigned personnel to the CPA Project Manager at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to any proposed change.  The actual change shall occur only after Successful Respondent has submitted documentation in form and substance satisfactory to CPA, provided detailed qualifications on the proposed substitute individual and the individual’s ability to assume corresponding responsibilities under this RFO, and the Successful Respondent has received written authorization from the CPA Project Manager approving the change.  The only exceptions to the thirty (30) day notification and prior written authorization requirements are for unforeseen emergencies, such as sudden illness or other circumstances that the parties agree precluded the Successful Respondent from complying with this section.
Pursuant to CPA’s written request, Successful Respondent shall immediately remove any individual that CPA finds unacceptable.  Successful Respondent shall promptly provide replacement individual(s) which are qualified to perform the tasks assigned to that individual under this RFO.  For each replacement individual, Successful Respondent shall promptly provide to the CPA Project Manager a resume that details the proposed replacement individual’s qualifications, education, training, experience, and certifications. If the proposed replacement individual is approved, the CPA Project Manager will provide written notification to the Successful Respondent.

D.3.2.3.
Treasury Solution Project Plan, Acceptance Test Plan, Post–Implementation Assessment and Project Closure
Treasury Solution Project Plan
In its Offer, Respondent shall provide a preliminary, high-level Project Plan for both Timeline A and Timeline B with the deliverables, timelines and key personnel identified for each of the eleven processes listed in Section II, Part D.2 (Treasury Operations’ Eleven Business Processes).  Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive Project Plan, for each of the eleven processes listed in Section II, Part D.2 (Treasury Operations’ Eleven Business Processes), for CPA approval.  Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update the Project Plan as the project progresses.  Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval. At a minimum, the Project Plan shall include planning, monitoring and control methods, and quality management to complete design, development, installation, migration and acceptance testing for the Treasury Solution. 
Successful Respondent shall use the DIR Texas Project Delivery Framework templates located online at www.dir.state.tx.us/pubs/framework/index.htm, or a CPA-approved alternative for all project management plans. Upon CPA approval, Successful Respondent shall keep the Project Plan current. Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval. Successful Respondent shall provide the services listed in the CPA-approved Project Plan for each process; for a partial solution, if all processes are not implemented; and for the total Treasury Solution.
In addition to the Project Plan, Successful Respondent shall provide the following Texas DIR Framework plans, located online at www.dir.state.tx.us/pubs/framework/index.htm, for CPA approval, for each process. Successful Respondent shall carry out the services listed in these CPA-approved plans for each process; for a partial solution, if all processes are not implemented; and for the total Treasury Solution.
1. Communication Management Plan - methods to manage formal communication for the project. Strategies for developing and maintaining organizational communication between CPA management, CPA technical staff, CPA users, and Successful Respondent’s project team.

2. Configuration Management Plan - methods to identify, monitor, and control project assets such as hardware, software, and project documentation. The Configuration Management Plan shall include  business processes, hardware and software for each process; for a partial solution, if all processes are not implemented; and for the total Treasury Solution.
· The Configuration Management Plan shall include a logical and/or physical separation of all unique environments such as development, acceptance testing, training, and production regions in a way that allows for the most efficient and secure use of hardware and software. Changes in any environment should follow industry-standard best-practices, or a CPA agreed-upon alternative.

· The Treasury Solution shall address change identification and tracking, timeframes for resolution, responsible parties, and specific steps to be taken on issues arising during the implementation process, including approval and escalation procedures. 

3. 
Performance Management Plan - methods to measure, review, report, monitor, and evaluate the product and/or service performance outcomes to ensure quality control.
4. Risk Management Plan - methods to identify, analyze, quantify, monitor, mitigate, avoid and control project risks.
Treasury Solution Acceptance Testing Plan

Successful Respondent shall provide for CPA approval a Treasury Solution Acceptance Testing Plan for business processes, software, and hardware for each of the eleven processes as described in Section II, Part D.3.3 System Development Life Cycle (SDLC). In its Offer, Respondent shall provide an initial, high-level plan for each of the eleven processes. Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive plan for each of the eleven processes for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update the Treasury Solution Acceptance Testing Plan as the project progresses. Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval.
Post-Implementation Assessment and Project Closure

Successful Respondent shall conduct a detailed, comprehensive post-implementation assessment for the Treasury Solution. Successful Respondent shall provide a Post-Implementation Assessment Plan, for CPA approval, for each process in the Treasury Solution.  Successful Respondent shall provide to CPA thorough, comprehensive assessment documents for each process. The written assessment shall include, at a minimum, the following:

1. Implementation Review.
2. Continued timely notification to CPA of identified vulnerabilities and security advisories which may impact the confidentiality, integrity or availability of the data and/or system(s).
3. Lessons Learned.
4. Best Practices.
5. Solution Enhancement Opportunities.
D.3.3.  
System Development Life Cycle (SDLC) 
Successful Respondent shall provide the following System Development Life Cycle plans and services for software, hardware and services, for CPA approval, for each business process; for a partial Treasury Solution, if only certain processes are implemented; and for the total Treasury Solution. In its Offer, Respondent shall provide an initial, high-level SDLC plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes. Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update the SDLC plans as the project progresses. Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval.  Successful Respondent may perform the SDLC services in parallel, if approved by CPA. Successful Respondent shall not deviate from the SDLC requirements  without prior written authorization from CPA.  Successful Respondent shall coordinate with CPA staff in providing these services.  
Successful Respondent shall perform the services required by this RFO at CPA facilities only, unless otherwise agreed by CPA. Successful Respondent is responsible for providing and documenting the following SDLC Services for the Treasury Solution:
1. Planning – Schedules and project statuses for CPA approval, including, but not limited to:
· Detailed tasks and dependencies.

· Task start and end dates.

· Successful Respondent’s personnel assigned to each task and estimated hours.

· CPA’s personnel assigned to each task and estimated hours.

· Identification of milestones and deliverables.
2. Analysis – System and software requirements documents for CPA approval.
3. Design – System architecture documents and detailed software design specifications documents for CPA approval for each Treasury Solution business process component.  Design may include prototyping or the use of tools included in the proposal that facilitate design and development.
4. Coding – Coding to integrate the Treasury Solution with existing CPA applications.  All code developed for the Treasury Solution must receive CPA approval prior to implementing in a Production environment.
5. Conversion – Conversion Plan and conversion scenarios based on detailed design documents that include the conversion strategy, activities, and scenarios for conversion testing approved by CPA. In its Offer, Respondent shall provide an initial, high-level plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes. Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update the Conversion Plan as the project progresses. Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval. Convert data from current Treasury Operations’ databases into appropriate new Treasury Operations’ databases. Convert data, wherever the characteristics of the data have been modified, related to re-engineering efforts or new design. Gather data cleansing and conversion requirements throughout design. Partial data conversions may be required to support the functionality in any of the components. Successful Respondent shall complete the data conversion effort, as the need is identified, to mitigate risk, allow numerous test conversions, and provide for converted data to be used in system testing. See the SRS in Appendix B for current data volumes to be converted. See Section II, Part D.3.5 (Data Conversion) for historical data volumes to be converted. Successful Respondent shall validate that all converted data is 100% accurate with zero tolerance for exceptions, rounding, write-offs or errors.
6. Unit Testing - Test Plan and test scenarios based on detailed design documents that include the testing strategy, activities, and scenarios for unit testing approved by CPA. In its Offer, Respondent shall provide an initial, high-level plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes. Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update the Unit  Testing Plan as the project progresses. Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval.  Successful Respondent shall verify that each new software module or component executes according to detailed design specifications. Successful Respondent shall provide test results to CPA for approval. 
7. System/Integration Testing – Test Plan and test scenarios based on detailed design documents that include the testing strategy, activities and scenarios for systems/integration testing approved by CPA. In its Offer, Respondent shall provide an initial, high-level plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes. Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update the System/Integration Testing Plan as the project progresses. Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval.  Successful Respondent shall verify that the new software and hardware interface and integrate with existing systems to produce CPA expected results. Successful Respondent shall provide test results to CPA for approval.
8. Parallel Testing – Test Plan and test scenarios based on detailed design documents that include the testing strategy, activities and scenarios for parallel testing approved by CPA. In its Offer, Respondent shall provide an initial, high-level plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes. Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update the Parallel Testing Plan as the project progresses. Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval.  Successful Respondent shall execute production transactions against the new Treasury Solution code in the new production configuration to validate results against those obtained from the same transactions in the current Treasury environment. Successful Respondent shall provide test results to CPA for approval. Parallel testing results shall match expected test results with 100% accuracy without error, exception, write-off or rounding. Successful Respondent shall conduct parallel testing for a minimum of sixty (60) calendar days, or a CPA-approved timeframe. 
9. Load Testing – Test Plan and test scenarios based on detailed design documents that include the testing strategy, activities and scenarios for load testing approved by CPA. In its Offer, Respondent shall provide an initial, high-level plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes. Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update the Load Testing Plan as the project progresses. Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval. Successful Respondent shall execute production transactions against the new Treasury Solution code in the new production configuration to validate expected results. Successful Respondent shall provide test results to CPA for approval. Successful Respondent shall be responsible for fine-tuning the system after the test to satisfy CPA’s performance standards.
10. Performance Testing – Test Plan and test scenarios based on detailed design documents that include the testing strategy, activities and scenarios for performance testing approved by CPA. In its Offer, Respondent shall provide an initial, high-level plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes. Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update the Performance Testing Plan as the project progresses. Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval.  Successful Respondent shall execute production transactions against the new Treasury Solution code in the new production configuration to validate expected results. Successful Respondent shall provide performance testing results to CPA for approval (e.g., user interface response time, application transaction time, data access rates). Successful Respondent shall be responsible for fine-tuning the system after performance testing to satisfy CPA’s performance needs.
11. Acceptance Testing – Test Plan and test scenarios based on detailed design documents that include the testing strategy, activities and scenarios for acceptance testing of hardware, software, business processes, services, training, knowledge transfer, documentation and security, as approved by CPA. In its Offer, Respondent shall provide an initial, high-level plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes. Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update the Acceptance Testing Plan as the project progresses. Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval.  Successful Respondent shall support CPA business users testing the Treasury Solution.  Respondent shall include in its Offer:
1. Acceptance testing criteria.

2. Acceptance testing procedures.

3. A form for documenting the results of its acceptance testing process.

4. Any other necessary information regarding acceptance testing for the Treasury Solution. 

The Acceptance Testing team from various CPA divisions will perform structured, user acceptance tests on solutions for each business process; a partial Treasury Solution, if only certain processes are implemented; and the total Treasury Solution, as implemented by Successful Respondent. The Acceptance Testing team will conduct acceptance testing using criteria offered by Successful Respondent and as approved by CPA. CPA’s Acceptance Testing team will document the results of the acceptance testing process.
1. Acceptance testing results shall be 100% accurate at the end of the acceptance period for each business process, as determined by CPA, prior to CPA providing written acceptance to Successful Respondent. 
2. Acceptance testing results shall be 100% accurate at the end of the acceptance period for a partial Treasury Solution, if only certain processes are implemented, as determined by CPA, prior to CPA providing written acceptance to Successful Respondent. 

3. Acceptance testing results shall be 100% accurate at the end of the acceptance period for the total Treasury Solution, as determined by CPA, prior to CPA providing written acceptance to Successful Respondent. 

12. 
Regression Testing – In its Offer, Respondent shall provide an initial, high-level plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes. Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update the Regression testing Plan as the project progresses. Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval.  Successful Respondent shall ensure that:

1. Bugs have been fixed and that no other previously working functions have failed as a result of the reparations. 
2. Newly added features have not created problems with previous versions of the software. 
3. Newly modified code still complies with its specified requirements and that unmodified code has not been affected by the maintenance activity.
13.
Implementation – Implementation Plan detailing the steps necessary to successfully install the software in development, test, training and production environments.  In its Offer, Respondent shall provide an initial, high-level plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes. Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update the Implementation Plan as the project progresses. Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval.  The plan shall specify the following required information: communication or notification required, database changes required, security, objects to be installed, system interfaces, conversion plans, contingency plan, a detailed timeline of events and test scenarios to validate the installation. Successful Respondent shall not perform any planned installation activity without prior CPA approval of the Implementation Plan. 
D.3.4. 
Hardware/Software Delivery and Installation 
Successful Respondent shall provide all Hardware and Software Installation Services, including, but not limited to:
1. Perform all installation and testing services for the Treasury Solution’s hardware and software with oversight by CPA personnel.

2. Perform all hardware and software installation services at CPA facilities only, unless otherwise agreed by CPA. 
3. Perform a thorough site assessment and identify the integration, technical, operational, security, disaster recovery, and hardware plan for the proposed Treasury Solution.

4. Ensure all hardware and software function without defect for the Treasury Solution.
5. Deliver to CPA all Treasury Solution hardware and software necessary for the Treasury Solution.
6. Provide hardware and software documentation as specified in this RFO.
In its Offer, Respondent shall provide an initial, high-level Hardware and Software Installation Plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes. Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update these plans as the project progresses. Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval.  Successful Respondent shall develop a Hardware and Software Installation Plan, detailing how Successful Respondent shall perform all the Hardware and Software Installation Services.
D.3.5.
Data Conversion 
In its Offer, Respondent shall provide an initial high-level Data Conversion Plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes. Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update the Data Conversion plan as the project progresses. Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval.  Successful Respondent shall provide a Conversion Plan, for CPA approval, for data transactions, hardware and software for each process outlined in the Software Requirements Specifications (SRS) in Appendix B of this RFO. Successful Respondent shall provide the services listed in the CPA-approved Conversion Plan for each process; for a partial solution, if all processes are not implemented; and for the total Treasury Solution.
Successful Respondent shall:
1. Provide a Conversion Plan for data that shall be moved from one location to another as part of the implementation. The plan shall include the specific data to be converted and the mapping strategy and details describing how the data will be moved from the current location to the new location.  The plan shall also identify any manipulation of the data required to complete the conversion.
2. Convert data from the current Treasury databases into appropriate new Treasury databases, according to the CPA-approved Conversion Plan. 
3. Convert data, wherever the characteristics of the data have been modified, related to re-engineering efforts or new design. 
4. Gather data cleansing and conversion requirements throughout design. 
5. Perform partial data conversions, as approved by CPA, to support the functionality in any of the components. 
6. Complete the data conversion effort, as the need is identified, to mitigate risk, allow numerous test conversions, and provide for converted data to be used in system testing.
7. Validate all converted data as 100% accurate with zero tolerance for exceptions, errors, rounding or write-offs.
8. Convert historical data which includes but is not limited to the information shown in the table below:
TREASURY OPERATIONS’ HISTORICAL DATA RETENTION/CONVERSION

	PROCESS
	PROCESS DESCRIPTION
	DATA
	RETENTION PERIOD
	ONLINE ACCESS
	APPROX. ANNUAL
TRANSACTIONAL
VOLUMES

	1
	Process Electronic & Miscellaneous Financial Transactions
	All
	· 10 yrs
	· 5 yrs
	Rapid 1 -  347,422
Rapid 2 – 225,885
Concentration – 661,684
ACH – 1,120,109
AWM – 680,800
Portal – 28,000,000
USAS/Non-Portal – 115,565
EDI – 40,980
ACH Late – 1,080,000
ACH Early – 11,180,000
Credit Card/Misc – 154,130


	2
	Deposit State Agency Receipts
	All
	· 10 yrs
	· 5 yrs
	See Process 1 above

	3
	Process Deposit & Disbursement Returns
	All
	· 10 yrs
	· 5 yrs
	ACH Returns 260,000

	4
	Allocate Earned Fund Interest
	All
	· 10 yrs
	· 3 yrs
	2,500,000

	5
	Reconcile Statewide Funds
	All
	· 5 yrs
	· 3 yrs
	200,000

	6
	Perform Cash Management
	· Cash Flow

· All Others
	· 10 yrs

· 5 yrs
	· 5 yrs

· 3 yrs
	450,000

	7
	Manage Assets & Securities
	All
	· 5 yrs
	· 3 yrs
	TBD

	8
	Execute Agency Disbursements
	· Issued/paid warrants

· All Others
	· Permanent 

· 5 yrs
	· 5 yrs

· 3 yrs


	· TBD
· TBD


	9
	Perform Agency 311 Accounting Functions
	All
	· 5 yrs
	· 3 yrs
	· TBD


	10
	Provide Teller Services
	All
	· 5 yrs
	· 3 yrs
	· TBD


	11
	Provide Lockbox Services
	All
	· 5 yrs
	· 3 yrs
	>100,000


D.3.6. 
Reporting 

Successful Respondent shall develop, test and implement reports for timely decision-making for each of the Eleven Business Processes by leveraging and expanding upon CPA’s Business Intelligence Solution using Business Objects Software and a comprehensive data warehouse. Refer to the Software Requirements Specifications (SRS) in Appendix B for details on number, frequency and types of reports. Reports are produced for all functions within Treasury Operations, including but not limited to, management decision-making, balancing, and reconciliation purposes. CPA staff, external entities and end-users, such as state agencies and institutions of higher education, use these Treasury Operations reports.
In its Offer, Respondent shall provide an initial high-level Report Development and Implementation plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes. Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive Report Development plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update the Report Development plan as the project progresses. Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval.

D.3.7.  
Knowledge Transfer 
Successful Respondent shall educate designated CPA technical staff on all aspects of the Treasury Solution, including installation, development, maintenance, performance tuning and optimization, and trouble-shooting of all software and hardware components.  In addition, Successful Respondent shall educate Treasury Operations’ staff on business processes and business functions using the Treasury Solution software.  The Knowledge Transfer process shall include knowledge sharing via, but not limited to, management and technical documents, system documentation, templates, meetings and informal training.  Knowledge Transfer activities shall be performed by Successful Respondent only at CPA facilities, unless otherwise agreed by CPA.

In its Offer, Respondent shall provide an initial high-level Knowledge Transfer Plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes. Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update the Knowledge Transfer Plan as the project progresses. Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval.  Successful Respondent shall use this plan to provide knowledge transfer activities during the course of the Treasury Solution. The SRS in Appendix B indicates the approximate number of Treasury Operations’ staff that performs each of the Eleven Business Processes and that require knowledge transfer.

The CPA-approved Knowledge Transfer Plan shall:

· Identify CPA’s staff to be trained.

· Identify Successful Respondents’ staff and its expertise in Knowledge Transfer for the Treasury Solution.

· Specify dates and time commitments for knowledge transfer activities that are mutually agreed upon by CPA and Successful Respondent. Knowledge Transfer may occur after normal business hours, for example, during the evenings or weekends, to accommodate CPA’s business needs. Successful Respondent shall offer additional alternative dates and times for Knowledge Transfer activities so that all appropriate staff may be afforded the opportunity to participate.
· Establish post-knowledge-transfer evaluation measures to determine CPA staff’s skill level and comprehension to confirm that knowledge transfer was achieved. CPA’s formal acceptance of the completion of knowledge transfer for each of the Eleven Business Processes will be based on these evaluation measures.
· Provide feedback evaluations for CPA staff to complete concerning the effectiveness of the Knowledge Transfer and Successful Respondent’s instructors.  
If Respondent proposes Knowledge Transfer which deviates from this requirement, then in its Offer, Respondent shall provide a written description of all deviations and/or exceptions to this requirement, and state why this deviation/exception is a comparable or better alternative.  CPA will be the sole judge as to whether such deviations and/or exceptions are material or immaterial.
D.3.8. 
Business Continuity 
Successful Respondent shall provide business continuity services which include operational risk management focusing on mission critical business processes to maintain an acceptable level of critical business functionality that will enable the organization to conduct business as near to normal levels as possible.  Specifically, Successful Respondent shall not cause disruption or outages to CPA’s business, development projects or production environment. Successful Respondent shall continue to support existing development, test and production environments throughout the implementation of the Treasury Solution, coordinating with CPA and CPA’s current maintenance vendor, as needed.  The Treasury Solution systems must allow for varying IP addresses or subnets, so that fail over can be achieved to another data center for business continuity purposes.  Successful Respondent shall provide documentation to properly configure and/or manage the system/application hardware and software for backup/failover for business continuity purposes. 

D.3.9.
Disaster Recovery Plan   
In its Offer, Respondent shall provide an initial, high-level Treasury Solution Disaster Recovery Plan which contains procedures and guidelines to help recover and restore disrupted processes and resources to normal operational status within a stated timeframe following a disaster or a disruptive event.  Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive Treasury Solution Disaster Recovery Plan for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update the Disaster Recovery Plan as the project progresses. Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval.  CPA is not seeking the services of a disaster recovery service provider under this RFO.
Successful Respondent shall provide a written Disaster Recovery Plan which includes procedures, guidelines, and turn-around times for the restoration of disrupted IT and business systems to normal operational status in the event CPA experiences a disaster, emergency, or other event that renders the Treasury Solution inoperable. The Disaster Recovery Plan shall include an order of priority for the recovery effort such that the most critical IT and business functions are restored first. In addition, the Disaster Recovery Plan shall include documentation to enable CPA to properly configure and manage the system/application hardware and software for backup/failover and disaster recovery.  This documentation shall include details for backing up the system/application for use at the disaster recovery location (e.g., back ups while in operation, disaster restore techniques, fail over techniques). The Disaster Recovery Plan shall include procedures and guidelines for restoring IT and business operations at an alternate location, recovering IT and business operations using alternate equipment, and/or performing some or all of the affected business processes using manual methods. 
D.4. 
Formal Training 
In its Offer, Respondent shall provide an initial, high-level Formal Training plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes. Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update the Formal Training plan as the project progresses. Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval.  Successful Respondent shall provide CPA-approved Formal Training activities for each process of the Treasury Solution provided under any PO resulting from this RFO. The SRS in Appendix B indicates the approximate number of Treasury Operations’ staff that performs each process. At a minimum, Successful Respondent shall provide: 
1. Comprehensive, detailed Formal Training for all functional, technical, and operational aspects of the Treasury Solution, including software and hardware, for each process of the Treasury Solution, prior to CPA’s acceptance of that phase of the project.
2. Formal Training for end-users geared to each business function.
3. Dates and times for Formal Training for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall offer at least two (2) training classes for each of the Eleven Business Processes so that all Treasury Operations and technical staff will be afforded the opportunity to attend the appropriate class.  Consequently, Successful Respondent may be required to provide evening or weekend Formal Training, according to CPA’s business needs, in addition to Formal Training during normal business hours. All training shall take place at a CPA facility located in Austin, Texas.
4. High-level Treasury Solution Overview training for managers.

5. Beginner, Intermediate, Advanced and Refresher Training.
6. A detailed description of the Formal Training, including course outlines, length of class, instructors’ qualifications, experience, and knowledge of the subject matter.
7. One (1) copy of the individual Training Manuals for each training attendee.
8. Feedback evaluations for CPA staff to complete, indicating the effectiveness of the Successful Respondent’s Formal Training courses and instructors.
9. Written and/or hands-on tests that CPA staff shall take to ensure Formal Training was effective for each process of the Treasury Solution, prior to CPA’s acceptance of that phase of the project.
All Formal Training costs shall be based on a firm fixed price, i.e., "fully loaded."  Successful Respondent shall not invoice and CPA shall not pay for any additional charges related to formal training services such as travel costs, per diem expenses, or other out-of-pocket expenditures.
If Respondent proposes training which deviates from this requirement, then in its Offer, Respondent shall provide a written description of all deviations and/or exceptions to this requirement, and state why this deviation/exception is a comparable or better alternative.  CPA will be the sole judge as to whether such deviations and/or exceptions are material or immaterial.
 D.5. 
Enterprise Service Bus (ESB) or Functional Equivalent 
Successful Respondent shall provide a Treasury Solution that includes an Enterprise Service Bus (ESB) or functional equivalent.  The ESB or functional equivalent shall provide the following functionality: 
1. Implementation – Operating system and language agnostic (Windows, UNIX, Java, MS .Net).

2. Invocation – Support for synchronous and asynchronous transport protocols, service mapping (locating and binding).

3. Routing – Addressability, static/deterministic routing, content-based routing, rules-based routing, policy-based routing.

4. Mediation – Adapters, protocol transformation, service mapping.

5. Messaging – Message processing, message transformation and message enhancement.

6. Process Choreography – Implementation of complex business processes.

7. Service Orchestration – Coordination of multiple implementation services exposed as a single, aggregate service.

8. Complex Event Processing – Event interpretation, correlation, pattern matching.

9. Security – Authentication, authorization, encryption and signing.

10. Quality of Service – Reliable delivery, transaction management and backup.

Successful Respondent shall provide maintenance and technical support for any ESB or functional equivalent provided during the contract term.  In its Offer, Respondent must describe and clearly define its procedures for problem or trouble  escalation and resolution.  

In its Offer, Respondent shall include all costs to maintain and support the ESB or functional equivalent for the initial term and each of the option years listed on the Mandatory Pricing Form, Section IV. CPA will not pay for any additional charges for travel.  On the Mandatory Pricing Form, Respondent shall also include alternative pricing for both (1) Maintenance and Technical Support with no remote access to CPA systems and (2) Maintenance and Technical Support with remote access permitted to CPA systems.

D.6. 
Software 
D.6.1. 
Overview
Successful Respondent shall deliver to CPA all Licensed Software necessary for the Treasury Solution. The Licensed Software will be used by CPA staff, state agencies, financial institutions, and institutions of higher education. A detailed description of transactional volumes and users by process is provided in the SRS in Appendix B.
Successful Respondent shall:
1. Provide scalability by allowing for hardware, software, and services expansion up to 30% over the next 5 years.

2. Provide schedules and outlines for corrective and preventative maintenance.
3. Conform to accessibility and usability standards as defined in 1 Texas Administrative Code §206.50  at http://info.sos.state.tx.us/pls/pub/readtac$ext.ViewTAC?tac_view=5&ti=1&pt=10&ch=206&sch=B&rl=Y.

4. Further conform to accessibility standards as defined in Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act at http://www.section508.gov/. 
5. Provide performance statistics that can be used for evaluation purposes and acceptance criteria (e.g., user interface response time, application transaction time, data access rates).  Successful Respondent shall be responsible for fine-tuning the system until performance meets and or exceeds performance standards as defined and approved by CPA.
6. Provide the appropriate system management tools to monitor the Treasury Solution for system failures, performance degradation, and errors.
7. Provide development tools for use by CPA staff developers to support and maintain the Treasury Solution.
Software programs or sets of software programs, provided by Successful Respondent under any PO resulting from this RFO, shall meet the minimum performance standards and stated functionality in this RFO, Successful Respondent’s Offer, and the Original Software Manufacturer’s published or promotional material. 
In its Offer, Respondent shall identify by name and version number each proposed software product, the proposed number of licenses by type, and the licensure methodology.  The number of users for each process is included in the SRS located in Appendix B of this RFO. 
If the Licensed Software requires the use of a hardware key, dongle, or other device which prevents the production copy of the Licensed Software from being transferred to another device, then Successful Respondent shall provide sufficient copies of the Licensed Software to enable CPA to use the Licensed Software for disaster recovery, test, and development purposes. Refer to Section II, Part D.6.2 (License Grant) of this RFO.
D.6.2.  
License Grant (Production/Development Environment, Disaster Recovery)
Under any PO resulting from this RFO, Successful Respondent shall grant CPA a non-exclusive, irrevocable, universal license to the IP rights for the purposes of (1) using, displaying and performing the Licensed Software in connection with CPA’s network; (2) using, displaying and performing the Licensed Software in connection with backup and disaster recovery procedures in the event of destruction or corruption of the Licensed Software or disasters or emergencies which require CPA or any of its Affiliates to initiate disaster recovery procedures; (3) using one copy of the Licensed Software for test and development purposes in a non-production environment; and (4) making, reproducing and distributing the Licensed Software copies and related Documentation, either electronically or otherwise, to the extent necessary to fully utilize the license rights granted in (1), (2), and (3).  CPA shall not permit any Licensed Software to be used by any other person, except for employees, agents, consultants, outsourcing companies and contractors who need to use the Licensed Software in the performance of their duties for CPA and who are authorized and enabled by CPA, under CPA’s written agreement, to access and utilize the Licensed Software.

For disaster recovery purposes, Successful Respondent shall grant CPA the right to install the Licensed Software on equivalent capacity equipment that is located at an installation site that is (a) owned or controlled by CPA or (b) owned or controlled by a third party with which CPA has contracted to provide disaster recovery services. The use of disaster recovery copies shall be limited (a) for the purpose of conducting disaster recovery testing and (b) during any period subsequent to the occurrence of an actual disaster or other event during which CPA is unable to operate the Licensed Software on the hardware located at its designated primary site. Successful Respondent shall provide temporary licenses, passwords, and any other items or devices that are necessary to enable CPA to conduct, at CPA’s sole discretion, two (2) Hot Site Tests per fiscal year on equivalent capacity equipment (a) owned or controlled by CPA or (b) owned or controlled by a third party with which CPA has contracted to provide disaster recovery services.  
D.6.3.  
Software Documentation 
Successful Respondent shall provide to CPA and develop, if necessary, the appropriate functional, technical, operational documentation for the Treasury Solution software. At a minimum, Successful Respondent shall provide the following documentation to CPA:  

1. All standard documentation for each of the Treasury Solution software products provided. 

2. System Architecture Document that describes the software loaded on each hardware component, the software version, and configuration. 
3. Detailed Software Design Documents for each software product, including inputs, processes, outputs, and dependencies.

4. Detailed Software Interface Design Documents for each interface program, including file formats, processing steps, validations, and recovery strategies.
Successful Respondent shall provide at least one (1) copy of each type of documentation.  Successful Respondent shall provide written approval, which authorizes CPA to make additional copies of the Documentation for internal use only, or provide additional copies of the Documentation to CPA at no charge.  Number of copies of the Documentation will not exceed personnel in the user division.  CPA will restrict distribution of Documentation to those users with a “Need to Know” classification.  CPA shall not remove, deface, or otherwise obscure any copyright, patent, trademark, service mark, or other proprietary legend (Proprietary Legends) on the Licensed Software or the Documentation.  Furthermore, CPA shall include such Proprietary Legends in any reproductions of either the Licensed Software or the Documentation that CPA is permitted to make.

D.7. 
Software Maintenance and Technical Support
D.7.1.  
Overview
Successful Respondent shall provide software maintenance and technical support for any Treasury Solution software under any PO resulting from this RFO during the contract term.  All such software maintenance and technical support shall be unlimited and either meet or exceed the times detailed in Section II, Part D.7.2 (Software Service Level Agreement (SLA) and Escalation Plan) below.
For Commercial Off-the-Shelf (COTS) Software or Customized COTS in the proposed Treasury Solution, Successful Respondent shall: 

1. Provide Software Maintenance and Technical Support including software upgrades, updates, enhancements, patches, error corrections, and fixes. 

2. Provide qualified personnel available 24x7/365 to CPA via 1-800 hotline, email, and/or website where problems or issues may be reported.

3. Provide upgrades automatically via the Web or CD.

4. Provide overnight software updates, replacements, or patches in the event of system failure. 

In its Offer, Respondent shall include all costs to maintain and support the software for the initial term and each of the option years listed on the Mandatory Pricing Form, Section IV. CPA will not pay for any additional charges for travel.  On the Mandatory Pricing Form, Respondent shall also provide costs for both standard COTS maintenance and support and, if applicable, the maintenance and support services costs associated with any customization of the COTS required to meet the Section II, D.2 specifications for the Treasury Solution.  In addition, Respondent shall include alternative pricing for both (1) Software Maintenance and Technical Support with no remote access to CPA systems and (2) Software Maintenance and Technical Support with remote access permitted to CPA systems.
D.7.2.  
Software Service Level Agreement (SLA) and Escalation Plan
Successful Respondent shall provide a Service Level Agreement (SLA) and Escalation Plan for CPA approval.  Successful Respondent shall provide services that, at a minimum, adhere to the following CPA SLA and Escalation Schedule for each of the Eleven Business Processes of the Treasury Solution.  Successful Respondent shall provide the services detailed in the CPA-approved SLA and Escalation Plan.  
D.7.2.1.  
Offsite Support 

Successful Respondent shall provide remote help desk and/or dial-in support for troubleshooting, maintenance and support as follows:
	PRIORITY LEVEL
Priority 1 – Highest Priority

Priority 4 – Lowest Priority
	DESCRIPTION
	RESPONSE TIME

	1
	a.  Critical processes are inoperable

b.  Damage to the IT infrastructure is probable

c.  There may be unacceptable political impact

d.  Treasury Operations’ immediate deadlines may not be met

e.  There may be an adverse financial impact to the State

f.  Users are unable to perform end of day tasks resulting in overtime work
	Immediate

	2
	a.  Users are unable to perform pending critical tasks

b.  The issue affects fulfilling a pending deadline

c.  Significant idle staff time is occurring

 
	4 hrs

	3
	a. Users are able to work now but will have a stopping point within one business day

b. A frequent issue of minor importance yet obviously affecting work efficiency

c. An intermittent problem of low frequency
	24 hrs

	4
	a. Low frequency errors of marginal importance 

b. Minor problems requiring research and testing 

c. Items requiring cooperative planning
	48 hrs


D.7.2.2. 

Onsite Support

If SLA offsite support does not resolve the issue, Successful Respondent shall arrive onsite to perform full service maintenance and support within an agreed-upon arrival time as noted below:

· Within eight (8) hours of initial notification of Level 1 and Level 2 priorities unless otherwise approved via telephone by authorized CPA contact person.  

· Within 24 hours of determination of need to be onsite for Level 3 and Level 4 priorities unless otherwise approved via telephone by authorized CPA contact person.  

If Successful Respondent cannot repair the Treasury Solution System hardware/software malfunction within eight (8) hours after being onsite for Level 1 and 2 priorities, and within 24 hours after being onsite for Level 3 and 4 priorities, notification of the malfunction shall be reported to Successful Respondent’s service manager and CPA’s designated representative. 
In its Offer, Respondent must describe and clearly define its procedures for problem or trouble escalation and resolution.  

D.8. 
Hardware 

D.8.1. 
Overview

Successful Respondent shall provide hardware, operating system software, configuration specifications and services, installation specifications and services and knowledge transfer that support the optimal performance of the proposed Treasury Solution. CPA reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to purchase or lease these components through other contracts, and not through any agreement resulting from this RFO. CPA seeks a server solution, not a mainframe solution.
Successful Respondent shall provide:

1. The appropriate system management tools to monitor the Treasury Solution for system failures, performance degradation, and errors.
2. Development tools for use by CPA staff developers to support and maintain the Treasury Solution.
Hardware or hardware upgrades, provided by Successful Respondent under any agreement resulting from this RFO, shall meet the minimum performance standards and stated functionality in this RFO, Successful Respondent’s Offer, and the Original Hardware Manufacturer’s published or promotional material.
Operating System Software programs or sets of operating software programs, provided by Successful Respondent under any agreement resulting from this RFO, shall meet the minimum performance standards and stated functionality in this RFO, Successful Respondent’s Offer and the Original Software Manufacturer’s published or promotional material.

D.8.2. 
Hardware Documentation 

Successful Respondent shall develop and provide appropriate functional, technical, and operational documentation for the Treasury Solution Hardware. Successful Respondent shall provide, at a minimum, the following documentation requirements: 

1. At least one (1) copy of all standard documentation for each of the Hardware components.
2. Written approval, which authorizes CPA to make additional copies of the Hardware Documentation.
3. Detailed System Architecture Document that includes the specifications, connections, and dependencies for all hardware components.

4. Configuration Plan that includes the configuration for all hardware components. 

5. Installation Plan that includes the installation steps for all hardware components.  

D.8.3. 
Capacity Planning 
In its Offer, Respondent shall provide an initial, high-level Capacity Planning plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes. Within ten (10) business days of the contract award date, Successful Respondent shall provide a detailed, comprehensive plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes for CPA approval. Successful Respondent shall re-evaluate and update the Capacity Planning plan as the project progresses.  Each update or modification to the plan requires CPA written approval.  
Successful Respondent shall provide a Capacity Planning Plan, for CPA approval, for each process, hardware and software to support the transaction volumes outlined in Appendix B (Software Requirements Specifications (SRS)) of this RFO. Successful Respondent shall provide the services detailed in the CPA-approved Capacity Planning Plan for each process; for a partial solution, if all processes are not implemented; and for the total Treasury Solution.
D.9.
Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support

D.9.1.  
Overview
Successful Respondent shall provide maintenance and technical support for any Treasury Solution hardware during the contract term. All such hardware maintenance and technical support shall meet or exceed the times detailed in Section II, Part D.9.2 (Hardware Service Level Agreement (SLA) and Escalation Plan) below.  Replacement or upgrade of equipment requiring system downtime shall take place only after coordination and mutual agreement between Successful Respondent and CPA.  If CPA procures the hardware outside of this RFO, Successful Respondent shall work with CPA to determine if a problem is a hardware or software issue.
In its Offer, Respondent shall include all costs to maintain and support the software for the initial term and each of the option years listed on the Mandatory Pricing Form, Section IV. CPA will not pay for any additional charges for travel.  On the Mandatory Pricing Form, Respondent shall also include alternative pricing for both (1) Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support with no remote access to CPA systems and (2) Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support with remote access permitted to CPA systems.

D.9.2. 
Hardware Service Level Agreement (SLA) and Escalation Plan 

Successful Respondent shall provide a Hardware Service Level Agreement (SLA) and Escalation Plan for CPA approval.  Successful Respondent shall provide services that, at a minimum adhere to the following CPA SLA and Escalation Schedule for each of the Eleven Business Processes of the Treasury Solution.  Successful Respondent shall provide the services detailed in the CPA-approved SLA and Escalation Plan.
D.9.2.1.  
Offsite Support 

Successful Respondent shall provide remote help desk and/or dial-in support for troubleshooting, maintenance and support as follows:

	PRIORITY LEVEL
Priority 1 – Highest Priority

Priority 4 – Lowest Priority


	DESCRIPTION
	RESPONSE TIME

	1
	a.  Critical processes are inoperable

b.  Damage to the IT infrastructure is probable

c.  There may be unacceptable political impact

d.  Treasury Operations’ immediate deadlines may not be met

e.  There may be an adverse financial impact to the State

f.  Users are unable to perform end of day tasks resulting in overtime work


	Immediate

	2
	a.  Users are unable to perform pending critical tasks

b.  The issue affects fulfilling a pending deadline

c.  Significant idle staff time is occurring

 
	4 hrs

	3
	a. Users are able to work now but will have a stopping point within one business day

b. A frequent issue of minor importance yet obviously affecting work efficiency

c. An intermittent problem of low frequency


	24 hrs

	4
	a. Low frequency errors of marginal importance 

b. Minor problems requiring research and testing 

c. Items requiring cooperative planning
	48 hrs


D.9.2.2. Onsite Support 

If SLA offsite support does not resolve the issue, Successful Respondent shall arrive onsite to perform full service maintenance and support within an agreed-upon arrival time as noted below:

· Within eight (8) hours of initial notification of Level 1 and Level 2 priorities unless otherwise approved via telephone by authorized CPA contact person.  

· Within 24 hours of determination of need to be onsite for Level 3 and Level 4 priorities unless otherwise approved via telephone by authorized CPA contact person.  

If Successful Respondent cannot repair the Treasury System hardware/software malfunction within eight (8) hours after being onsite for Level 1 and 2 priorities, and within 24 hours after being onsite for Level 3 and 4 priorities, notification of the malfunction shall be reported to Successful Respondent’s service manager and CPA’s designated representative. 
In its Offer, Respondent must describe and clearly define its procedures for problem or trouble  escalation and resolution.  

D.10. 
Optional Features, Products or Services

Respondents are encouraged to submit and describe in detail optional features, products or services that would benefit CPA but are not part of the minimum requirements of this RFO. For example, optional features, products, or services, may include training, additional maintenance, perpetual software licenses, increased service levels. In its Offer, Respondent shall describe with specificity any proposed optional features, products, or services. For pricing associated with optional items that exceed the minimum requirements, Respondent shall include the line item cost associated with each proposed optional feature, product, or service in the “Optional Features, Products or Services” pricing portion at the bottom of the Mandatory Pricing Form, Section IV of this RFO. 

 XE "Definitions" E. 
CPA Security Review

CPA shall review each deliverable for compliance with state and federal security requirements, CPA policies and applicable standards set forth by the National Institute for Standards and Technology (NIST) which include, but are not limited to, the following:  

1. Federal Information Security Management Act (FISMA) as specified in NIST SP 800-53; 

2. Security Standards for State Agencies as specified in 1 TAC 202, Subchapter B;  
3. State Agency Use of Electronic Transactions and Signed Records as specified in 1 TAC 203, Subchapter B;  
4. State Agency Web Sites as specified in 1 TAC 206, Subchapter B;

5. Payment Card Industry (PCI) Data Security Standards.  To view most current PCI documentation, please visit: www.PCISecurityStandards.org. 

CPA shall conduct security reviews throughout the contract term, including but not limited to high-level and low-level design, testing, acceptance, and production. Vulnerability testing of the host and application will be required before the system can move into a higher-level environment (e.g., from development to test, test to acceptance, and acceptance to production). All production systems are to be protected by CPA's network security infrastructure, and be both physically and logically separated from non-production environments. Successful Respondent shall provide sufficient technical resources in a timely manner to work with CPA in order to perform these reviews.
CPA shall conduct a risk assessment to evaluate the security aspects of the Treasury Solution and each component thereof, prior to placing the Treasury Solution, or applicable component, into a production environment.  CPA shall provide written notice to Successful Respondent of any risk identified in the risk assessment that requires resolution or remediation prior to placing the Treasury Solution or component thereof, into a production environment.  Within five (5) consecutive calendar days of the CPA written notice, Successful Respondent shall provide a remediation plan, including projected date of completion, to the CPA Project Manager.  CPA shall have the right and option to request removal of any Treasury Solution, or component thereof, that does not meet CPA security requirements and, in such event, neither party will have any further liability for the non-compliant Treasury Solution, or component thereof, under any PO resulting from this RFO.  

 XE "Definitions" F. 
Disclosure of Security Breach

Successful Respondent shall provide written notice to the CPA Project Manager within two (2) business days of (1) any use or disclosure of CPA sensitive or confidential data not authorized by any agreement resulting from this RFO and/or (2) any reasonable belief that an unauthorized individual has accessed sensitive or confidential data not authorized by any agreement resulting from this RFO. Successful Respondent’s written notice to the CPA Project Manager shall, at a minimum, identify:  

1. The nature of the unauthorized use or disclosure; 
2. The specific CPA data used or disclosed;

3. Who made the unauthorized use or received the unauthorized disclosure; 

4. What Successful Respondent has done or shall do to mitigate any deleterious effect of the unauthorized use or disclosure; and

5. What corrective action Successful Respondent has taken or shall take to prevent future similar unauthorized use or disclosure.

G.
Acceptance Criteria 
Prior to CPA’s authorization of payments under any agreement resulting from this RFO, CPA will evaluate the Treasury Solution provided.  Upon Successful Respondent’s delivery or completion of the Treasury Solution, or applicable component thereof e.g., one of the Eleven Business Processes, CPA shall evaluate the deliverable provided using the following Acceptance Criteria and any additional acceptance criteria agreed to prior to award and included in any agreement resulting from this RFO: 

1.   
The product(s)/service(s) must meet all specifications and Standards of Performance of the agreement, this RFO and Offer;

2. The product(s)/service(s) must comply with all published specifications; and
3. The product(s)/service(s) must successfully complete the Acceptance Test.
CPA shall provide written notice of acceptance of the Treasury Solution, or applicable component thereof, to Successful Respondent upon successful completion of the applicable Acceptance Test.  If the Treasury Solution, or component thereof, fails to meet any or all of the Acceptance Criteria, CPA shall notify Successful Respondent of such failure in writing and Successful Respondent will have five (5) business days to correct or improve the deliverable(s) so it will meet the Acceptance Criteria.  Thereafter, CPA shall have five (5) additional business days in which to re-conduct an Acceptance Test.  This process will be repeated, at CPA’s discretion, until CPA accepts the Treasury Solution, or component thereof.   CPA shall have the right and option to cancel the agreement and request removal of Treasury Solution software or hardware that fails to meet the Acceptance Test, in which event neither party will have any further liability for the applicable software, hardware, or services under any agreement resulting from this RFO.

 XE "Definitions" H. 
Workspace/Parking/Travel

CPA will provide Successful Respondent with access to a work area with electrical outlets to support Successful Respondent’s equipment (e.g., laptop computers) while Successful Respondent is on CPA premises. CPA shall also make fax machines and copy machines available to Successful Respondent.  Parking is available to Successful Respondent at state visitor lots located approximately one block from CPA’s office at the LBJ Building.

In its Offer, Respondent shall include any space and equipment requirements. Successful Respondent shall not invoice and CPA shall not pay any additional costs (e.g., travel, meal, or lodging expenses).

NOTE:  Successful Respondent is prohibited from using CPA’s equipment, CPA’s Location, or any other resources of CPA or the State of Texas for any purpose other than performing services under the contract resulting from this RFO.  For this purpose, equipment includes, but is not limited to, copy machines, computers and telephones using State of Texas long distance services.  Any charges incurred by Successful Respondent using CPA’s equipment for any purpose other than performing services under the contract resulting from this RFO shall be fully reimbursed by Successful Respondent to CPA immediately upon demand by CPA.  Such use shall constitute breach of contract and may result in termination of the contract and other remedies available to CPA under the contract and applicable law.
I. 
Independent Contractor 

Successful Respondent or Successful Respondent's employees, representatives, agents and any subcontractors shall serve as an independent contractor in providing the services under any PO resulting from this RFO. Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent's employees, representatives, agents and any subcontractors shall not be employees of CPA.  Should Successful Respondent subcontract any of the services required in this RFO, Successful Respondent expressly understands and acknowledges that in entering into such subcontract(s), CPA is in no manner liable to any subcontractor(s) of Successful Respondent.  In no event shall this provision relieve Successful Respondent of the responsibility for ensuring that the services rendered under all subcontracts are rendered in compliance with this RFO. 

J. 
Warranty of Performance 

Successful Respondent represents and warrants that its performance under any PO resulting from this RFO shall be conducted conscientiously in a professional and workmanlike manner and to the full extent of Successful Respondent’s talents and capabilities with due diligence and in full compliance with the highest professional standards of practice in the industry applicable to the services performed.

K. 
PO Term 

The initial term of any PO resulting from this RFO shall be from the date of award until August 31, 2009.  CPA may, in its sole discretion, exercise the option to extend the PO for up to (2) additional one (1) year periods. The periods are September 1, 2009 through August 31, 2010; and September 1, 2010 through August 31, 2011.  To exercise the option to extend the term, CPA will notify Successful Respondent thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the then-current period.  Notwithstanding the termination or expiration of the PO, certain provisions e.g., indemnification, confidentiality, right to audit, shall survive the termination or expiration of the PO.  
L.
Payments 

Payments to Successful Respondent under any PO resulting from this RFO will be based upon the schedule described in Section IV and any agreement resulting from this RFO.  CPA may in its sole discretion process payments on a monthly basis.  If the PO is terminated within the current term, Successful Respondent shall provide a refund or credit to CPA on a prorated basis, if applicable, within thirty (30) calendar days of CPA's notice of termination.  Payment shall be made in accordance with Texas Prompt Payment Act, Chapter 2251, Texas Government Code.
M. 
Discounts

If Successful Respondent at any time during the term of the PO provides a discount on the final negotiated contract costs, Successful Respondent will notify CPA in writing ten (10) days prior to effective date of discount.  CPA will generate a PO Change Notice and send a corrected PO to Successful Respondent.  If an early payment discount is available to CPA, then in its Offer Respondent must describe with specificity the early payment discount offered and the discount percentage that would apply to CPA’s early payment within ten, fifteen, twenty, or twenty-five calendar days after receipt of a correct invoice.
N. 
Addition and Deletion

CPA reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to add or delete products or services during the period(s) covered under the PO.  The rate at the time of the addition shall be the same as the rate quoted for the same model product or service herein.  Deletions shall be processed accordingly.  All additions or deletions will be processed through CPA’s Purchasing Section.  The effective date of any termination or addition will be no later than five (5) days after CPA’s written notification of said termination or addition.  For this purpose, written notification is defined as registered mail, regular mail, or facsimile transmission with confirmation of receipt.

For any additions, CPA’s Purchasing Section will provide a corrected PO to Successful Respondent, along with a letter indicating the time period covered for the applicable fee.  The total number of additions allowed to CPA is determined by the number CPA chooses to purchase.

For any deletions, CPA’s Purchasing Section will provide a corrected PO to Successful Respondent, along with a letter indicating the amount of the refund (if any), and the effective date of the deletion along with a letter indicating the deleted product/service and serial number, if applicable.

O. 
Liquidated Damages 

In submitting an Offer in response to this RFO, Respondent agrees that the measure of damages in the event of a default or breach by Successful Respondent may be difficult or impossible to calculate.  In the event that Successful Respondent fails to perform services or complete the obligations under this RFO in a timely manner, CPA may require Successful Respondent to pay, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, an amount equivalent to two percent (2%) of the total negotiated costs for those Services, awarded under any PO resulting from this RFO, per calendar day of delay. CPA may impose, but is not obligated to impose, these liquidated damages in lieu of monetary damages available to CPA under the Agreement or any applicable law.

P.
HUB Participation 

The State of Texas and CPA are committed to assisting Historically Underutilized Businesses (HUBs) through the procurement process.  In accordance with Sections 2161.181 and 2161.182, Texas Government Code, each state agency shall make a good faith effort to increase the contract awards for the purchase of goods or services to HUBs based on rules adopted to implement the disparity study described by Section 2161.002(c), Texas Government Code.  In accordance with Section 2161.252, Texas Government Code and 34 Texas Administrative Code §20.14, each state agency (including institutions of higher education) as defined by Section 2151.002, Texas Government Code that considers entering into a contract with an expected value of $100,000 or more shall, before the agency solicits bids, proposals, offers, or other applicable expressions of interest, determine whether subcontracting opportunities are probable under the contract.  If subcontracting opportunities are probable, each state agency’s invitation for bids or other purchase solicitation documents for construction, professional services, other services, and commodities with an expected value of $100,000 or more shall state that probability and require a HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP) and supporting documentation. 

CPA has determined that subcontracting opportunities are probable and requires all Respondents to review Section XIII of this RFO and complete the HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP). CPA has identified the subcontracting opportunities in Section XIII of this RFO.  For assistance in completing the HSP, please visit the website below for step by step information: http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/hub/hub-subcontracting-plan 

The HUB goals per 34 TAC §20.13 are: 11.9% for heavy construction other than building contracts; 26.1% for all building construction, including general contractors and operative builders contracts; 57.2% for all special trade construction contracts; 20% for professional services contracts; 33% for all other services contracts; and 12.6% for commodities contracts. 

CPA believes that this procurement falls under the following category:

Special Trade Construction ____      Professional Services ____      Other Services __X__       Commodities ____

Q. 
Respondent Documents

All Respondent documents that are related to the Services, this RFO, Respondent’s Offer, or a resulting PO, if any, including, but not limited to, boilerplate service agreements, service schedules, published specifications, are collectively referred to in this RFO as “Respondent Documents.”  Respondents shall include copies of all proposed Respondent Documents with Respondent’s Offer.  CPA reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to amend Respondent Documents to conform to this RFO and Texas law and offer them to Respondents for approval and signature prior to CPA’s issuance of any PO resulting from this RFO.  Respondent Documents that are (1) submitted as part of the Offer and (2) amended to conform to the RFO and PO, through mutual written agreement of Successful Respondent and CPA, in the described manner will be incorporated as part of the PO or other agreement resulting from the RFO. 

R. 
Respondent Exceptions 

If the Respondent takes any exceptions to any provisions of the RFO, these exceptions shall be specifically and clearly identified by Section in Respondent’s Offer in response to the RFO and the Respondent’s proposed alternative shall also be provided in the Offer.  Respondents cannot take a ‘blanket exception’ to the entire RFO.  If any Respondent takes a ‘blanket exception’ to the entire RFO or does not provide proposed alternative language, the Respondent’s Offer may be disqualified from further consideration.  

Respondents are strongly encouraged to submit written questions during the official question and answer period regarding any term or condition of this RFO and whether CPA may negotiate that provision under this particular RFO.

S.
Electronic Copy of Successful Respondent’s Offer 

Under House Bill 3430, 80th Texas Legislature, (transferring Section 2177.052, Texas Government Code, to Chapter 322, Texas Government Code and redesignating it as Section 322.020), and as per the following requirements, upon written request by CPA prior to PO issuance or contract signature, Successful Respondent (and no other Respondents) shall provide to CPA electronic copies of its complete Offer. Successful Respondent shall deliver to CPA a total of four (4) CDs with the following material prior to CPA’s issuance of a PO or signature on a contract, if any, resulting from this RFO:


Two CDs, each containing a complete copy of Successful Respondent’s Offer in pdf format.  A complete copy of the Offer includes all documents contained in the Offer submitted in response to this RFO including those documents with Successful Respondent’s signature.  These two identical CDs should be titled: “Complete copy of [Name of Successful Respondent]’s Offer. CPA RFO# 304-08-0441JS.”

Two CDs, each containing a copy of Successful Respondent’s Offer which Successful Respondent has excised, blacked out, or otherwise redacted information from its Offer that Successful Respondent considers to be confidential and exempt from public disclosure under the Texas Public Information Act, Chapter 552 of the Texas Government Code (this should be a de minimis portion, if any, of Successful Respondent’s Offer, such as social security numbers or e-mail addresses).  Each CD shall also contain an Appendix for  Successful Respondent’s Offer which provides a cross reference for the location of each piece of material redacted by  Successful Respondent and a general description of the redacted information.  These two identical CDs should be titled “For Public Release: Redacted Version of [Name of Successful Respondent]’s Offer and Appendix. CPA RFO# 304-08-0441JS.”
III. 
Offer Requirements

A.  Number of Copies Required

One (1) original of the Offer, ten (10) paper copies of the Offer, and one (1) electronic copy of the Offer on a standard CD must be delivered to the Issuing Office by the specified deadline.   Late Offers will not be accepted. See Section I.
B.  Format of Offer

All RFO responses must contain the information listed below.  Failure to do so may result in the Offer being excluded from consideration.  Offers must be organized as follows:

1. Cover Page.

2. Table of Contents.  The Offer must contain an organized, paginated table of contents corresponding to the sections and pages of the Offer.

3. Transmittal Letter/Executive Summary. (Maximum of eight (8) pages).  Respondent must submit with its Offer a transmittal letter/executive summary that identifies the entity submitting the offer and includes a commitment by that entity to provide the products and/or services required by CPA.  In this section of the Offer, the Respondent must present a concise summary of its proposed approach as well as a discussion of the highlights of the Offer, including its implementation plan and timing, and emphasis on any unique characteristics of the Offer. The transmittal letter/executive summary must state that the Offer is valid for at least 90 days. 
4. Respondent Questionnaire.   Respondent must include the following information in its Offer:

a. 
Respondent’s Contact Person.  Respondent must provide contact information for the individual who will be the contact person for the term of any PO resulting from this RFO. This information must include the following: name, title, email address, phone number and fax number.

b. 
Respondent Identifying Information.  Respondents must provide the following identifying information: 

(1) name and address of business entity submitting the proposal;

(2) all principals;

(3) type of business entity (e.g., corporation, partnership);

(4) state of incorporation or organization and principal place of business; 

(5) full name and address for each member, partner, and employee of Respondent who will perform Services; and

(6) full name and address for each member, partner, and employee of each proposed subcontractor who will perform Services.

c. References.  Respondent must provide a list of three (3) state agencies, corporations or other entities other than CPA for which Respondent has provided the requested items in the RFO during the past three (3) years.  CPA shall not be limited in contacting references provided by Respondents. CPA reserves the right to contact other agencies or entities with which Respondents or subcontractors are currently or have previously conducted business. For each of the three references, Respondent must provide the following information: 

(1) Agency or Entity:








Start and End Dates of Contract:







Description of Item/Services Provided:___________________________________

Description of processes and procedures used to manage the project: ___________

Description of the project organization and the roles and responsibilities 
performed by the Respondent and client personnel:_________________________
The names of all Respondent or subcontractor personnel involved with the 
referenced project that are also proposed for this project: ____________________
Total Contract Amount:_______________________________________________

Name of Agency/Entity Project Manager:________________________________

Name of Agency/Entity MIS or Technical Support Staff:____________________

Name of Agency/Entity Contact:




Telephone Number of Agency/Entity Contact:






Email Address of Agency/Entity Contact:






(2) Agency or Entity:








Start and End Dates of Contract:







Description of Item/Services Provided:___________________________________

Description of processes and procedures used to manage the project: ___________

Description of the project organization and the roles and responsibilities 
performed by the Respondent and client personnel:_________________________
The names of all Respondent or subcontractor personnel involved with the 
referenced project that are also proposed for this project: ____________________
Total Contract Amount:_______________________________________________

Name of Agency/Entity Project Manager:________________________________

Name of Agency/Entity MIS or Technical Support Staff:____________________

Name of Agency/Entity Contact:




Telephone Number of Agency/Entity Contact:






Email Address of Agency/Entity Contact:






(3) Agency or Entity:








Start and End Dates of Contract:







Description of Item/Services Provided:___________________________________

Description of processes and procedures used to manage the project: ___________

Description of the project organization and the roles and responsibilities 
performed by the Respondent and client personnel:_________________________
The names of all Respondent or subcontractor personnel involved with the 
referenced project that are also proposed for this project: ____________________
Total Contract Amount:_______________________________________________

Name of Agency/Entity Project Manager:________________________________

Name of Agency/Entity MIS or Technical Support Staff:____________________

Name of Agency/Entity Contact:




Telephone Number of Agency/Entity Contact:






Email Address of Agency/Entity Contact:






d. 
Cancellations or Terminations.  Respondent must list all contracts or purchase orders that Respondent executed or accepted within the last three (3) years and which were canceled or terminated prior to completion by any state agency or other entity with which Respondent contracted.  For each such contract or purchase order, Respondent must include a detailed explanation for the cancellation or termination and final resolution of the matter.  Include the names and telephone numbers of each such agency's or firm’s contact person.  If none, specify none.
e.
Financial Stability.  In its Offer, Respondent and its parent company, if applicable, must provide evidence of financial stability as follows:
(1)
Audited financial statements (Annual Reports) for each of the last three (3) years that include, at a minimum, the following:

1. External Auditor's Report.

2. Balance Sheet.

3. Income Statement.

4. Statement of Cash Flow.

5. Notes to Financial Statements.

(2)
Bank references, including bank name, contact name, address, and current telephone number of the given bank(s).

(3)
Where specific information requested is unavailable, the Respondent must state the reason for this unavailability and provide a substitute response which fulfills the intent of the originally requested item.


f. 
Company Profile. Respondent must provide a profile that:
(1)  
Describes the general nature of previous similar work performed by Respondent, particularly work in the last three (3) years;

(2) 
Describes the size and scope of all operations, including number of Respondent’s employees and years in business;

(3) 
Describes Respondent’s prior contracting experience with CPA and similar agencies; 

(4)
Describes applicable experience for itself and its subcontractors. The experience presented should match, whenever possible, the requirements presented in this RFO for the functional area; and

(4) 
Any other information Respondent believes is pertinent to this RFO.

g. 
Narrative.   Respondent must submit a detailed narrative explanation of how the offered products and/or services will meet the requirements of Section II of this RFO. In its Offer, Respondent must also provide detailed information on the following:

(1) Specify whether the Treasury Solution is an integral part of a total ERP solution and provide detailed descriptions of the ERP Treasury modules. If the Treasury Solution is separate from an ERP solution, Respondent, in its Offer, must clearly, accurately and comprehensively describe the Treasury Solution’s compatibility and integration with an ERP solution. (refer to Section II, Part D.1). 
(2) Describe the feasibility of Timeline A and Timeline B (refer to Section II, Part D.1).
(3) Describe how the Treasury Solution will integrate and interface with CPA’s existing legacy systems, and future architecture and environment (refer to Section II, Part C).

(4) Describe the Treasury Solution for each of the Eleven Business Processes (refer to Section II, Part D.2) including reporting for each deliverable using existing CPA Business Objects Software and Business Intelligence Data Warehouse. 

(5) Describe the Treasury Solution Services (refer to Section II, Part D.3): 

a) Project Management and Resource Management.  Respondent must fully describe its proposed project organization and staffing levels. Respondent must identify project personnel and their proposed roles and responsibilities.  For each project personnel, Respondent must provide a resume which includes the following information: (1) professional employment history, (2) education, (3) related professional training, (4) professional certifications.  In addition, Respondent must provide a Treasury Solution Organizational Chart depicting the project relationship of the proposed key personnel.

b) SDLC.
c) Hardware and Software Delivery and Installation.

d) Data Conversion.

e) Reporting.

f) Knowledge Transfer.

g) Business Continuity.

h) Disaster Recovery Plan.

The description of the Treasury Solution Services must include the following initial high level plans:

a)
Treasury Solution Project Plan for both Timeline A and B (refer to Section II, Part D.3.2.3)

b)
Treasury Solution Acceptance Test Plan (refer to Section II, Part D.3.2.3.)

c) 
SDLC Life Cycle Plan (refer to Section II, Part D.3.3.)

d) 
SDLC Conversion Plan (refer to Section II, Part D.3.3.)

e)
SDLC Unit Testing Test Plan (refer to Section II, Part D.3.3.)

f)
SDLC System/Integration Testing Plan (refer to Section II, Part D.3.3.)

g)
SDLC Parallel Testing Plan (refer to Section II, Part D.3.3.)

h)
SDLC Load Testing Plan (refer to Section II, Part D.3.3.)

i)
SDLC Performance Testing Plan (refer to Section II, Part D.3.3.)

j)
SDLC Acceptance Testing Plan (refer to Section II, Part D.3.3.)

k)
SDLC Regression Testing Plan (refer to Section II, Part D.3.3.)

l)
SDLC Implementation Plan (refer to Section II, Part D.3.3.)

m)  Data Conversion Plan (refer to Section II, Part D.3.5.)

n)
Report Development and Implementation Plan (refer to Section II, Part D.3.3.6) 

o)
Knowledge Transfer Plan (refer to Section II, Part D.3.7.)

p)  Disaster Recovery Plan (refer to Section II, Part D.3.8.)

(6) Describe the Formal Training services and provide an initial high level Formal Training Plan (refer to Section II, Part D.4).

(7) Describe the Treasury Solution Enterprise Service Bus (ESB) or functional equivalent (refer to Section II, Part D.5) including a description of how Respondent will provide problem or trouble resolution, its escalation procedures and the timeframes in which Respondent will respond to CPA’s request for maintenance and technical support.
(8) Describe Treasury Solution software. 

a)
Address scalability; schedules and outlines for corrective and preventative maintenance; compliance with accessibility and usability standards; performance statistics for evaluation purposes and acceptance criteria.

b)
Identify by name and version number each proposed software product.  For each software product, identify the proposed number and type of licenses (e.g., server, seat, portal, concurrent, end user, developer licenses) necessary to implement the Treasury Solution (refer to Section II, Part D.6).  Also, describe the licensure pricing methodology used to derive the software costs on the Mandatory Pricing Form. 
c)
For each of the Eleven Business Processes, identify by name the software program(s) necessary to implement the applicable process.
(9) Describe the Treasury Solution Software Maintenance and Technical Support (refer to Section II, Part D.7) including a description of how Respondent will provide problem or trouble resolution, its escalation procedures and the timeframes in which Respondent will respond to CPA’s request for maintenance and technical support.

(10) Describe the Treasury Solution Hardware. The description should address:  architecture, servers, data storage, operating system software; configuration specifications and services; installation specifications and services that support optimal performance of the proposed Treasury Solution (refer to Section II, Part D.8).   The Respondent should also provide an initial, high-level Capacity Planning plan for each of the Eleven Business Processes.
(11) Describe the Treasury Solution Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support (refer to Section II, Part D.9) including a description of how Respondent will provide problem or trouble resolution, its escalation procedures and the timeframes in which Respondent will respond to CPA’s request for maintenance and technical support.

(12) Describe the Treasury Solution security features.  Specifically, address how the Treasury Solution is compliant with the following state and federal requirements: 

· FISMA:  NIST SP 800-53,

· 1 TAC §202, Subchapter B:  Security Standards for State Agencies,

· 1 TAC §203, Subchapter B:  State Agency Use of Electronic Transactions and Signed Records,

· 1 TAC §206, Subchapter B:  State Agency Web Sites, and 

· PCI standards (refer to Section II, Part E).
(13) Describe how the Treasury Solution is compliant with the requirements in 1 TAC §213, Subchapter B:  Electronic and Information Resources for State Agencies.  Provide the URL to Respondent’s Voluntary Product Accessibility Template (VPAT) for reviewing compliance with the State of Texas Accessibility requirements (based on the federal standards established under Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act).  If that is not available, indicate that the product/service accessibility information is available from the General Services Administration “Buy Accessible Wizard” (http://www.buyaccessible.gov).   A Respondent that is not listed with the “Buy Accessible Wizard” or is unable to supply a URL to its VPAT shall provide CPA with a report that addresses the same accessibility criteria in substantively the same format. Information regarding the “Buy Accessible Wizard” and the  VPAT is located at http://www.section508.gov/.

(14) Describe any Optional Features, Products or Services that would benefit CPA, but are not part of the minimum requirements of this RFO (refer to Section II, Part D.10). Respondent shall provide line-item pricing for each option on the Mandatory Pricing Form in Section IV. 

(15) Describe with specificity any early payment discount offered and the discount percentage that would apply to CPA’s early payment within ten, fifteen, twenty, or twenty-five calendar days after receipt of a correct invoice (refer to Section II, Part M).

5.
Mandatory Pricing Form. 

The Respondent must include in its Offer a Mandatory Pricing Sheet.  See Section IV.

a.
All costs associated with the offered Treasury Solution must be reflected on the Mandatory Pricing Form and described in the Offer.  These costs shall include, but not be limited to, shipping charges, freight charges, and any other costs associated with the Successful Respondent’s performance under any agreement resulting from this RFO.
b. If Optional Features, Products, or Services are offered, please refer to Section II, Part D.10 of the RFO.

6.  
Execution of Offer. 


Information required by Section VI must be completed with appropriate signatures and included in the Offer.

7.  
Conflict of Interest Form. 


Information required by Section VII must be completed with appropriate signatures and included in the Offer.

8.  
Criminal Conviction Certification.

Information required by Section VIII must be completed with appropriate signatures and included in the Offer.

9.  
Nondisclosure Agreement. 


Information required by Section IX must be completed with appropriate signatures and included in the Offer.

10.  Insurance and Bonds. 


Information required by Section X must be completed with appropriate signatures and included in the Offer.

11.  Confidential Tax/Vendor Information Agreement. 


Information required by Section XI must be completed with appropriate signatures and included in the Offer.

12.  Approval Form to Copy Documentation. 


Information required by Section XII must be completed with appropriate signatures and included in the Offer.

13.  HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP) & Supporting Documentation.


Information required by Section XIII must be completed with appropriate signatures and included in the Offer.

For assistance in completing the HSP, contact the CPA HUB Administrator at 800-531-5441 Ext. 34120 or visit the website below for step by step information: http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/hub/hub-subcontracting-plan. 

IF Respondent INTENDS to subcontract, the following sections must be completed:  Sections 1-8 and Section 10
IF Respondent DOES NOT intend to subcontract, the following sections must be completed: Sections 1, 2, 9 and 10

IV.
Mandatory Pricing Form 
	

	Respondents must include all costs for providing the Treasury Solution as defined in this RFO for the items listed on the Mandatory Pricing Form.  CPA requires line-item pricing to allow CPA to select a partial solution if not all of the Treasury Solution components are selected for implementation. CPA is requesting maintenance and technical support costs be quoted as an annual fee; however, CPA may, in its sole discretion, authorize payments on a monthly basis.  All costs are FOB destination with title being transferred upon CPA’s written acceptance. 

Timeline A:  Processes 1-3 Go-Live on or before 5:00pm CZT 11/26/2008, and Processes 4-11 Go-Live on or before 5:00pm CZT 12/31/2009.


Timeline B:  Processes 1-3 Go-Live on or before 5:00pm CZT 11/26/2008, and Processes 4-11 Go-Live on or before 5:00pm CZT 12/31/2010.


* SUBTOTAL Process 1-11 Hardware and Software must include costs for all services for all Eleven Business Processes, as detailed in Section II, Part D.3.

**  99.99% Availability:  The server hardware operational availability must meet or exceed 24x7/365 after Go-Live with system availability of 99.99% i.e., unscheduled downtime must not exceed 0.01% per year. Scheduled downtime must not exceed 120 minutes in any 12 month calendar period. 
*** 99.999% Availability:  The server hardware operational availability must meet or exceed 24x7/365 after Go-Live with system availability of 99.999% i.e., unscheduled downtime must not exceed 0.001% per year. Scheduled downtime must not exceed 120 minutes in any 12 month calendar period. 
**** The pricing for Treasury Operations’ Business Processes & Treasury Solution Services must include the costs for all of the services for each of the Eleven Business Processes and the Treasury Solution Services as detailed in Section II, Parts D.2 and D.3.
***** If block or volume discount pricing is available for the software licenses for COTS or Customized COTS, please provide that information on a Mandatory Pricing Form Addendum which is in the format of the Mandatory Pricing Form. 

	 
	** 99.99% Availability 
	*** 99.999% Availability 

	
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B

	TOTAL Treasury Solution  (TOTAL Costs for all Eleven Business Processes) 

	
	**** Treasury Operations’ Business Processes Nos. 1 -11
& Treasury Solution Services 
	$
	$
	$
	$

	
	
	
	
	

	 
	Hardware
	$ 
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Operating System Software
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	Software
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Costs
(COTS - Commercial Off-the-Shelf Software)
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	
	***** COTS License Cost per seat 

(if applicable)
	$
	$
	$
	$

	* SUBTOTAL Processes 1-11 Hard. & Soft.
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Formal Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	Technical Support Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	End-user Business Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support (with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 


9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 


9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support (ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 TOTAL SOLUTION PRICE (Processes 1-11)
	$
	$
	$
	$


THIS FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH OFFER

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
	 
	** 99.99% Availability 
	*** 99.999% Availability 

	
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B


	1. Process Electronic & Miscellaneous Financial Transactions (See Section II, Parts D.2.2 and D.3) 

	 
	
	**** Treasury Operations’ Business Process No. 1

& Treasury Solution Services
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	
	***** COTS License Cost per seat 

(if applicable)
	$
	$
	$
	$

	SUBTOTAL Process 1 Customization
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Formal Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	Technical Support Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	End-user Business Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support  (with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support (ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	TOTAL PROCESS 1  
	$
	$
	$
	$


THIS FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH OFFER

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
	 
	** 99.99% Availability 
	*** 99.999% Availability 

	
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B


	2. Deposit State Agency Receipts   (See Section II, Parts D.2.3 and D.3)

	 
	
	**** Treasury Operations’ Business Process No. 2

& Treasury Solution Services
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	
	***** COTS License Cost per seat 

(if applicable)
	$
	$
	$
	$

	SUBTOTAL Process 2 Customization
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Formal Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	Technical Support Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	End-user Business Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support (with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support (ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	TOTAL PROCESS 2  
	$
	$
	$
	$


THIS FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH OFFER

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
	 
	** 99.99% Availability 
	*** 99.999% Availability 

	
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B


	3. Process Deposit & Disbursement Returns   (See Section II, Parts D.2.4 and D.3)

	 
	
	**** Treasury Operations’ Business Process No. 3

& Treasury Solution Services
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	
	***** COTS License Cost per seat 

(if applicable)
	$
	$
	$
	$

	SUBTOTAL Process 3 Customization
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Formal Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	Technical Support Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	End-user Business Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support (with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support (ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	TOTAL PROCESS 3  
	$
	$
	$
	$


THIS FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH OFFER

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
	 
	** 99.99% Availability 
	*** 99.999% Availability 

	
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B


	4.  Allocate Earned Fund Interest   (See Section II, Parts D.2.5 and D.3)

	 
	
	**** Treasury Operations’ Business Process No. 4

& Treasury Solution Services
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	
	***** COTS License Cost per seat 

(if applicable)
	$
	$
	$
	$

	SUBTOTAL Process 4 Customization
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Formal Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	Technical Support Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	End-user Business Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support (with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support (ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	TOTAL PROCESS 4 
	$
	$
	$
	$


THIS FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH OFFER

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
	 
	** 99.99% Availability 
	*** 99.999% Availability 

	
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B


	5. Reconcile Statewide Funds   (See Section II, Parts D.2.6 and D.3)

	 
	
	**** Treasury Operations’ Business Process No. 5

& Treasury Solution Services
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	
	***** COTS License Cost per seat 

(if applicable)
	$
	$
	$
	$

	SUBTOTAL Process 5 Customization
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Formal Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	Technical Support Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	End-user Business Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support  (with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support  (ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	TOTAL PROCESS 5  
	$
	$
	$
	$


THIS FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH OFFER

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
	 
	** 99.99% Availability 
	*** 99.999% Availability 

	
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B


	6. Perform Cash Management   (See Section II, Parts D.2.7 and D.3)

	 
	
	**** Treasury Operations’ Business Process No. 6

& Treasury Solution Services
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	
	***** COTS License Cost per seat 

(if applicable)
	$
	$
	$
	$

	SUBTOTAL Process 6 Customization
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Formal Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	Technical Support Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	End-user Business Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support  (with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support (ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	TOTAL PROCESS 6  
	$
	$
	$
	$


THIS FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH OFFER

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
	 
	** 99.99% Availability 
	*** 99.999% Availability 

	
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B


	7. Manage Assets & Securities   (See Section II, Parts D.2.8 and D.3)

	 
	
	**** Treasury Operations’ Business Process No. 7

& Treasury Solution Services
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	
	***** COTS License Cost per seat 

(if applicable)
	$
	$
	$
	$

	SUBTOTAL Process 7 Customization
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Formal Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	Technical Support Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	End-user Business Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support (with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support (ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	TOTAL PROCESS 7  
	$
	$
	$
	$


THIS FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH OFFER

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
	 
	** 99.99% Availability 
	*** 99.999% Availability 

	
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B


	8. Execute Agency Disbursements   (See Section II, Parts D.2.9 and D.3)

	 
	
	**** Treasury Operations’ Business Process No. 8

& Treasury Solution Services
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	
	***** COTS License Cost per seat 

(if applicable)
	$
	$
	$
	$

	SUBTOTAL Process 8 Customization
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Formal Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	Technical Support Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	End-user Business Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support  (with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support (ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	TOTAL PROCESS 8  
	$
	$
	$
	$


THIS FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH OFFER

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
	 
	** 99.99% Availability 
	*** 99.999% Availability 

	
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B


	9. Perform Agency 311 Accounting Services   (See Section II, Parts D.2.10 and D.3)

	 
	
	**** Treasury Operations’ Business Process No. 9

& Treasury Solution Services
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	
	***** COTS License Cost per seat 

(if applicable)
	$
	$
	$
	$

	SUBTOTAL Process 9 Customization
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Formal Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	Technical Support Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	End-user Business Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support  (with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support (ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	TOTAL PROCESS 9  
	$
	$
	$
	$


THIS FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH OFFER

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
	 
	** 99.99% Availability 
	*** 99.999% Availability 

	
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B


	10. Provide Teller Services   (See Section II, Parts D.2.11 and D.3)

	 
	
	**** Treasury Operations’ Business Process No. 10

& Treasury Solution Services
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	
	***** COTS License Cost per seat 

(if applicable)
	$
	$
	$
	$

	SUBTOTAL Process 10 Customization
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Formal Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	Technical Support Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	End-user Business Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support (with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support (ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	TOTAL PROCESS 10  
	$
	$
	$
	$


THIS FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH OFFER

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
	 
	** 99.99% Availability 
	*** 99.999% Availability 

	
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B


	11. Provide Lockbox Services   (See Section II, Parts D.2.12 and D.3)

	 
	
	**** Treasury Operations’ Business Process No. 11

& Treasury Solution Services
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	
	***** COTS License Cost per seat 

(if applicable)
	$
	$
	$
	$

	SUBTOTAL Process 11 Customization
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Formal Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	Technical Support Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	End-user Business Training
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support (with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Software Maintenance and Technical Support (ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	Customization Of COTS Maintenance & Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	(ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	TOTAL PROCESS 11  
	$
	$
	$
	$


THIS FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH OFFER

The remainder of this page is intentionally left blank.
	 
	** 99.99% Availability 
	*** 99.999% Availability 

	
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B
	Timeline A 
	Timeline B


	Additional Requirements

	 
	Enterprise Service Bus (ESB)

See Section II, Part D.5
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	
	 
	 
	 
	 

	 
	ESB Maintenance and Support

(with NO Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 


9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 


9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	ESB Maintenance and Support

(ALLOWING Vendor remote access to CPA systems)
	 
	 
	 
	 

	
	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	
	 
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	TOTAL ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS
	$
	$
	$
	$


	Optional Features, Products or Services

(If  Optional Features, Products or Services are offered, please refer to Section II, 
Part D.10 of the RFO.)

	 
	
	 
	 

 
	 

	 
	Optional Features, Products or Services
	
	
	
	

	
	
	Initial Year: 

Date of Award through 8/31/2009
	$
	$
	$
	$

	
	First Option Year: 

9/1/2009 through 8/31/2010
	$
	$
	$
	$

	
	Second Option Year: 

9/1/2010 through 8/31/2011
	$
	$
	$
	$

	 
	 
	 
	 
	

	TOTAL OPTIONAL FEATURES, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES
	$
	$
	$
	$


THIS FORM MUST BE SUBMITTED WITH OFFER
V.
Standard Terms and Conditions

1. Terms and Conditions.  This Section V, Standard Terms and Conditions, is incorporated into this Request for Offers (RFO) for all purposes.  See representation and signature required on the Execution of Offer page of this RFO.

2. Contract Award; Copyright; Reissuance.  A response to a RFO is an Offer to contract with the State based upon the terms, conditions and specifications contained in the RFO.  Responses (Offers) do not become contracts with CPA unless, until and to the extent, a duly authorized representative of CPA issues a valid CPA Purchase Order (PO).  CPA reserves the right to reject, in its sole discretion, all or any part of any Offers, waive minor technicalities and reserves the right to negotiate price and other provisions with all Respondents or no Respondents and award a PO in the best interests of CPA and the State.  CPA's waiver of any deviations in any Offers will not constitute a modification of this RFO and will not preclude CPA from asserting all rights against Respondent for failure to fully comply with all terms and conditions of this RFO.  CPA reserves the right to make any corrections or include additional requirements in the PO prior to issuance which are necessary for CPA's compliance, as an agency of the State of Texas, with all state and federal requirements.  CPA reserves the right to disqualify any Offer which asserts any copyright on any CPA-created form which is specifically designated by this RFO to be a form that must be completed and included in an Offer submitted in response to this RFO e.g., Mandatory Pricing Form and Sections VI, VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, XII, XIII of this RFO.  CPA may reissue or issue another RFO for the requested items described in this RFO or similar items at any time.

3. Pricing; F.O.B. Destination.  All pricing must be submitted in the format described in the Mandatory Pricing Form(s) and must comply with these requirements.  If a trade discount is shown on the Offer, it should be deducted and net line extensions shown.  Respondent must be willing to negotiate from Offer prices.  “Discount from list” Offers are not acceptable unless specifically requested.  Cash discounts will not be considered in determining the best value.  All cash discounts offered will be taken if earned.  All Respondents must quote F.O.B. destination; otherwise, Respondent must quote complete cost to deliver as specified in the RFO.  All Respondents must quote unit price on quantity and unit of measure specified.  Prices must be extended with total shown.  In case of errors in extension in Offers, unit prices shall govern.  Offers subject to unlimited price increases will not be considered.  Offers subject to percentage price increases will not be considered.

4. Additional Specifications.  Respondents guarantee and warrant that all requested items offered will meet or exceed all specifications of this RFO.  All items offered shall be new, in first class condition, including containers suitable for shipment and storage, unless otherwise indicated in this RFO.  Samples, when requested, must be furnished free of expense to CPA.  Samples will be returned to Respondent, on request, at Respondent's expense.  Each sample should be marked with Respondent's name, address, and CPA’s requisition number.  No substitutions or cancellations are permitted without prior written approval of CPA's Purchasing Section.  
5. Testing; Acceptance; Return; Revocation.  Prior to award and/or payment, all samples will be subject to inspection and testing by CPA and/or the State of Texas.  CPA reserves the right to test sample requested items prior to award under this RFO and all costs of such testing shall be paid by Respondent.  After award and prior to payment, CPA may conduct acceptance testing on the requested items delivered under any resulting PO.  If the delivered and installed requested items fail to meet or exceed the acceptance criteria or any other requirement of this RFO or CPA’s PO, CPA may refuse to accept the requested items.  If CPA refuses to accept the requested items, CPA shall return such requested items at Successful Respondent's sole expense.  If the delivered requested items meet or exceed all conditions and requirements of this RFO, CPA shall notify Successful Respondent in writing that Successful Respondent may submit an invoice to CPA's Accounts Payable Division for such requested items.  CPA reserves the right to revoke prior acceptance for, among other things, latent defects.

6. Delivery; Dates; Delays; Delivery Hours. Regardless of whether the latest acceptable delivery date is specified in Mandatory Pricing Form of this RFO, Respondent must list the number of days required to place equipment or goods in CPA’s designated location under normal conditions.  Failure to state a delivery time obligates Respondent to complete delivery in 14 calendar days or by latest acceptable delivery date specified in Section II or the Mandatory Pricing Form of this RFO.  Unrealistically short or long delivery promises may cause an Offer to be disregarded.  Consistent failure to meet delivery promises without valid reason may result in Respondent's removal from the Texas Procurement and Support Services’s (TPASS’s) Centralized Master Bidders List.  If Respondent determines that it will be unable to comply with any schedule deadline or delivery of the requested items required under the PO, Respondent will notify CPA in advance in writing of the expected delay, the reason for the delay, and the date by which the requested items may be expected.  CPA may, in its sole discretion, approve such delay in writing.  Notwithstanding anything in this Part 6 to the contrary, CPA reserves the right to terminate all or any part of the PO and CPA does not waive any rights or remedies available to CPA for Successful Respondent's nonperformance under the PO.  Delivery must be made during normal working hours only, unless prior written approval for delivery before or after normal working hours has been obtained from CPA's Purchasing Section.

7. Time for Submission.  Offers must be time stamped at CPA's Purchasing Section before the hour and date specified in Section I of this RFO.  Late Offers properly identified will be returned to Respondent unopened.  Late Offers will not be considered under any circumstances.  

8. CPA's Address.  When sending Offers via the U.S. Postal Service, please use the Post Office address which is listed in Section I of this RFO.  When using a delivery service, which requires a street address, please use CPA's street address which is listed in Section I of this RFO.  Note that the ZIP codes are different.

9. Respondent Identification.  Offers must include Respondent’s Texas Identification Number, which is the taxpayer number assigned and used by CPA.  If this number is not known, provide the Respondent’s Federal Employer’s Identification Number, if any, or for sole proprietors that do not have a Texas Identification Number or Federal Employer’s Identification Number, provide Respondent’s Social Security Number.

10. No Alterations or Withdrawals of Offer after Deadline.  Offers cannot be altered or amended after the deadline specified in Section I of this RFO.  Any alterations made before this deadline must be initialed by the Respondent or his authorized agent.  No Offers can be withdrawn after this deadline without approval by CPA's Purchasing Section based on a written acceptable reason.

11. Selected Definitions. This Part defines the following terms as used throughout this RFO: employee, relative and financial interest.  The term “employee” includes any individuals who, on behalf of Respondent, will or may participate in any contract resulting from this RFO.  The term "employee" includes all officers, personnel, replacement personnel, agents, subcontractors and other representatives of Respondent regardless of how employed or contracted by Respondent.  Successful Respondent’s employees are not and will not be considered employees of CPA.  Successful Respondent is solely responsible for its employees and for providing quality assurance review of all deliverables prior to their delivery to CPA under the PO.  The term “relative” includes a current or former CPA’s employee’s spouse, father, mother, brother, sister, son or stepson, daughter or stepdaughter, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, son-in-law, or daughter-in-law.  The term “financial interest” means receiving, or right to receive, money or other valuable property or benefits under the actual or proposed contract; holding a position in a business such as a principal, officer, director, trustee, partner, employee, or the like, or holding any position of management; holding any of the outstanding debt of a person directly involved in the proposed or resulting contract; or owning stock or other interest in the business.

12. Tie Offers.  Consistent and continued tie Offers could cause rejection of Offers by CPA's Purchasing and Contracting Sections and/or investigation of antitrust violations.   

13. Facsimile Offers.   If facsimile responses are allowed for this RFO, facsimile responses to any RFO must show: RFO Requisition number, opening date, description (brand, model, etc.) of the requested items submitted, and scheduled maintenance periods.  If facsimile responses are allowed for this RFO, CPA will accept facsimile responses if CPA receives an identical original and correct number of additional copies by 5 p.m. the next business day.  CPA will not be responsible for Offers being received late, illegible, incomplete, or otherwise non-responsive due to failure of electronic equipment or operator error.
14. Mail Preferred.  RFOs are issued to allow sufficient time for receipt of the preferred mail response.  CPA provides facsimile service under Part 13 of this Section V of this RFO as a convenience only.  

15. Attachments.  CPA will not consider any terms and conditions or other documents attached to an Offer as part of the Offer unless the Respondent specifically and prominently refers to each of them in the Transmittal Letter with its Offer.  In addition, see other Parts of this Section V of this RFO, for example, Parts 16, 17, 18, 19, 20 and 21, regarding limitations on terms and conditions or attachments to Respondent's Offer.  CPA reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to reject any Respondent terms and conditions or other documents or attachments as part of Respondent's Offer.
16. Incorporation of Entire RFO.  Except as otherwise provided in the negotiated terms and conditions, if any, that are expressly identified as such in the formal signed agreement or PO resulting from this RFO, this entire RFO applies to and becomes part of any such agreement or PO.  
17. Agreement between CPA & Respondent.  Except as otherwise provided in the negotiated terms and conditions, if any, that are expressly identified as such in the formal signed agreement or PO resulting from this RFO, the entire agreement between CPA and Successful Respondent shall consist of the following documents:
The PO and PO Change Notices, if any;

The RFO; and 

Successful Respondent’s Offer.
18. Authority to Bind CPA; Execute Documents.  Only the Comptroller or the Comptroller’s authorized delegate has authority to execute any documents or grant any permission on behalf of CPA with respect to this RFO or any resulting PO.  CPA’s Purchasing Section has authority to issue the PO and PO Change Notices.

19. Conflicting Provisions.  Except as otherwise provided in the negotiated terms and conditions, if any, that are expressly identified as such in the formal signed agreement or PO resulting from this RFO, in the event of conflicting terms or provisions between this RFO, the PO (and any PO Change Notices issued) and Respondent's Offer, this RFO and the PO and the PO Change Notices, if any, will control. 

20. Unacceptable Terms in Respondent's Offer.  No CPA action, including, but not limited to, issuance of a PO, will constitute an acceptance of conflicting terms, conditions or attachments in Respondent’s Offer; however, this lack of acceptance by CPA shall not apply to the negotiated terms and conditions, if any, that are expressly identified as such in the formal signed agreement or PO resulting from this RFO.   Such negotiated terms and conditions shall take precedence over the other documents that collectively constitute the contract as specifically provided in the formal signed agreement or PO resulting from this RFO.

Proposed terms and conditions that may violate Texas law applicable to the specific procurement or may be unacceptable to CPA for inclusion in any formal signed agreement or PO resulting from the RFO include:



Offers that incorporate the laws of a State other than Texas;



Requirements for prepayment;



Limitations on CPA's remedies;



Requirements that CPA indemnify the Respondent;



Requirements that Respondent's documents control in case of conflicts;

Requirements that Respondent's documents control even if Respondent accepts or acknowledges the PO; and



Disclaimer of warranties.

Respondents are encouraged to submit questions regarding this Part 20, or any other provisions of this RFO, during the official question and answer period specified in this RFO or otherwise to the designated contact person for this RFO if there is no such period for this RFO.

21. Specifications; Performance.  Respondent will provide the requested items of the quality and in the manner described in this RFO.  Respondent's failure to conform to all requirements of this RFO may, among other things, result in CPA's withholding of acceptance and payments under the PO, CPA's cancellation of all or part of the PO, CPA’s revocation of any prior acceptance and Respondent’s refund of amounts paid prior to revocation of acceptance.

22. Respondent's Costs.  Respondent will bear all costs and expenses for the provision of the requested items required by this RFO and the PO.  All such costs and expenses are included in the prices detailed in the PO.  No other amounts will be paid.

23. Prepayments.  CPA, in its sole discretion, reserves the right to the extent permitted by Texas Law and CPA regulations to prepay for any requested items delivered to or provided to CPA by Successful Respondent in its performance under the PO.  CPA may inspect, test and evaluate the requested items prior to acceptance and payment.

24. Refunds.  Successful Respondent will promptly refund or credit within thirty (30) calendar days any funds erroneously paid by CPA which are not expressly authorized under the PO. 

25. Invoicing; Withholding of Payments.  Respondent will submit two (2) copies of an itemized invoice showing the PO number on all copies to CPA’s Accounts Payable Division, for all requested items, which have been delivered, inspected, tested, evaluated and accepted by CPA.  

26. Termination and Cancellation Circumstances.   The PO may be terminated or cancelled in any one of the following circumstances:

26.1. Mutual Agreement.  Upon the mutual written agreement of CPA and Successful Respondent, the PO may be terminated or cancelled.

26.2. CPA Upon 30 days Notice.  CPA may, in its sole discretion, terminate or cancel the PO with thirty (30) calendar days written notice to Successful Respondent.  Upon termination under this provision, Successful Respondent shall refund to CPA any amounts attributable to the terminated months within thirty (30) days of the termination.

26.3. Successful Respondent's Nonperformance.  If Successful Respondent fails to comply with any requirement of the PO, including, but not limited to, this RFO, CPA may immediately terminate or cancel all or any part of the PO, may obtain substitute requested items, may withhold acceptance and payments to Successful Respondent, may revoke any prior acceptance, may require Successful Respondent to refund amounts paid prior to revocation of acceptance and may pursue all rights and remedies against Successful Respondent under the PO and any applicable law.  In addition, CPA will report defaulting Successful Respondent to TPASS for TPASS's possible action against defaulting Successful Respondent. 
26.4. Availability of State Funds; Legislative Action; Necessity of Performance.  The PO is subject to termination or cancellation, without penalty to CPA, either in whole or in part, subject to the availability of state funds.  CPA is a state agency whose authority and appropriations are subject to actions of the Texas Legislature.  If CPA becomes subject to a legislative change, revocation of statutory authority, or lack of appropriated funds which would render either CPA’s or Successful Respondent’s delivery or performance under the PO impossible or unnecessary, the PO will be terminated or cancelled and be deemed null and void.  In the event of a termination or cancellation under this Part, CPA will not be liable to Successful Respondent for any damages, which are caused or associated with such termination, or cancellation and CPA will not be required to give prior notice.  

CPA reserves the right to recover reasonable costs, fees, expenses, and other amounts or damages available to CPA under the PO or under applicable law, including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees and court costs, if termination or cancellation is at Successful Respondent's request or if termination or cancellation is for cause.  This right is in addition to any other remedies available to CPA under the PO or under applicable law.  CPA reserves the right to pursue any and all applicable rights and remedies if the PO is terminated for any reason and CPA expressly waives no such rights or remedies.

27. Substitute Hardware, Software, Services or Warranties.  In the event CPA terminates or cancels the PO for Successful Respondent’s nonperformance or for cause, CPA may procure, upon such reasonable terms and in such manner as it deems appropriate, substitute requested items similar to those so terminated or cancelled and Respondent will be liable to CPA for any excess or additional costs incurred by CPA in acquiring such requested items plus court costs and attorneys' fees.  CPA's recovery of costs under this Part 27 is in addition to any other remedies available to CPA under the PO or under applicable law.

28. Notice of Termination or Cancellation Delivery.  Any termination by CPA of the PO, which requires notice, may be accomplished by CPA's delivery to Successful Respondent of a notice of termination or cancellation specifying that the PO is terminated or cancelled.

29. Hours.  If requested by CPA, Successful Respondent will provide delivery on-site at CPA five (5) days a week, Monday through Friday, 8:00 am to 5:00 pm, excluding weekends and State of Texas holidays; unless otherwise defined in Section II of this RFO.  

30. Respondent Assignments.  Respondent hereby assigns to CPA any and all claims for overcharges associated with this contract which arise under the antitrust laws of the United States 15 U.S.C.A. Section 1, et seq., and which arise under the antitrust laws of the State of Texas, Texas Business and Commerce Code Section 15.01, et seq.   See also Part 38 of Section V of this RFO.
31. CPA’s Tax Exemption; Independent Contractor; Payment of Taxes by Respondent.  Purchases made for State use are exempt from the State Sales Tax and Federal Excise Tax.  Respondents must not include taxes in Offers.  CPA will furnish Tax Exemption Certificates upon request.  Successful Respondent will serve as an independent contractor under any PO resulting from this RFO.  Successful Respondent must be able to demonstrate on-site compliance with the Federal Tax Reform Act of 1986 dealing with issuance of Form W-2’s to Respondent’s employees.  Successful Respondent will be solely responsible for payment of all taxes, including, but not limited to, state, federal, foreign, or local taxes, income taxes, withholding taxes, social security taxes, pension contributions, and any other form of payroll or any other taxes, for Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent’s employees.  CPA will have no responsibility for payment of any such taxes or amounts related to such taxes.  At Successful Respondent’s sole cost and expense, Successful Respondent will secure and maintain any and all insurance premiums which are required by this RFO, the PO or are necessary to protect the interests of the State of Texas and CPA or which Successful Respondent may need or desire for Successful Respondent or Successful Respondent’s employees. Successful Respondent will be responsible for payment of all taxes, including, but not limited to, state, federal, foreign, or local taxes, including income tax, withholding tax, social security tax, pension contributions, and any other form of payroll or other taxes, for all Successful Respondent’s employees. Successful Respondent shall indemnify CPA and pay to CPA all costs, penalties, losses, and other amounts resulting from the Successful Respondent’s omission or breach of this Part 31.

32. Warranties.  Notwithstanding any disclaimers in any Offer or other Respondent document and notwithstanding any other provision of this RFO or the PO to the contrary, Respondent warrants and guarantees all of the following with respect to all requested items required under the PO:

32.1. RFO and Manufacturer’s Warranties.  Respondent warrants and guarantees that all requested items meet all specifications of the PO, including, but not limited to, this RFO; in addition, Respondent shall provide manufacturer’s standard warranty for all requested items.  

32.2. Replacement and Other Warranties.  Respondent will provide a one (1) year full replacement warranty for all requested items and will provide any other warranties specified in Section II of the RFO.  These warranties begin on the date CPA accepts the hardware and/or software.

All warranties required by the PO survive beyond the termination, cancellation or expiration date of this RFO and the PO.  Respondent Documents and this RFO’s requirements will not be construed to limit any rights or remedies otherwise available to CPA under this RFO, the PO or any applicable law.

33. Termination or Cancellation Effectiveness.  Unless otherwise specified in this RFO or the PO, any termination or cancellation of the PO will be effective upon the date specified in CPA's notice of termination or cancellation.  

34. Limitation on Authority; No Other Obligations.  Respondent will have no authority to act for or on behalf of CPA or the State of Texas except as expressly provided for in the PO; no other authority, power or use is granted or implied.  Respondent may not incur any debt, obligation, expenses, or liability of any kind on behalf of CPA or the State of Texas. 

35. Confidential Information; Nondisclosure Agreements; Texas Public Information Act (formerly Texas Open Records Act).  Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent’s employees shall not disclose to anyone, directly or indirectly, any information designated by CPA as confidential or to information accessed as a result of any contract resulting from this RFO without the prior written consent of CPA.  In addition, Respondent and Respondent’s employees initially assigned to this contract must sign a copy of the Nondisclosure Agreement prior to the contract commencement date.  Any additional or replacement employees of Successful Respondent assigned to the contract must sign the Nondisclosure Agreement prior to the start of their assignment.  The Nondisclosure Agreement is Section IX of this RFO.  

Notwithstanding any provisions of this RFO to the contrary, Respondent understands that CPA will comply with the Texas Public Information Act (Chapter 552, Texas Government Code) as interpreted by judicial opinions and opinions of the Attorney General of the State of Texas.  Information, documentation and other material in connection with this RFO and any resulting PO will be subject to public disclosure pursuant to the Texas Public Information Act.  All Offers become the property of CPA and may be subject to release to any requester under the provisions of the Texas Public Information Act.  After the award and/or execution of a final contract for a particular procurement, Offers submitted shall be presumed to be public information and to be subject to disclosure unless a specific exception to disclosure under the Texas Public Information Act applies.  Each Respondent is advised to consult with its legal counsel regarding disclosure issues and take the appropriate precautions to safeguard trade secrets or other proprietary information.  CPA assumes no obligation or responsibility relating to the disclosure or nondisclosure of information submitted by Respondent.

If a Respondent believes that any portion of its Offer is confidential, then Respondent must so specify.  Respondent must stamp in bold red letters the term “CONFIDENTIAL” on that specific part or page of the Offer which Respondent believes to be confidential.  Respondent must submit in writing specific detailed reasons, including any relevant legal authority, stating why  Respondent believes the material to be confidential.  Merely making a blanket claim that the entire Offer is protected from disclosure because it contains some proprietary information is not acceptable and will not render the entire Offer confidential.  Vague and general claims as to confidentiality will not be accepted.  CPA will determine whether a claim is general and/or vague in nature.  All Offers and parts of Offers which are not marked as confidential will be automatically considered public information after the contract is awarded.  The Successful Offer may be considered public information even though parts are marked confidential.

In the event CPA receives a request for portions of an Offer marked as “CONFIDENTIAL” as specified above, CPA shall forward such request to the Texas Attorney General’s Office for an opinion on whether such information may be withheld from disclosure under the Texas Public Information Act.  CPA will notify the Respondent whose Offer is the subject of the request when the information is forwarded to the Texas Attorney General’s Office.  CPA assumes no obligation for asserting legal arguments on behalf of a Respondent.  See Section V, Part 2 regarding possible disqualification of an Offer due to certain copyrighted portions.

Within three (3) days of receipt, Successful Respondent will refer to CPA any third party requests, received directly by Successful Respondent, for information to which Successful Respondent has access as a result of or in the course of performance under the PO.  The provisions of this Part 35 survive the termination or expiration of any agreement resulting from this RFO.
36. No Other Benefits. Respondent has no exclusive rights or benefits other than those set forth herein.

37. Parties Bound.  The PO will be binding upon and inure to the benefit of CPA and Successful Respondent and to their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives and successors.

38. Assignment.  Successful Respondent may not transfer, assign, or pledge as security for a debt all or any part of Successful Respondent's interest in or duties or rights under the PO without the prior written consent of CPA.

39. Time Limits.  Time is of the essence in the PO and accordingly all time limits will be strictly construed and rigidly enforced.

40. No Waiver.  No provision of the PO will constitute or be construed as a waiver of any of the privileges, rights, defenses, remedies, or immunities available to CPA as an agency of the State of Texas or otherwise available to CPA.  The failure to enforce or any delay in the enforcement of any privileges, rights, defenses, remedies, or immunities detailed in the PO or otherwise available to CPA by law will not constitute a waiver of said privileges, rights, defenses, remedies, or immunities or be considered as a basis for estoppel.  By issuing a PO, by its conduct prior to or subsequent to issuing the PO or by executing any agreement resulting from this RFO, CPA does not waive any privileges, rights, defenses, remedies, or immunities available to CPA as an agency of the State of Texas or otherwise available to CPA.  The modification of any privileges, rights, defenses, remedies, or immunities available to CPA must be in writing, must reference this section, and must be signed by CPA to be effective, and such modification of any privileges, rights, defenses, remedies, or immunities available to CPA will not constitute a waiver of any subsequent privileges, rights, defenses, remedies, or immunities under this PO or under applicable law.

41. CPA Not Liable Upon Termination.  If the PO is terminated for any reason, CPA and the State of Texas will not be liable to Successful Respondent for any damages, claims, losses or any other amounts arising from or related to any such termination.

42. Personal Injury; Property Damage.  Successful Respondent will be liable for any bodily injury or personal injury to any individual caused by Successful Respondent or Successful Respondent’s employees or Successful Respondent’s defective products.  In the event of loss, destruction or damage to any CPA or State of Texas property by Successful Respondent or Successful Respondent’s employees, Successful Respondent will indemnify CPA and the State of Texas and pay to CPA and the State of Texas the full cost of repair, reconstruction or replacement of the lost, destroyed or damage property, at CPA’s election. Successful Respondent will reimburse CPA and the State of Texas for such property damage within ten (10) calendar days after Successful Respondent’s receipt of CPA’s notice of amount due.

43.  INDEMNIFICATION.  SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the State of Texas, its officers, and employees, and CPA, its officers, and employees and CONTRACTORs, from and against all claims, actions, suits, demands, proceedings, costs, damages, and liabilities, including without limitation attorneys’ fees and court costs, arising out of, connected with, or resulting from any acts or omissions of SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT or any agent, employee, subCONTRACTOR, or supplier of SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT in the execution or performance of any contract resulting from this RFo.  SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT shall coordinate its defense with the texas attorney general as requested by CPA.   This PARAGRAPH 43 is not intended to and shall not be construed to require SUCCESSFUL RESPONDENT to indemnify or hold harmless the state or CPA for any claims or liabilities resulting from the negligent acts or omissions of CPA or its employees.   

44. Patent, Trademark, Copyright Infringement.  Respondent will defend and indemnify CPA and the State of Texas against claims of patent, trademark, copyright, trade secret or other proprietary rights, violations or infringement arising from CPA's or Successful Respondent's use of or acquisition of any requested services or other items provided to CPA by Successful Respondent or otherwise to which CPA has access as a result of Successful Respondent’s performance under the PO, provided that CPA will notify Successful Respondent of any such claim within a reasonable time of CPA’s receiving notice of any such claim. If Successful Respondent is notified of any claim subject to this Part 44, Successful Respondent will notify CPA of such claim within five (5) working days of such notice.  Successful Respondent will make no settlement of any such claim without CPA's prior written approval.  Successful Respondent will reimburse CPA and the State of Texas for any claims, damages, costs, expenses or other amounts, including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees and court costs, arising from any such claim. Successful Respondent shall pay all reasonable costs of CPA’s counsel.  If CPA determines that a conflict exists between its interests and those of Successful Respondent or if CPA is required by applicable law to select separate counsel, CPA will be permitted to select separate counsel and Successful Respondent will pay all reasonable costs of such CPA counsel.  Successful Respondent represents that it has determined what licenses, patents and permits are required under the PO and has acquired all such licenses, patents and permits.

45. Texas Law; Venue.  The PO will be governed by and construed under and in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas.  Any and all obligations or payments under the PO are due and payable in Travis County, Texas, and venue is proper in only such county.  

46. Support Documents; Inspection of Records. Successful Respondent will maintain and retain supporting fiscal documents adequate to ensure that claims for contract funds are in accordance with applicable State of Texas requirements.  These supporting fiscal documents will be maintained and retained by Successful Respondent for a period of four (4) years after the date of submission of the final invoices or until a resolution of all billing questions, whichever is later. Successful Respondent will make available at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, and for reasonable periods, work papers, reports, books, records, and supporting documents kept current by Successful Respondent pertaining to the PO for purposes of inspecting, monitoring, auditing, or evaluating by CPA or the State of Texas.  

47. Notices.  Any written notices required under the PO will be by either hand delivery to Successful Respondent’s office or to CPA’s Austin office, attention Manager of Support Services Division, or by U.S. Mail, certified, return receipt requested.  Notice will be effective on receipt by the affected party.  CPA and Successful Respondent agree that either party may change the designated notice address in this Part by written notification to the other party.

48. Deceptive Trade Practices Act (DTPA), Unfair Business Practices.  Respondent represents and warrants that it has not been the subject of a DTPA or any unfair business practice administrative hearing or court suit and that Respondent has not been found to be liable of such practices in such proceedings.  Respondent certifies that it has no officers who have served as officers of other entities who have been the subject of a DTPA or any unfair business administrative hearing or court suit and that such officers have not been found to be liable of such practices in such proceedings.

49. Immigration.  Respondent represents and warrants that it will comply with the requirements of the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 regarding employment verification and retention of verification forms for any individuals hired on or after November 6, 1986, who will perform any labor or services under the PO.

50. Franchise Taxes; Non Residents; Foreign Corporations; Sales Taxes.  Respondent represents and warrants that it is not currently delinquent in the payment of any franchise taxes owed the State of Texas under Chapter 171, Texas Tax Code.  In addition, if Respondent is an individual not residing in Texas or a business entity not incorporated in or whose principal domicile is not in Texas, the following certification applies.  Respondent certifies that it holds a permit issued by CPA to collect or remit all state and local sales and use taxes that become due and owing as a result of the individual’s or entity’s business in Texas or certifies that it does not sell tangible personal property or services that are subject to the state and local sales and use tax.  Under Section 2155.004, Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that the individual or business entity named in the Offer or any PO resulting from this RFO is not ineligible to receive the specified contract and acknowledges that the PO may be terminated and payment withheld if this certification is inaccurate.

51. No Conflicts.  Respondent represents and warrants that Respondent has no actual or potential conflicts of interest in providing the requested items to CPA under the RFO and any resulting PO, if any, and that Respondent’s provision of the requested items under the RFO and any resulting PO, if any, would not reasonably create an appearance of impropriety.

52. False Statements; Breach of Representations, etc. If Respondent signs the Offer with a false statement or it is subsequently determined that Respondent has violated any of the representations, warranties, guarantees, certifications or affirmations included in this RFO, Respondent will be in default under the PO and CPA may terminate or void the PO.

53. Force Majeure.  Except as otherwise provided, neither Successful Respondent nor CPA shall be liable to the other for any delay in, or failure of performance, of any requirement included in the PO caused by force majeure.  The existence of such causes of delay or failure shall extend the period of performance until after the causes of delay or failure have been removed provided the non-performing party exercises all reasonable due diligence to perform.  Force majeure is defined as acts of God, war, fires, explosions, hurricanes, floods, failure of transportation, or other causes that are beyond the reasonable control of either party and that by exercise of due foresight such party could not reasonably have been expected to avoid, and which, by the exercise of all reasonable due diligence, such party is unable to overcome. Each party must inform the other in writing, with proof of receipt, within three (3) business days of the existence of such force majeure, or otherwise waive this right as a defense.  

54. Subcontracts. Respondent may not subcontract for any of the equipment, software, warranties or services required under the PO without the prior written consent of CPA.  Respondent expressly understands and acknowledges that in entering into any approved subcontract, CPA or the State of Texas is not liable to any subcontractor of Respondent for any amounts.  Respondent will retain responsibility for ensuring that the performances rendered under any subcontracts comply with all requirements of this procurement as if Respondent rendered such performances.

55. Title; Ownership; Licenses.  CPA and the State of Texas will receive and Successful Respondent will convey to CPA and the State clear title, ownership and licenses, whichever is applicable, to all requested items under the PO.

56. Severability.  If any provision of the PO will, for any reason, be held to violate any applicable law, and so much of the PO is held to be unenforceable, then the invalidity of such a specific provision will not be held to invalidate any other provisions, which other provisions will remain in full force and effect unless removal of said invalid provisions destroys the legitimate purpose of the PO, in which event the PO will be canceled.

57. Recycled, Remanufactured, or Environmentally Sensitive Materials.  Under Section 2155.445, Texas Government Code (relating to preference to recycled materials), CPA will give preference in the solicitation of products made of recycled, remanufactured, or environmentally sensitive products if the products meet applicable specifications as to quantity and quality.  CPA and the State of Texas are required to expend a minimum of eight percent (8%) of its consumable procurement budget for materials, supplies, and equipment that have recycled material content or are remanufactured or environmentally sensitive as those terms are defined by TPASS.
58. Entire Agreement.  Except as expressly provided otherwise herein, the PO will represent the entire agreement by and between CPA and Successful Respondent regarding the subject matter of this RFO.  This agreement may not be changed except by CPA's written Change Notice to the PO or otherwise by the mutual written agreement of the parties.

59. Dispute Resolution Processes.  Chapter 2260, Texas Government Code (“Chapter 2260”) prescribes dispute resolution processes for certain breach of contract claims applicable to certain contracts for goods and services.  As required by Chapter 2260, CPA has adopted rules under Chapter 2260, codified at 34 Texas Administrative Code §§1.360 – 1.387, and may adopt revisions to these rules throughout the term of this PO, including any extensions.  The Successful Respondent and CPA shall comply with such rules.

The dispute resolution process provided for in Chapter 2260 shall be used, as further described herein, by CPA and the Successful Respondent to attempt to resolve any claim for breach of contract made by the Successful Respondent under any PO resulting from this RFO:

(A) The Successful Respondent’s claim for breach of the contract that the parties cannot resolve in the ordinary course of business shall be submitted to the negotiation process provided in Chapter 2260.  To initiate the process, the Successful Respondent shall submit written notice, as required by Chapter 2260, to the Deputy Comptroller or his or her designee.  Said notice shall also be given to all other representatives of CPA and the Successful Respondent otherwise entitled to notice under the contract.  Compliance by the Successful Respondent with Chapter 2260 is a condition precedent to the filing of a contested case proceeding under Chapter 2260.  

(B) The contested case process provided in Chapter 2260 is the Successful Respondent’s sole and exclusive process for seeking a remedy for an alleged breach of contract by CPA if the parties are unable to resolve their disputes under subparagraph (A) of this Section.

(C) Compliance with the contested case process provided in Chapter 2260 is a condition precedent to seeking consent to sue from the Legislature under Chapter 107, Civ. Prac. and Rem. Code.  Neither the execution of this PO by CPA nor any other conduct of any representative of CPA relating to this PO shall be considered a waiver of sovereign immunity to suit.

For all other specific breach of contract claims or disputes under this PO, the following shall apply:

Should a dispute arise out of this PO, CPA and the Successful Respondent shall first attempt to resolve it through direct discussions in a spirit of mutual cooperation.  If the parties’ attempts to resolve their disagreements through negotiations fail, the dispute will be mediated by a mutually acceptable third party to be chosen by CPA and the Successful Respondent within fifteen (15) days after written notice by one of them demanding mediation under this Section.  The Successful Respondent shall pay all costs of the mediation unless CPA has appropriated funds available to pay up to half of such costs.  By mutual agreement, CPA and the Successful Respondent may use a non-binding form of dispute resolution other than mediation.  The purpose of this section is to reasonably ensure that CPA and the Successful Respondent shall in good faith utilize mediation or another non-binding dispute resolution process before pursuing litigation.  CPA’s participation in or the results of any mediation or another non binding dispute resolution process under this Section or the provisions of this Section shall not be construed as a waiver by CPA of (1) any rights, privileges, defenses, remedies or immunities available to CPA as an agency of the State of Texas or otherwise available to CPA; (2) CPA’s termination rights; or (3) other termination provisions or expiration dates of the contract.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this PO to the contrary, the Successful Respondent shall continue performance and shall not be excused from performance during the period any breach of contract claim or dispute is pending under either of the above processes, however, Successful Respondent may suspend performance during the pendency of such claim or dispute if Successful Respondent has complied with all provisions of  Section 2251.051, Texas Government Code, and such suspension of performance is expressly applicable and authorized under that law.
60. Applicable Law and Conforming Amendments: Successful Respondent must comply with all laws, regulations, requirements and guidelines applicable to a vendor providing services and products described in this RFO to the State of Texas, as these laws, regulations, requirements and guidelines currently exist and as amended throughout the term of any contract resulting from this RFO. CPA reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to unilaterally amend any PO resulting from this RFO prior to award and throughout the term of the contract to incorporate any modifications necessary for CPA’s compliance, as an agency of the State of Texas, with all applicable state and federal laws, regulations, requirements and guidelines.  

61. Media Releases: Respondents are not authorized to make or participate in any media releases pertaining to this procurement, the Offer or the services to which they relate without CPA’s prior written consent, and then only in accordance with explicit written instructions from CPA.  Disclosure of any Offer prior to PO award or violation of this Part 61 may result in disqualification of Respondent’s Offer and subject the Respondent to other action deemed appropriate by CPA.

62. Direct Deposit: Certain payments from the State may be directly deposited into Successful Respondent’s bank account or may be made by warrant.  Respondents who may be eligible for direct deposit and who wish to be paid by direct deposit, must complete the form titled “Vendor Direct Deposit Authorization” and return it as soon as possible to: Comptroller of Public Accounts, Attention: Budget and Internal Accounting Division, Accounts Payable Section, LBJ State Office Building, 111 E. 17th Street, Austin, Texas 78774.

63. Equal Opportunity. Respondent represents and warrants that it will comply with the Civil Rights Act in giving equal opportunity without regard to race, color, sex, or national origin.

64. Favors. Respondent represents and warrants that it has not given, offered to give, and does not intend to give at any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor or service to any public servant or employee in connection with the Offer.

65. Antitrust. Respondent represents and warrants that, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. Section 1, et seq. and Texas Business and Commerce Code Section 15.01, et seq., neither Respondent nor the firm, corporation, partnership, or institution represented by Respondent, or anyone acting for such a firm, corporation or institution has violated the antitrust laws of this state, federal antitrust laws, nor communicated directly or indirectly the Offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of business.
66. Financial Interests. Pursuant to Section 2155.004(a), Texas Government Code, Respondent represents and warrants that neither Respondent nor any person or entity which will participate financially in any PO resulting from this RFO has received compensation for participation in preparation of specifications for this RFO. Under Section 2155.004, Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that the individual or business entity named in this Offer or any PO resulting from this RFO is not ineligible to receive the specified contract and acknowledges that the PO may be terminated and payment withheld if this certification is inaccurate.
67. Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA). Respondent represents and warrants that it will comply with the requirements of the ADA.
68. Child Support. Under Section 231.006, Texas Family Code, regarding child support, Respondent certifies that the individual or business named in the offer is not ineligible to receive the specified payment and acknowledges that the PO may be terminated and payment may be withheld if this certification is inaccurate. Furthermore, any Respondent subject to Section 231.006, Texas Family Code, must include names and Social Security numbers of each person with at least 25% ownership of the business entity submitting the offer. This information must be provided prior to award.
69.  Protest Procedures.   Any actual or prospective Respondent who is aggrieved in connection with this RFO, evaluation, or award of any contract resulting from this RFO may formally protest as provided in CPA’s rules at 34 Texas Administrative Code §1.72.  Respondents may protest any term or condition of this RFO within ten (10) working days of issuance of the RFO, as provided in that rule. 
70. Buy Texas, Product Preference. In accordance with Section 2155.4441, Texas Government Code, Respondent agrees that during the performance of a contract for services it shall purchase products and materials produced in Texas when they are available at a price and time comparable to products and materials produced outside this state. 

71. Debts or Delinquencies to State.  Respondent acknowledges and agrees that, to the extent Respondent owes any debt, including but not limited to delinquent taxes or child support to the State of Texas, any payments or other amounts Respondent is otherwise owed under or related to any PO resulting from this RFO may be applied by CPA toward any debt Respondent owes the State of Texas until the debt is paid in full.  These provisions are effective at any time Respondent owes any such debt or delinquency. Respondent shall comply with rules adopted by CPA under Sections 403.055, 403.0551, 2252.903, Texas Government Code and other applicable laws and regulations regarding satisfaction of debts or delinquencies to the State of Texas.

72. Acceptance of Terms.  By submitting an Offer, acknowledging and accepting the PO or delivering any of the required items under the PO, Respondent acknowledges, accepts and agrees to all terms of the PO, including, but not limited to, this RFO; however this acceptance by Respondent of all terms of the RFO by submission of an Offer does not apply to terms to which Respondent specifically takes an exception and offers an alternative in Respondent’s Offer as provided in Section II of this RFO.

73. Right to Audit.  In addition to and without limitation on the other audit provisions of this RFO or any PO resulting from this RFO, pursuant to Section 2262.003, Texas Government Code, the state auditor may conduct an audit or investigation of Successful Respondent or any other entity or person receiving funds from the state directly under any PO resulting from this RFO or indirectly through a subcontract under any PO resulting from this RFO.  The acceptance of funds by Successful Respondent or any other entity or person directly under any PO resulting from this RFO or indirectly through a subcontract under any PO resulting from this RFO acts as acceptance of the authority of the state auditor, under the direction of the legislative audit committee, to conduct an audit or investigation in connection with those funds.  Under the direction of the legislative audit committee, the Successful Respondent or other entity that is the subject of an audit or investigation by the state auditor must provide the state auditor with access to any information the state auditor considers relevant to the investigation or audit.  This RFO or any PO resulting from this RFO may be amended unilaterally by CPA to comply with any rules and procedures of the state auditor in the implementation and enforcement of Section 2262.003, Texas Government Code.  Successful Respondent shall ensure that this paragraph concerning the authority to audit funds received indirectly by subcontractors through the Successful Respondent and the requirement to cooperate is included in any subcontract it awards. 
74. Prohibited Use of Appropriated or Other Funds Under Control of State Agency; Lobbying.  Respondent represents and warrants that CPA's payments to Respondent and Respondent's receipt of appropriated or other funds under any PO resulting from this RFO are not prohibited by Section 556.005 or Section 556.008, Texas Government Code.
75. Most Favored Customer.  Successful Respondent represents and warrants that all prices, charges, benefits, warranties, and terms granted to CPA pursuant to any PO or other agreement resulting from this RFO are comparable to, or more favorable to, CPA than the prices, charges, benefits, warranties, and terms that Successful Respondent has heretofore offered to any person or entity for the products and/or services covered under any other agreement.  If at any time during the term of any PO or other agreement resulting from this RFO, Successful Respondent shall contract with any other person or entity for prices, charges, benefits, warranties and terms more favorable to such person or entity, Successful Respondent must notify CPA of such more favorable terms and CPA, in its sole discretion, may require that such more favorable prices, charges, benefits, warranties or other terms be available to CPA under any PO or other agreement resulting from this RFO, and be retroactive to the date of such PO or other agreement.
76. Rolling Estoppel.  If Successful Respondent is aware a problem exists and fails to report the problem to CPA, Successful Respondent continues to be responsible for meeting the goals and timelines established in the final approved PO.  Under these circumstances, CPA will not be liable for any detrimental consequences.

77.
Property Rights.  For purposes of this RFO, the term “Work” is defined as all work papers, work products, materials, approaches, designs, specifications, systems, software, programs, source code, documentation methodologies, concepts, intellectual property or other property developed, produced or generated in connection with the services provided under any agreement resulting from this RFO.  CPA and Successful Respondent intend any agreement resulting from this RFO to be a contract for the services and each considers the Work and any and all documentation or other products and results of the services to be rendered by Successful Respondent to be a work made for hire.  In submitting an offer in response to this RFO, Successful Respondent acknowledges and agrees that the Work (and all rights therein) belongs to and shall be the sole and exclusive property of CPA.

If for any reason the Work would not be considered a work-for-hire under applicable law, Successful Respondent does hereby sell, assign, and transfer to CPA, its successors and assigns, the entire right, title and interest in and to the copyright in the Work and any registrations and copyright applications relating thereto and any renewals and extensions thereof, and in and to all works based upon, derived from, or incorporating the Work, and in and to all income, royalties, damages, claims and payments now or hereafter due or payable with respect thereto, and in and to all causes of action, either in law or in equity for past, present, or future infringement based on the copyrights, and in and to all rights corresponding to the foregoing.  Successful Respondent agrees to execute all papers and to perform such other property rights, as CPA may deem necessary to secure for CPA or its designee the rights herein assigned.

Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent’s employees will have no rights in or ownership of the Work and any and all documentation or other products and results of the services or any other property of CPA.  

No later than the first calendar day after the termination or expiration of any agreement resulting from this RFO or after CPA’s request, Successful Respondent will deliver to CPA all completed, or partially completed, Work and any and all documentation or other products and results of the services.  Failure to timely deliver such Work or any and all documentation or other products and results of the services will be considered a material breach of the agreement.  Successful Respondent will not make or retain any copies of the Work or any and all documentation or other products and results of the services without the prior written consent of CPA.

78. Evaluation Process.  CPA will establish an evaluation committee.  Evaluation of Offers will begin as soon as practical after receipt.  Only those Offers that meet minimum qualifications will be evaluated.  Offers that meet the minimum qualifications will be evaluated using the criteria and the weights set forth in Section I of this RFO.  Clarifications on issues raised in the Offers may be sought from individual Respondents.  Best and Final Offers may be sought from the Respondents whose Offers are ranked most highly by the evaluation committee.  CPA reserves the right in its sole judgment and discretion, and at any time upon failure of negotiations, to reissue or withdraw the RFO rather than continue with negotiations.  
79. Outsourcing.  Respondent must understand that CPA may, in its sole discretion, enter into an outsourcing agreement with another provider which shall perform certain services for CPA.  If CPA enters into such written agreement, Successful Respondent shall, as consistent with the terms of any contract or PO resulting from this RFO, grant the outsourcing vendor the right to use and access the services and/or equipment (e.g., software, hardware) on the same terms and conditions that Successful Respondent has granted CPA the right to use and access such services and/or equipment provided the outsourcing vendor also agrees that it (i) shall only use the services and/or equipment for the benefit of CPA, and (ii) shall enter into confidentiality agreement with CPA, which contains confidentiality terms that are substantially no less restrictive than the confidentiality terms contained in this RFO and any contract or PO resulting from this RFO.  Successful Respondent further shall either fully cooperate with all such transition activities regarding such outsourcing; or Successful Respondent agrees that CPA shall have the right to immediately terminate or assign to the outsourcing vendor, any PO or contract resulting from this RFO without any liability for any amounts to Respondent.

Notwithstanding the above, in no event may CPA transfer the services and/or equipment to another provider without the prior written consent of Successful Respondent.  If the services and/or equipment are to be used at a site other than CPA’s, Successful Respondent, CPA and the third party must enter into a written third party use agreement prior to such use or access by such third party.

80.
Security Requirements for Successful Respondent.  CPA requires that Successful Respondent adhere to the following security requirements:

a) User authentication must be required prior to any access of data stored on CPA information resources and CPA data stored on systems managed by the Successful Respondent.

b) User authentication must be required prior to any connectivity provided through CPA’s network.

c) Passwords used during user authentication must comply with the CPA Password Policy. 

d) Access logs must be maintained to capture, at a minimum, user information and type of transaction with time and date stamp.

e) Remote communication must be secure through encryption or through equivalent protection.

f) As applicable, any communication through public networks must provide for protection from eavesdropping, compromise, and other security risks by implementing encryption, a firewall, and anti-virus/anti-spyware software on computers used to connect to CPA information resources.  

g) A completed Remote Access Request form and a completed Confidential Tax/Vendor Information Agreement (CTIA) are required for Successful Respondent personnel who will need to remotely access CPA information resources.  

h) All standalone workstations used to remotely connect to CPA’s network or devices must have up-to-date anti-virus/anti-spyware software and an active personal firewall.    

i) Network to network connectivity requests require a risk assessment of the Successful Respondent’s computing environment which must be approved by the CPA Information Security Officer.  

CPA computers or networks may only be connected to Successful Respondent and its Internet service provider computers or networks after the Information Security Division has determined that the combined systems will be in compliance with CPA security requirements.

As a condition of gaining access to CPA computer network, every Successful Respondent and its Internet service provider must secure its own connected systems in a manner consistent with CPA requirements.  CPA reserves the right to audit the security measures in effect on Successful Respondent and its Internet service provider connected systems without prior warning.  CPA also reserves the right to immediately terminate network connections not meeting such requirements.  

Whenever communications with Successful Respondent and its Internet service providers necessitate the release of sensitive or confidential CPA information, the Confidential Tax/Vendor Information Agreement – CTIA must be signed by each individual who will require access to or may be exposed to that data.  See Section XI for the CTIA. Information released to these individuals must be limited to the topics directly related to the involved project or business relationship.  Individuals who may be exposed to sensitive or confidential information may be required to attend a security briefing each year at CPA offices.

Successful Respondent agrees that any CPA data processed during the performance of any PO resulting from this RFO shall be completely purged in a manner consistent with CPA requirements from all data storage components at its computer facility, and Successful Respondent shall not retain any output at the time the Work is completed.  If immediate purging of all data storage components is not practicable or possible at the completion of the Work, then Successful Respondent will promptly notify CPA’s Project Manager and provide a written certification that all CPA data remaining in any storage component will be safeguarded to prevent unauthorized disclosures.  Any spoilage or any intermediate hard-copy printout that may result during the processing of CPA data will be given to CPA’s Project Manager.  When this is not practicable or possible, Successful Respondent will be responsible for the destruction of the spoilage or any intermediate hard-copy printouts and Successful Respondent will provide CPA’s Project Manager with a written statement containing the date of destruction, description of material destroyed, and the method used.  

81.
Internal Revenue Service Data.  In performance under any contract resulting from this RFO, the Successful Respondent agrees to comply with and assume responsibility for compliance by his or her employees with the following requirements:

a)
All work will be done under the supervision of the Successful Respondent or the Successful Respondent’s employees.

b) 
Any return or return information made available in any format shall be used only for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of the contract resulting from this RFO. Information contained in such material will be treated as confidential and will not be divulged or made known in any manner to any person except as may be necessary in the performance of this contract. Disclosure to anyone other than an officer or employee of the Successful Respondent will be prohibited. 

c) 
All returns and return information will be accounted for upon receipt and properly stored before, during, and after processing. In addition, all related output will be given the same level of protection as required for the source material.

d) 
The Successful Respondent certifies that the data processed during the performance of any contract resulting from this RFO will be completely purged from all data storage components of his or her computer facility, and no output will be retained by the Successful Respondent at the time the work is completed. If immediate purging of all data storage components is not possible, the Successful Respondent certifies that any IRS data remaining in any storage component will be safeguarded to prevent unauthorized disclosures.

e) 
Any spoilage or any intermediate hard copy printout that may result during the processing of IRS data will be given to CPA’s Project Manager. When this is not possible, the Successful Respondent will be responsible for the destruction of the spoilage or any intermediate hard copy printouts, and will provide CPA’s Project Manager with a statement containing the date of destruction, description of material destroyed, and the method used.

f) 
All computer systems processing, storing, or transmitting Federal tax information must meet the requirements defined in IRS Publication 1075. To meet functional and assurance requirements, the security features of the environment must provide for the managerial, operational, and technical controls. All security features must be available and activated to protect against unauthorized use of and access to Federal tax information.

g) 
No work involving Federal tax information furnished under any contract resulting from this RFO will be subcontracted without prior written approval of the IRS.

h) 
The Successful Respondent will maintain a list of employees authorized access. Such list will be provided to CPA and, upon request, to the IRS reviewing office.

i) 
CPA will have the right to void any contract resulting from this RFO if the Successful Respondent fails to provide the safeguards described above.

Each officer or employee of any person to whom returns or return information is or may be disclosed will be notified in writing by such person that returns or return information disclosed to such officer or employee can be used only for a purpose and to the extent authorized herein, and that further disclosure of any such returns or return information for a purpose or to an extent unauthorized herein constitutes a felony punishable upon conviction by a fine of as much as $5,000 or imprisonment for as long as 5 years, or both, together with the costs of prosecution. Such person shall also notify each such officer and employee that any such unauthorized further disclosure of returns or return information may also result in an award of civil damages against the officer or employee in an amount not less than $1,000 with respect to each instance of unauthorized disclosure. These penalties are prescribed by IRC sections 7213 and 7431 and set forth at 26 CFR 301.6103(n)-1.  Each officer or employee of any person to whom returns or return information is or may be disclosed shall be notified in writing by such person that any return or return information made available in any format shall be used only for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of the contract resulting from this RFO. Information contained in such material shall be treated as confidential and shall not be divulged or made known in any manner to any person except as may be necessary in the performance of the contract resulting from this RFO. Inspection by or disclosure to anyone without an official need to know constitutes a criminal misdemeanor punishable upon conviction by a fine of as much as $1,000 or imprisonment for as long as 1 year, or both, together with the costs of prosecution. Such person shall also notify each such officer and employee that any such unauthorized inspection or disclosure of returns or return information may also result in an award of civil damages against the officer or employee in an amount equal to the sum of the greater of $1,000 for each act of unauthorized inspection or disclosure with respect to which such defendant is found liable or the sum of the actual damages sustained by the plaintiff as a result of such unauthorized inspection or disclosure plus in the case of a willful inspection or disclosure which is the result of gross negligence, punitive damages, plus the costs of the action. These penalties are prescribed by IRC section 7213A and 7431.  Additionally, it is incumbent upon the Successful Respondent to inform its officers and employees of the penalties for improper disclosure imposed by the Privacy Act of 1974, 5 U.S.C. 552a. Specifically, 5 U.S.C. 552a(i)(1), which is made applicable to contractors by 5 U.S.C. 552a(m)(1), provides that any officer or employee of a contractor, who by virtue of his/her employment or official position, has possession of or access to agency records which contain individually identifiable information, the disclosure of which is prohibited by the Privacy Act or regulations established thereunder, and who knowing that disclosure of the specific material is prohibited, willfully discloses the material in any manner to any person or agency not entitled to receive it, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and fined not more than $5,000.

The IRS and CPA shall have the right to send its officers and employees into the offices and plants of the contractor for inspection of the facilities and operations provided for the performance of any work under any contract resulting from this RFO. On the basis of such inspection, specific measures may be required in cases where the Successful Respondent is found to be noncompliant with contract safeguards.
82. Independent Contractor. Successful Respondent or Successful Respondent's employees, representatives, agents and any subcontractors shall serve as an independent contractor in providing the services under any PO resulting from this RFO.  Successful Respondent and Successful Respondent's employees, representatives, agents and any subcontractors shall not be employees of CPA.  Should Successful Respondent subcontract any of the services required in this RFO, Successful Respondent expressly understands and acknowledges that in entering into such subcontract(s), CPA is in no manner liable to any subcontractor(s) of Successful Respondent.  In no event shall this provision relieve Successful Respondent of the responsibility for ensuring that the services rendered under all subcontracts are rendered in compliance with this RFO.  

83. Representations and Warranties related to Software: If any Software is provided under any PO resulting from this RFO, Successful Respondent represents and warrants each of the following:

· Successful Respondent has sufficient right, title, and interest in the Software to grant the license required in this RFO;  

· contract terms and conditions included in any “clickwrap,” “browsewrap,” “shrinkwrap,” or other license agreement that accompanies any Software, including but not limited to Software Updates, Software Patch/Fix, or Software Upgrades, provided under any PO resulting from this RFO are void and have no effect unless CPA specifically agrees to such licensure terms in a PO resulting from this RFO; 
· the Software provided under any PO resulting from this RFO does not infringe upon or constitute a misuse or misappropriation of any patent, trademark, copyright, trade secret or other proprietary right;

· Software and any Software Updates, Software Maintenance, Software Patches/Fixes, and Software Upgrades provided under any PO resulting from this RFO shall not contain viruses, malware, spyware, key logger, back door or other covert communications, or any computer code intentionally designed to disrupt, disable, harm, or otherwise impede in any manner, including aesthetical disruptions or distortions, the operation of the computer program, or any other associated software, firmware, hardware, or computer system, (including local area or wide-area networks), in a manner not intended by its creator(s); and

· Software provided under any PO resulting from this RFO does not and will not contain any computer code that would disable the Software or impair in any way its operation based on the elapsing of a period of time, exceeding an authorized number of copies, advancement to a particular date or other numeral, or other similar self-destruct mechanisms (sometimes referred to as a “time bombs”, “time locks”, or “drop dead” devices) or that would permit Successful Respondent to access the Software to cause such disablement or impairment (sometimes referred to as a “trap door” devices).  
84. Discounts.  If Successful Respondent at any time during the term of the contract provides a discount on the final negotiated contract costs, the Successful Respondent will notify CPA in writing ten (10) business days prior to effective date of discount.  CPA will generate a PO Change Notice and send a corrected PO to the Successful Respondent.

85. Business Attire; Conduct; CPA guidelines.  Successful Respondent must ensure that its employees conduct themselves in a professional manner and are in appropriate business attire when on CPA’s premises as a result of any PO issued under this RFO.  In addition, Successful Respondent must ensure that its employees comply with all guidelines established by CPA for independent contractors required to provide services on CPA’s premises.  These guidelines may address issues which include, but are not limited to, the following: building security, IT security, records, safety, professional conduct, use of State owned property, non-disclosure of confidential information, drug and alcohol free workplace rules, and other requirements for on-site independent contractors.
86. Executive Order #13224; Debarred Vendor List.  Respondent represents and warrants that the offering entity and its principals are eligible to participate in this transaction and have not been subjected to suspension, debarment, or similar ineligibility determined by any federal, state, or local governmental entity and that Respondent is in compliance with the State of Texas statutes and rules relating to procurement and that Respondent is not listed on the federal government's terrorism watch list as described in Executive Order 13224.  Entities ineligible for federal procurement are listed at http://www.epls.gov.

87. Technology Access Clause.  The Respondent expressly acknowledges that state funds may not be expended in connection with the purchase of an automated information system unless that system meets certain statutory requirements relating to accessibility by persons with visual impairments.  Accordingly, the Respondent represents and warrants to CPA that the technology provided to CPA for purchase is capable, either by virtue of features included within the technology or because it is readily adaptable by use with other technology, of:

· providing equivalent access for effective use by both visual and non-visual means;

· presenting information, including prompts used for interactive communications, in formats intended for non-visual use; and

· being integrated into networks for obtaining, retrieving, and disseminating information used by individuals who are not blind or visually impaired.

For purposes of this paragraph, the phrase “equivalent access” means a substantially similar ability to communicate with or make use of the technology, either directly by features incorporated within the technology or by other reasonable means such as assistive devices or services which would constitute reasonable accommodations under the Americans With Disabilities Act or similar state or federal laws.  Examples of methods by which equivalent access may be provided include, but are not limited to, keyboard alternatives to mouse commands and other means of navigating graphical displays, and customizable display appearance.”

In accordance with Section 2157.005, Texas Government Code, the Technology Access Clause contract provision remains in effect for any contract entered into before September 1, 2006.

88. Electronic and Information Resources Accessibility Standards, 1 TAC §213.17.  Respondent represents and warrants that any electronic and information resources products developed, procured, maintained, or used by CPA directly or used by the Respondent under any PO resulting from this RFO which requires the use of such product, or requires the use, to a significant extent, of such product in the performance of a service or the furnishing of a product complies with the applicable State of Texas Accessibility requirements for Electronic and Information Resources specified in the Department of Information Resources’ rules at 1 Texas Administrative Code Chapter 213.
89. CPA shall pay no costs or other amounts incurred by any entity in responding to this RFO or incurred prior to the effective date of any PO resulting from this RFO.  CPA reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to award the PO without discussion of responses with Respondent(s).  CPA reserves the right to reject any or all submitted Offers, and thereby, is not required to award any PO as a result of this RFO.  All Offers will become a part of CPA’s official procurement files and will be available for public inspection.
VI.
Execution of Offer

This attachment is prepared exclusively for RFO# 304-08-0441JS issued March 20, 2008.  Respondent’s use and submission of any other attachments or documents, including prior year attachments, appendices or exhibits, exhibits from other agency or state solicitations, etc., may not include all substantive information, such as updated representations and warranties, required for a qualifying response to this solicitation and may result in disqualification of the response.
THIS SHEET SHALL BE COMPLETED, SIGNED, AND RETURNED WITH OFFER.  FAILURE TO SIGN AND RETURN THIS SHEET WILL RESULT IN OFFER DISQUALIFICATION.

1.
By signature hereon, Respondent represents and warrants that the provisions in this Execution of Offer apply to Respondent and all of Respondent’s principals, officers, directors, shareholders, partners, owners, agents, employees, subcontractors, independent contractors, and any other representatives who may provide services under, who have a financial interest in, or otherwise are interested in this RFO or any PO resulting from it.   

2.
By signature hereon, Respondent represents and warrants its intent to furnish the requested items at the prices quoted in its Offer.

3.
By signature hereon, Respondent represents and warrants that it has read and understood and shall comply with CPA’s Anti-Fraud Policy, located on CPA's website at   http://www.window.state.tx.us/ssv/ethics.html, as such Policy currently reads and as it is amended throughout the term of any resulting PO.  

4.
By signature hereon, Respondent represents and warrants that its prices include all costs of Respondent in providing the requested items that meet all specifications of this RFO, and that its prices will remain firm for acceptance for a minimum of ninety (90) days from deadline for submission of Offer.

5.
By signature hereon, Respondent represents and warrants that each employee, including ‘replacement employees’, will possess the qualifications, education, training, experience and certifications necessary to perform the services in the manner required by this RFO.

6.
By signature hereon, Respondent represents and warrants that it has no actual or potential conflicts of interest in providing the requested items to CPA under the RFO and any resulting PO, if any, and that Respondent’s provision of the requested items under the RFO and any resulting PO, if any, would not reasonably create an appearance of impropriety.
7.
By signature hereon, Respondent represents and warrants that it has not given, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor or service to a public servant in connection with the submitted Offer.

8.
By signature hereon, Respondent represents and warrants that it is not currently delinquent in the payment of any franchise taxes owed the State of Texas under Chapter 171, Texas Tax Code. In addition, if Respondent is an individual not residing in Texas or a business entity not incorporated in or whose principal domicile is not in Texas, the following certification applies.  Respondent represents and warrants that it holds a permit issued by CPA to collect or remit all state and local sales and use taxes that become due and owing as a result of the individual’s or entity’s business in Texas or represents and warrants that it does not sell tangible personal property or services that are subject to the state and local sales and use tax.  

9.
By signature hereon, Respondent hereby represents and warrants that, pursuant to 15 U.S.C. Section 1, et seq. and Texas Business and Commerce Code Section 15.01, et seq., neither Respondent nor the firm, corporation, partnership, or institution represented by Respondent, or anyone acting for such a firm, corporation or institution has violated the antitrust laws of this state, federal antitrust laws, nor communicated directly or indirectly the Offer made to any competitor or any other person engaged in such line of business.
10.
By signature hereon, Respondent represents and warrants that all statements and information prepared and submitted in response to this RFO are current, complete and accurate.

11.
By signature hereon, Respondent represents and warrants that the individual signing this document and the documents made part of this RFO and Offer is authorized to sign such documents on behalf of the company and to bind the company under any PO which may result from the submission of this Offer.

12.
By signature hereon, Respondent represents and warrants that if a Texas address is shown as the address of the Respondent, Respondent qualifies as a Texas Bidder as defined by 34 Texas Administrative Code §20.32(68). 

13.
Check below if preference claimed under 34 Texas Administrative Code §20.38:

□   Goods produced or offered by a Texas bidder that is owned by a Texas resident service-disabled veteran 

□   Goods produced in Texas or offered by a Texas bidder that is not owned by a Texas resident service-disabled veteran

□   Agricultural products grown in Texas

□   Agricultural products offered by a Texas bidder

□   Services offered by a Texas bidder that is owned by a Texas resident service-disabled veteran

□   Services offered by a Texas bidder that is not owned by a Texas resident service disabled veteran

□   Texas Vegetation Native to the Region
□   USA produced supplies, materials or equipment

□   Products of persons with mental or physical disabilities

□   Products made of recycled, remanufactured, or environmentally sensitive materials including recycled steel

□   Energy Efficient Products

□   Rubberized asphalt paving material

□   Recycled motor oil and lubricants

□   Products produced at facilities located on formerly contaminated property

□   Products and services from economically depressed or blighted areas

□   Vendors that meet or exceed air quality standards

□   Recycled or Reused Computer Equipment of Other Manufacturers 

□   Foods of Higher Nutritional Value 

14.
By signature hereon, under Section 231.006, Texas Family Code, regarding child support, Respondent certifies that the individual or business named in the offer is not ineligible to receive the specified payment and acknowledges that the PO may be terminated and payment may be withheld if this certification is inaccurate. Furthermore, any Respondent subject to Section 231.006, Texas Family Code, must include names and Social Security numbers of each person with at least 25% ownership of the business entity submitting the offer. This information must be provided prior to award.  Enter the Name and Social Security Number for each person below:

	Name:  _______________________________________________________
	SSN: _________________________

	Name:  _______________________________________________________
	SSN: _________________________

	Name:   _______________________________________________________
	SSN: _________________________


15.
By signature hereon, Respondent represents and warrants that no relationship, whether by relative, business associate, capital funding contract or by any other such kinship exist between Respondent and an employee of any CPA component, and Respondent has not been an employee of any CPA component within the immediate twelve (12) months prior to Respondent’s Offer.  By signature hereon, Respondent certifies that it is in compliance with Section 669.003, Texas Government Code, relating to contracting with executive head of a state agency.  All such disclosures will be subject to administrative review and approval prior to CPA entering into any contract with Respondent.  Respondent acknowledges that any PO resulting from this RFO may be terminated at any time, and payments withheld, if this information is false.

16.
By signature hereon, pursuant to Section 2155.004(a), Texas Government Code Respondent represents and warrants that neither it nor any person or entity which will participate financially in any PO resulting from this RFO has received compensation for participation in the preparation of specifications for this RFO. In addition, under Section 2155.004, Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that the individual or business entity named in this Offer or any PO resulting from this RFO is not ineligible to receive the specified contract and acknowledges that the PO may be terminated and payment withheld if this certification is inaccurate.
17.
By signature hereon, Respondent represents and warrants that all articles and services quoted in response to this RFO meet or exceed the safety standards established and promulgated under the Federal Occupational Safety and Health Law and its regulations in effect or proposed as of the date of this solicitation.

18.
By signature hereon, Respondent represents and warrants its compliance with all federal laws and regulations pertaining to Equal Employment Opportunities and Affirmative Action.

19.
By signature hereon, Respondent represents and warrants its compliance with the requirements of the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA).

20.
By signature hereon, in accordance with Section 2155.4441, Texas Government Code, Respondent agrees that during the performance of a contract for services it shall purchase products and materials produced in Texas when they are available at a price and time comparable to products and materials produced outside this state.
21.
By signature hereon, Respondent represents and warrants that CPA's payments to Respondent and Respondent's receipt of appropriated or other funds under any PO resulting from this RFO are not prohibited by Section 556.005 or Section 556.008, Texas Government Code.

22.
By signature hereon, Respondent represents and warrants that the offering entity and its principals are eligible to participate in this transaction and have not been subjected to suspension, debarment, or similar ineligibility determined by any federal, state, or local governmental entity and that Respondent is in compliance with the State of Texas statutes and rules relating to procurement and that Respondent is not listed on the federal government's terrorism watch list as described in Executive Order 13224.  Entities ineligible for federal procurement are listed at http://www.epls.gov. 

23.
Under Section 2155.006(b), Texas Government Code, a state agency may not accept a bid or award a contract, including a contract for which purchasing authority is delegated to a state agency, that includes proposed financial participation by a person who, during the five-year period preceding the date of the bid or award, has been:  (1) convicted of violating a federal law in connection with a contract awarded by the federal government for relief, recovery, or reconstruction efforts as a result of Hurricane Rita,  as defined by Section 39.459, Utilities Code, Hurricane Katrina, or any other disaster occurring after September 24, 2005; or (2)  assessed a penalty in a federal civil or administrative enforcement action in connection with a contract awarded by the federal government for relief, recovery, or reconstruction efforts as a result of Hurricane Rita, as defined by Section 39.459, Utilities Code, Hurricane Katrina, or any other disaster occurring after September 24, 2005.  Under Section 2155.006, Texas Government Code, Respondent certifies that the individual or business entity named in the Offer is not ineligible to receive the specified contract and acknowledges that any PO resulting from this RFO may be terminated and payment withheld if this certification is inaccurate.

24. 
By signature hereon and by checking or initialing either Subsection (a) or Subsection (b), as applicable, Respondent represents and warrants the following:

(a) __________ Respondent represents and warrants that it is not aware of and has received no notice of any court or governmental agency actions, proceedings or investigations, etc., pending or threatened against Respondent or any of the individuals or entities included in Section 1 of this document that would or could impair Respondent’s performance under any PO resulting from this RFO, relate to the solicited or similar goods or services, or otherwise be relevant to the agency’s consideration of Respondent’s Offer.   Respondent represents and warrants that it is not aware of any such court or governmental agency actions, proceedings or investigations, etc. against Respondent or any of these individuals or entities within the five (5) calendar years immediately preceding the submission of Respondent’s Offer in response to this RFO.  In addition, Respondent represents and warrants that it shall notify the CPA in writing within five (5) business days of any changes to the representations or warranties in this Subsection (a) and understands that failure to so timely update the CPA shall constitute breach of contract and may result in immediate termination of the PO. 

(b)  _________  Respondent is unable to make the representation and warranty in Subsection (a) above and instead represents and warrants that it has included as a detailed attachment in its Offer, which expressly references this Subsection (b), a complete disclosure of any such court or governmental agency actions, proceedings or investigations, etc., and specifically addresses whether any of such past, pending or threatened actions, proceedings or investigations, etc., would or could (1) impair Respondent’s performance under any PO resulting from this RFO; (2) relate to the solicited or similar goods or services; or (3) be otherwise relevant to the agency’s consideration of Respondent’s Offer.  In addition, Respondent represents and warrants that it shall notify the CPA in writing within five (5) business days of any changes to the representations or warranties in this Subsection (b) or attachments in response to Subsection (b) and understands that failure to so timely update the CPA shall constitute breach of contract and may result in immediate termination of the PO.
Respondent understands that an Offer returned without the appropriate checked or initialed representation and warranty and the detailed attachment required in Subsection (b), when applicable, may be automatically disqualified.
25.
By signature hereon, Respondent represents and warrants that it has read and agrees to all terms and conditions of this RFO, unless Respondent specifically takes an exception and offers an alternative provision in Respondent’s Offer as provided in Section II of this RFO.

Authorized signatory on behalf of Respondent shall complete and sign the following:

	Authorized Signature
	
	Date Signed

	
	
	

	
	
	

	Title of Authorized Signature
	
	Phone Number

	
	
	

	
	
	

	Company Name
	
	Fax Number

	
	
	

	
	
	

	Federal Employer Identification Number
	
	E-Mail Address

	
	
	

	
	
	

	Physical Street Address
	
	City, State, Zip Code

	
	
	

	
	
	

	Mailing Address, if different
	
	City, State, Zip Code


FEDERAL PRIVACY ACT NOTICE: This notice is given pursuant to the Federal Privacy Act.  Disclosure of your Social Security Number (SSN) is required under Section 231.006(c) and Section 231.302(c)(2), Texas Family Code.  The SSN will be used to identify persons that may owe child support.  The SSN will be kept confidential to the fullest extent allowed under Section 231.302(e), Texas Family Code.
IMPORTANT NOTICE:  IF YOUR RESPONSE TO THIS SOLICITATION DOES NOT CONTAIN ONE INK ORIGINAL OF THIS FULLY COMPLETED AND SIGNED ATTACHMENT, YOUR RESPONSE MAY BE DISQUALIFIED FOR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE ADVERTISED SPECIFICATIONS, EVEN IF ALL OTHER MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS, LETTERS AND EXHIBITS ARE FULLY COMPLETED, SIGNED AND RETURNED.  IN THE OFFER MARKED “ORIGINAL”, RESPONDENT SHALL ENSURE BOTH FULL COMPLETION AND ORIGINAL INK SIGNATURE BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF RESPONDENT.

VII.
Conflict of Interest/Disclosures

This attachment is prepared exclusively for RFO# 304-08-0441JS issued March 20, 2008.   Respondent’s use and submission of any other attachments or documents, including prior year attachments, appendices or exhibits, exhibits from other agency or state solicitations, etc., may not include all substantive information, such as updated representations and warranties, required for a qualifying response to this solicitation and may result in disqualification of the response.
Conflicts of Interest; Disclosures.  Respondent shall disclose in its Offer any actual or potential conflicts of interest in Respondent’s provision of the items in this RFO and under any resulting PO.  In its Offer, Respondent shall identify all employees and include all of the following information, as applicable, for each:

a) names and dates of past or present employment of Respondent’s employees currently employed or previously employed by CPA or any other Texas State agency:

	_______________________________________________________________________________________

	_______________________________________________________________________________________


b) names and dates of past or present employment of relatives of Respondent’s employees currently employed or previously employed by CPA or any other Texas State agency:

	_______________________________________________________________________________________

	_______________________________________________________________________________________


c) names of any current or former employees of CPA or any other Texas State agency with any financial interest in Respondent:

	_______________________________________________________________________________________

	_______________________________________________________________________________________


d) names of any current or former executive head of a Texas State agency that is currently employed by Respondent:

Name of Former Executive:________________________________________________________________

Name of State Agency:____________________________________________________________________

Date of Separation from State Agency:________________________________________________________

Position with Respondent:__________________________________________________________________

Date of Employment with Respondent:________________________________________________________

In addition, Successful Respondent shall provide the information in (a), (b), (c), and (d) above throughout the term of any PO resulting from this RFO prior to assignment of any employees to the PO. 

CPA shall screen Respondent’s employees for any actual or potential conflict of interest. Successful Respondent represents and warrants that it will not use, in its performance under the PO, the services of any employee/subcontractor who is prohibited by applicable statues, regulations or policies from providing services to or receiving compensation from CPA under any PO resulting from this RFO. Successful Respondent or Successful Respondent’s employee who knowingly falsifies information under this Section shall be for immediate termination and other penalties under the PO and applicable law. 

_______________________________________

___________________________________

Signature of Authorized Representative


Date Signed

__________________________________________

___________________________________

Printed Name of Authorized Personnel


Title of Authorized Personnel

IMPORTANT NOTICE:  IF YOUR RESPONSE TO THIS SOLICITATION DOES NOT CONTAIN ONE INK ORIGINAL OF THIS FULLY COMPLETED AND SIGNED ATTACHMENT, YOUR RESPONSE MAY BE DISQUALIFIED FOR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE ADVERTISED SPECIFICATIONS, EVEN IF ALL OTHER MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS, LETTERS AND EXHIBITS ARE FULLY COMPLETED, SIGNED AND RETURNED.  IN THE OFFER MARKED “ORIGINAL”, RESPONDENT SHALL ENSURE BOTH FULL COMPLETION AND ORIGINAL INK SIGNATURE BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF RESPONDENT.
VIII.
Criminal Conviction Certification

This attachment is prepared exclusively for RFO# 304-08-0441JS issued March 20, 2008.   Respondent’s use and submission of any other attachments or documents, including prior year attachments, appendices or exhibits, exhibits from other agency or state solicitations, etc., may not include all substantive information, such as updated representations and warranties, required for a qualifying response to this solicitation and may result in disqualification of the response.
THIS CRIMINAL CONVICTION CERTIFICATION FORM IS INCORPORATED AS PART OF RESPONDENT’S OFFER AND ANY PO RESULTING FROM THIS RFO FOR ALL PURPOSES.

Respondent represents and warrants that it shall comply with all of the following requirements:

Respondent shall take appropriate steps and perform due diligence –- at a minimum, as described in this Section VIII -- to become informed as to each assigned employee’s felony criminal convictions, if any, and shall promptly inform CPA’s Contract Administrator of any such felony criminal convictions for any assigned employee.  At a minimum, Respondent shall take these appropriate steps and perform due diligence at each of these three (3) intervals:  (1) within the seven (7) business days immediately prior to submission of Respondent’s Offer; (2) within the seven (7) business days prior to the proposed effective date of any renewal or extension of any PO resulting from this RFO; and (3) within the seven (7) business days prior to requesting approval for assignment of a new employee (such as a substitute employee).   Respondent shall inform CPA in writing within three (3) business days of Respondent’s receipt of any information on any felony convictions of assigned employees obtained from any of these steps at any of these intervals.

At each of the above three (3) intervals, Respondent shall take minimum steps to review and perform due diligence of every assigned employee’s criminal history.   Respondent’s minimum steps shall include, at a minimum, (1)  Respondent’s compliance with Respondent’s published employee policies and procedures for background and criminal checks of Respondent’s employees and (2) Respondent’s comprehensive search of the public information portion of a online criminal conviction database, such as the DPS criminal conviction database at: https://records.txdps.state.tx.us/dps_web/Portal/index.aspx.   If such DPS criminal conviction database is not appropriate for a particular assigned employee, Respondent shall submit with its Offer, its renewal or extension, or with its request for assignment, as appropriate, sufficient documentation that an equivalent or more extensive search was conducted and that the alternative is appropriate for that assigned employee.

Upon request by CPA, Respondent shall provide to CPA, no later than five (5) business days after receiving such request, the written results of these minimum steps for all assigned employees.

For purposes of this Section VIII, “assigned employees” includes, without limitation, all employees or personnel, for example, who will or may (1) be assigned as lead or key employees or personnel under any PO resulting from this RFO; (2) interact on-site at CPA’s premises with any CPA personnel, assets, records or resources in connection with any PO resulting from this RFO; or (3) otherwise access or interact with any assets, records or resources of CPA in connection with any PO resulting from this RFO.  

By signing this form and initialing the appropriate space, Respondent represents and warrants that it took the above minimum steps and performed due diligence as required by this Section VIII to become informed as to each assigned employee’s felony convictions.   If one or more proposed individuals have felony convictions, Respondent shall describe the nature and timing of each conviction in a separate letter as part of Respondent’s Offer (and in its renewal or extension, request for assignment, etc., as appropriate). 

If CPA becomes aware that the completed certification form is false, or if Respondent fails to promptly advise CPA of a felony criminal conviction occurring after the certification becomes effective, Respondent shall be in breach of any PO resulting from this RFO and CPA shall have the option to terminate the PO without further obligation to Respondent and may pursue all other remedies and rights available to CPA under any PO resulting from this RFO, at law, or in equity.

Respondent shall have an authorized company representative initial and sign this document in the blanks provided below, and shall return the initialed and signed form along with the other required paperwork with its Offer (and as appropriate, its renewal or extension, or with its request for assignment).

Respondent shall indicate, by initialing in the space provided to the left of Items 1-3 below, its intent to comply with these provisions.  Respondent shall initial Item 2 in any case and either initial Item 1 or 3 as applicable.  Additionally, Respondent shall sign, date, and provide the title of the person executing this Criminal Conviction Certification on its behalf in the space provided below at the end of this document.

1._____________
Respondent represents and warrants that it performed all minimum steps and due diligence described in this Section VIII and that all currently assigned employees and all employees proposed for assignment have no felony criminal convictions.  (If Respondent cannot make this unqualified representation and warranty, Respondent shall initial blank #3 below and provide the detailed letter as an attachment to this Section VIII, detailing and explaining any such convictions.)

2._____________
Respondent represents and warrants that it shall notify CPA’s Contract Administrator in writing if any future proposed employee (for example, a substitute or other newly assigned employee) has any felony criminal conviction or if any information for any previously assigned employee has changed, no later than three (3) business days prior to such proposed employee’s proposed assignment starting date or no later than three (3) business days after Respondent’s receipt of such changed information, whichever is applicable.

3._____________ 
Respondent represents and warrants that it performed all minimum steps and due diligence described in this Section VIII and that all currently assigned employees and all employees proposed for assignment have no felony criminal convictions except those noted on the attached separate letter. Respondent represents and warrants that it has attached a separate letter with this Section VIII and that the attached detailed information describes the nature and timing of each felony conviction for each employee listed. 

Signature of Authorized Representative

Date Signed

 




Printed Name of Authorized Representative



Title of Authorized Representative

IMPORTANT NOTICE:  IF YOUR RESPONSE TO THIS SOLICITATION DOES NOT CONTAIN ONE INK ORIGINAL OF THIS FULLY COMPLETED AND SIGNED ATTACHMENT, YOUR RESPONSE MAY BE DISQUALIFIED FOR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE ADVERTISED SPECIFICATIONS, EVEN IF ALL OTHER MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS, LETTERS AND EXHIBITS ARE FULLY COMPLETED, SIGNED AND RETURNED.  IN THE OFFER MARKED “ORIGINAL”, RESPONDENT SHALL ENSURE BOTH FULL COMPLETION AND ORIGINAL INK SIGNATURE BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF RESPONDENT.
IX.
Nondisclosure Agreement

This attachment is prepared exclusively for RFO# 304-08-0441JS issued March 20, 2008.  Respondent’s use and submission of any other attachments or documents, including prior year attachments, appendices or exhibits, exhibits from other agency or state solicitations, etc., may not include all substantive information, such as updated representations and warranties, required for a qualifying response to this solicitation and may result in disqualification of the response.
In consideration of CPA communicating with Respondent regarding a proposed PO and because of the sensitivity of certain information provided to Respondent, both parties agree that all information regarding CPA or gathered, produced, collected or derived from or related to this project or provided to Respondent as a result of this project (Confidential Information) shall remain confidential for release only upon prior written approval of CPA, and more specifically agree as follows:

1.
The Confidential Information may be used by Respondent only to assist Respondent in connection with this solicitation or any resulting PO with CPA.

2.
Respondent shall not, at any time, use the Confidential Information in any fashion, form, or manner except in its capacity as proposed consultant or independent contractor to CPA.

3.
Respondent agrees to maintain the confidentiality of any and all Confidential Information related to this solicitation or any resulting PO in the same manner that it protects the confidentiality of its own proprietary products of like kind.

4.
The Confidential Information may not be copied, reproduced, disclosed or distributed without CPA's prior written approval.  Any copies made shall be CPA’s property.

5.
All Confidential materials made available to Respondent, including copies thereof, shall be returned to CPA upon the first to occur of; (a) completion of the project or any resulting PO, or (b) request by CPA.

6.
The foregoing shall not prohibit or limit Respondent use of the information (including, but not limited to, ideas, concepts, know-how, techniques and methodologies) (a) previously known to it, (b) independently developed by it, (c) acquired by it from a third party, or (d) which is or becomes part of the public domain through no breach to Respondent of this agreement.

7.
This agreement shall become effective as of the date Confidential Information is first made available to Respondent and shall survive the project and any resulting PO and be a continuing requirement.

8.
The breach of this agreement by Respondent shall entitle CPA to immediately terminate the project or any resulting PO upon written notice to Respondent for such breach.  The parties acknowledge that the measure of damages in the event of a breach of this agreement may be difficult or impossible to calculate, depending on the nature of the breach.  Regardless of whether CPA elects to terminate the project or any resulting PO upon the breach hereof, CPA may require Respondent to pay to CPA the sum of $5,000 for each breach as liquidated damages.  This amount is not intended to be in the nature of a penalty, but is intended to be a reasonable estimate of the amount of damages to CPA in the event of a breach hereof by Respondent of this agreement.  CPA does not waive any right to seek additional relief, either equitable or otherwise, concerning any breach of this agreement.

_______________________________________

___________________________________

Signature of Authorized Representative


Date Signed

__________________________________________

___________________________________

Printed Name of Authorized Personnel


Title of Authorized Personnel

IMPORTANT NOTICE:  IF YOUR RESPONSE TO THIS SOLICITATION DOES NOT CONTAIN ONE INK ORIGINAL OF THIS FULLY COMPLETED AND SIGNED ATTACHMENT, YOUR RESPONSE MAY BE DISQUALIFIED FOR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE ADVERTISED SPECIFICATIONS, EVEN IF ALL OTHER MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS, LETTERS AND EXHIBITS ARE FULLY COMPLETED, SIGNED AND RETURNED.  IN THE OFFER MARKED “ORIGINAL”, RESPONDENT SHALL ENSURE BOTH FULL COMPLETION AND ORIGINAL INK SIGNATURE BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF RESPONDENT.
X.
Insurance and Bonds

This attachment is prepared exclusively for RFO# 304-08-0441JS issued March 20, 2008.   Respondent’s use and submission of any other attachments or documents, including prior year attachments, appendices or exhibits, exhibits from other agency or state solicitations, etc., may not include all substantive information, such as updated representations and warranties, required for a qualifying response to this solicitation and may result in disqualification of the response.
The Respondent represents and warrants that, within five (5) business days of receipt of notice of tentative contract award, it shall provide CPA with proof of coverage and represents and warrants that it shall maintain the following coverages throughout the term of the PO:

· Blanket Employee Dishonesty Bond or Employee Dishonesty Coverage under a liability insurance policy with a minimum $25,000 for each individual who will provide services under this PO.  A rider or endorsement shall name the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts as loss payee or additional named insured under the respective bond or policy;

· Standard Workers Compensation Insurance covering all individuals who will provide services under this PO;

· Commercial General Liability Insurance: $2,500,000 minimum each occurrence limit;  $5,000,000 minimum aggregate limit; and

· Professional Liability Insurance: $2,500,000 minimum each occurrence limit; $5,000,000 minimum aggregate limit.

Respondent represents and warrants that all coverages are with companies licensed in Texas, with “A” rating from A.M. Best, and authorized to provide the required coverages.  Respondent also represents and warrants that all of the above policies and bonds contain endorsements prohibiting cancellation exception upon at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts. Respondent shall, within the time provided above, furnish proof to Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts of such coverage in the form of a Certificate of Insurance from Respondent’s insurance carrier or carriers indicating the above coverages.  The Certificate shall be addressed to the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts as the Certificate holder.

Signature of Authorized Personnel

Date Signed

Printed Name of Authorized Personnel

Title of Authorized Personnel

IMPORTANT NOTICE:  IF YOUR RESPONSE TO THIS SOLICITATION DOES NOT CONTAIN ONE INK ORIGINAL OF THIS FULLY COMPLETED AND SIGNED ATTACHMENT, YOUR RESPONSE MAY BE DISQUALIFIED FOR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE ADVERTISED SPECIFICATIONS, EVEN IF ALL OTHER MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS, LETTERS AND EXHIBITS ARE FULLY COMPLETED, SIGNED AND RETURNED.  IN THE OFFER MARKED “ORIGINAL”, RESPONDENT SHALL ENSURE BOTH FULL COMPLETION AND ORIGINAL INK SIGNATURE BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF RESPONDENT.
XI.
Confidential Tax/Vendor Information Agreement

This attachment is prepared exclusively for RFO# 304-08-0441JS issued March 20, 2008.   Respondent’s use and submission of any other attachments or documents, including prior year attachments, appendices or exhibits, exhibits from other agency or state solicitations, etc., may not include all substantive information, such as updated representations and warranties, required for a qualifying response to this solicitation and may result in disqualification of the response.
Under Ch. 559, Government Code, you are entitled to review, request, and correct information we have on file about you, with limited exceptions in accordance with Ch. 552, Government Code. To request information for review or to request error correction, contact your CPA Project Manager. 

	Contractor/Vendor Company Name:


	Name of person needing access: 



	Mailing Address:


	Phone number  & Email Address:  



	CPA Project Manager Name:


	CPA Division & Phone number:




I understand that all information concerning any taxpayer or vendor which may come to my knowledge while using any computer system of the Comptroller of Public Accounts or otherwise provided by the Comptroller's office is to be held in strictest confidence and may not be disclosed except as provided in the Comptroller's Disclosure Policy. 

I understand that any unauthorized disclosure of confidential information may be punished by up to one year imprisonment and/or a $1,000 fine. Tex. Gov’t. Code §552.352, Tex. Tax Code §171.361(b). I also understand that any unauthorized access, viewing, use, or disclosure of federal tax information is a felony offense punishable by up to 5 years imprisonment, a $5,000 fine, and possible civil damages. 26 U.S.C. §§7213, 7213A, and 7431.

I understand that computer system password(s) I receive or devise are confidential. I will not disclose to any unauthorized person any password(s) which I am given or devise, and I will not write down such password(s) or post them where they may be viewed by unauthorized people.  I understand that use of a password not issued specifically to me or to a group of which I am a member is expressly prohibited. I also understand that failure to observe these restrictions constitutes a Breach of Computer Security, and that such an offense may constitute a first-degree felony. Tex. Pen. Code §33.02.

I understand that I am responsible for any computer transactions performed as a result of access authorized by use of any passwords that I receive or devise. I agree to abide by all written conditions and restrictions imposed by the Comptroller’s Information Security Administrator. I agree NOT to attempt to circumvent the computer security system.

I understand that any copyrighted material, including but not limited to, commercial computer software that may be made available to me for my use by the Comptroller's office is protected by copyright laws and is not to be copied for any reason without permission from the copyright owner. I understand that the violation of copyright laws may result in fines, imprisonment and/or immediate dismissal from employment.

	sign

here 
	
	Signature of person needing access: 


	Date:  


	sign

here 
	
	CPA Division Project Manager or Security Coordinator: 


	Date:  


For the contracting CPA Division:

· The contracting CPA Division is responsible for maintaining this signed CTIA for five years after access has been terminated for this individual. 

· The Signed CTIAs that the CPA Division maintains will be available for audit by staff of the CPA, the Texas State Auditor, the Texas Department of Information Resources, and other authorized auditors upon request. 

For additional information, contact:  
Information Security Division

1-800-531-5441, ext. 3-4991

Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts
or 512-463-4991

111 E. 17th Street

Austin, TX 7877

(Rev 2-2-04)

IMPORTANT NOTICE:  IF YOUR RESPONSE TO THIS SOLICITATION DOES NOT CONTAIN ONE INK ORIGINAL OF THIS FULLY COMPLETED AND SIGNED ATTACHMENT, YOUR RESPONSE MAY BE DISQUALIFIED FOR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE ADVERTISED SPECIFICATIONS, EVEN IF ALL OTHER MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS, LETTERS AND EXHIBITS ARE FULLY COMPLETED, SIGNED AND RETURNED.  IN THE OFFER MARKED “ORIGINAL”, RESPONDENT SHALL ENSURE BOTH FULL COMPLETION AND ORIGINAL INK SIGNATURE BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF RESPONDENT.
XII.
Approval Form to Copy Documentation

This attachment is prepared exclusively for RFO# 304-08-0441JS issued March 20, 2008.  Respondent’s use and submission of any other attachments or documents, including prior year attachments, appendices or exhibits, exhibits from other agency or state solicitations, etc., may not include all substantive information, such as updated representations and warranties, required for a qualifying response to this solicitation and may result in disqualification of the response.

This Approval Form to Copy Documentation (Approval) is made between the Original Software Manufacturer, ____________________________ (Successful Respondent), and Comptroller of Public Accounts (CPA).

Upon the terms and conditions of the Agreement, as defined in RFO# 304-08-0441JS issued March 20, 2008, negotiated and executed between Successful Respondent and CPA, Successful Respondent authorizes CPA to make additional copies of the Documentation necessary for CPA to fully utilize the license rights granted in the Agreement.  Copies may not be distributed externally, i.e., to other than CPA.  The Documentation, which may be copies, is limited to those Software products and programs currently licensed as set forth hereinafter.  This license does not authorize copying of the Successful Respondent’s security manuals or marketing materials.  

1.
Permission for CPA to copy the Documentation is at no charge to CPA, except for the initial set of Documentation, as described in the Agreement.  The number of copies will not exceed personnel in the user division.  CPA will restrict distribution of the Documentation to those users with a “Need to Know” classification.

2.
In the event the Agreement is terminated all copies of the Documentation shall be promptly destroyed or returned to Successful Respondent at CPA’s expense.  

3.
CPA shall not remove, deface, or otherwise obscure any copyright, patent, trademark, service mark, or other proprietary legend (Proprietary Legends) on the Licensed Software or the Documentation.  Furthermore, CPA shall include such Proprietary Legends in any reproductions of either the Software or the Documentation that CPA is permitted to make.

4.
Successful Respondent may not terminate this Approval as long as the Agreement is valid.   

____________________________________

COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS


(Insert Name of Entity)

By: 



By:







(Authorized Signature)


(Authorized Signature)


(Name)




Martin A. Hubert


(Title)
Deputy Comptroller


(Date)





        
 (Date)


IMPORTANT NOTICE:  IF YOUR RESPONSE TO THIS SOLICITATION DOES NOT CONTAIN ONE INK ORIGINAL OF THIS FULLY COMPLETED AND SIGNED ATTACHMENT, YOUR RESPONSE MAY BE DISQUALIFIED FOR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE ADVERTISED SPECIFICATIONS, EVEN IF ALL OTHER MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS, LETTERS AND EXHIBITS ARE FULLY COMPLETED, SIGNED AND RETURNED.  IN THE OFFER MARKED “ORIGINAL”, RESPONDENT SHALL ENSURE BOTH FULL COMPLETION AND ORIGINAL INK SIGNATURE BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF RESPONDENT.
XIII.
HUB Subcontracting Plan Information

This attachment is prepared exclusively for RFO# 304-08-0441JS issued March 20, 2008.   Respondent’s use and submission of any other attachments or documents, including prior year attachments, appendices or exhibits, exhibits from other agency or state solicitations, etc., may not include all substantive information, such as updated representations and warranties, required for a qualifying response to this solicitation and may result in disqualification of the response.

	[image: image2.png]



	HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP)


In accordance with Gov’t Code §2161.252, the contracting agency has determined that subcontracting opportunities are probable under this contract.  Therefore, respondents, including State of Texas certified Historically Underutilized Businesses (HUBs), shall complete and submit a State of Texas HUB Subcontracting Plan (HSP) with their solicitation response.

NOTE: Responses that do not include a completed HSP shall be rejected pursuant to Gov’t Code §2161.252(b).

The HUB Program promotes equal business opportunities for economically disadvantaged persons to contract with the State of Texas in accordance with the goals specified in the State of Texas Disparity Study.  The HUB goals defined in 34 TAC §20.13 are: 11.9 percent for heavy construction other than building contracts, 26.1 percent for all building construction, including general contractors and operative builders contracts, 57.2 percent for all special trade construction contracts, 20 percent for professional services contracts, 33 percent for all other services contracts, and 12.6 percent for commodities contracts.
- - Agency Special Instructions/Additional Requirements - -

	The Texas Comptroller’s office is fully committed to increasing contracting opportunities with HUBs by contracting directly with HUBs or indirectly through subcontracting opportunities.   Therefore, we ask that you please consider utilizing HUBs in subcontracting areas which are listed below, but in no way should this list be considered exhaustive.  An audio/video file that explains, in a step-by-step method, how to accurately complete the HSP is available at CPA’s web site at: http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/hub/hub-subcontracting-plan/ 
If your bid/proposal/offer does not contain a complete HSP and supporting documentation, your bid will be considered non-responsive and will be disqualified.  Once awarded, respondent will be subject to debarment pursuant to Gov't Code 2161.253(d) if any modifications are made to the HSP without PRIOR approval from this agency.   

PLEASE NOTE:  As the Texas Comptroller's office continues its commitment to promote the HUB program, we are extending our "Good Faith Efforts" by also requiring an HSP on contracts with an expected value of $25,000 to $99,999. Therefore, we ask that you also consider utilizing HUBs in subcontracting areas which are listed below.   

Class

Item

Description

208

80

Software, Microcomputer (not otherwise classified)
206
87

Servers, Mini/Mainframe Computer (Application, Database, File Mail, Network, Web, etc.
920

45

Software Maintenance
939

21

Hardware Maintenance



	SECTION 1
	-  Respondent and Solicitation Information

	a.
	Respondent (Company) Name:
	     
	State of Texas VID #:
	     

	
	Point of Contact:
	     
	Phone #:
	     

	b.
	Is your company a State of Texas certified HUB?      FORMCHECKBOX 
 - Yes      FORMCHECKBOX 
 - No

	c.
	Solicitation #:
	     


	SECTION 2
	-   subcontracting Intentions


After having divided the contract work into reasonable lots or portions to the extent consistent with prudent industry practices, the respondent shall determine what portion(s) of work, including goods or services, will be subcontracted.  Note: In accordance with 34 TAC §20.12., a “Subcontractor” means a person who contracts with a vendor to work, to supply commodities, or contribute toward completing work for a governmental entity.  Check the appropriate box that identifies your subcontracting intentions:
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 -
Yes, I will be subcontracting portion(s) of the contract.


(If Yes, in the spaces provided below, list the portions of work you will be subcontracting, and go to page 2.)

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 -
No, I will not be subcontracting any portion of the contract, and will be fulfilling the entire contract with my own resources.


(If No, complete SECTION 9 and 10.)

	Line Item # - Subcontracting Opportunity Description
	Line Item # - Subcontracting Opportunity Description

	(  #1)
	-      
	(#11)
	-      

	(  #2)
	-      
	(#12)
	-      

	(  #3)
	-      
	(#13)
	-      

	(  #4)
	-      
	(#14)
	-      

	(  #5)
	-      
	(#15)
	-      

	(  #6)
	-      
	(#16)
	-      

	(  #7)
	-      
	(#17)
	-      

	(  #8)
	-      
	(#18)
	-      

	(  #9)
	-      
	(#19)
	-      

	(#10)
	-      
	(#20)
	-      


*If you have more than twenty subcontracting opportunities, a continuation page is available at http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/hub/hub-forms/HUBSubcontractingPlanContinuationPage1.doc

	Enter your company’s name here:
	     
	
	Solicitation #:
	     
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


IMPORTANT:  You shall complete a copy of this page for each of the subcontracting opportunities you listed in SECTION 2.  You may photocopy this page or download copies at http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/hub/hub-forms/HUBSubcontractingPlanContinuationPage2.doc.
	SECTION 3
	-  Subcontracting Opportunity

	Enter the line item number and description of the subcontracting opportunity you listed in SECTION 2.

	Line Item # 
	   
	Description:  
	     
	

	
	
	
	
	

	SECTION 4
	-  Mentor-Protégé Program

	If respondent is participating as a Mentor in a State of Texas Mentor Protégé Program, submitting their Protégé (Protégé shall be a State of Texas certified HUB) as a subcontractor to perform the portion of work (subcontracting opportunity) listed in SECTION 3, constitutes a good faith effort towards that specific portion of work.  Will you be subcontracting the portion of work listed in SECTION 3 to your Protégé?
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 - Yes (If Yes, complete SECTION 8 and 10.)         FORMCHECKBOX 
 - No / Not Applicable (If No or Not Applicable, go to SECTION 5.)

	SECTION 5
	-  Professional Services Contracts Only

	
	This section applies to Professional Services Contracts only.  All other contracts go to SECTION 6.

	Does your HSP contain subcontracting of 20% or more with HUB(s)? 

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 - Yes (If Yes, complete SECTION 8 and 10.)         FORMCHECKBOX 
 - No / Not Applicable (If No or Not Applicable, go to SECTION 6.)
In accordance with Gov’t Code §2254.004, “Professional Services" means services: (A) within the scope of the practice, as defined by state law of accounting; architecture; landscape architecture; land surveying; medicine; optometry; professional engineering; real estate appraising; or professional nursing; or (B) provided in connection with the professional employment or practice of a person who is licensed or registered as a certified public accountant; an architect; a landscape architect; a land surveyor; a physician, including a surgeon; an optometrist; a professional engineer; a state certified or state licensed real estate appraiser; or a registered nurse.  

	SECTION 6 
	-  NOTIFICATION OF SUBCONTRACTING OPPORTUNITy

	
	Complying with a, b and c of this section constitutes Good Faith Effort towards the portion of work listed in SECTION 3.  After performing the requirements of this section, complete SECTION 7, 8 and 10.

	a.
Provide written notification of the subcontracting opportunity listed in SECTION 3 to three (3) or more HUBs.  Use the State of Texas’ Centralized Master Bidders List (CMBL), found at http://www2.cpa.state.tx.us/cmbl/cmblhub.html, and its HUB Directory, found at http://www2.cpa.state.tx.us/cmbl/hubonly.html, to identify available HUBs. Note: Attach supporting documentation (letters, phone logs, fax transmittals, electronic mail, etc.) demonstrating evidence of the good faith effort performed.
b.
Provide written notification of the subcontracting opportunity listed in SECTION 3 to a minority or women trade organization or development center to assist in identifying potential HUBs by disseminating the subcontracting opportunity to their members/participants.  A list of trade organizations and development centers may be accessed at http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/hub/mwb-links-1/.  Note: Attach supporting documentation (letters, phone logs, fax transmittals, electronic mail, etc.) demonstrating evidence of the good faith effort performed.
c. Written notifications should include the scope of the work, information regarding the location to review plans and specifications, bonding and insurance requirements, required qualifications, and identify a contact person.  Unless the contracting agency has specified a different time period, you shall allow the HUBs no less than five (5) working days from their receipt of notice to respond, and provide notice of your subcontracting opportunity to a minority or women trade organization or development center no less than five (5) working days prior to the submission of your response to the contracting agency.

	SECTION 7
	-  HUB firms CONTACTed for Subcontracting Opportunity

	List three (3) State of Texas certified HUBs you notified regarding the portion of work (subcontracting opportunity) listed in SECTION 3. Specify the vendor ID number, date you provided notice, and if you received a response.  Note: Attach supporting documentation (letters, phone logs, fax transmittals, electronic mail, etc.) demonstrating evidence of the good faith effort performed.

	
	Company Name
	
	VID #
	
	Notice Date
(mm/dd/yyyy)
	Was Response Received?

	
	     
	
	     
	
	     /        /     
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 - Yes       FORMCHECKBOX 
 - No

	
	     
	
	     
	
	     /        /     
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 - Yes       FORMCHECKBOX 
 - No

	
	     
	
	     
	
	     /        /     
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 - Yes       FORMCHECKBOX 
 - No

	

	SECTION 8
	-  Subcontractor Selection

	List the subcontractor(s) you selected to perform the portion of work (subcontracting opportunity) listed in SECTION 3.  Also, specify the expected percentage of work to be subcontracted, the approximate dollar value of the work to be subcontracted, and indicate if the company is a Texas certified HUB.

	
	Company Name
	
	VID #
	
	Expected %

of Contract
	
	Approximate

Dollar Amount
	Texas

Certified HUB?

	
	     
	
	     
	
	   %
	
	$     
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 - Yes    FORMCHECKBOX 
 - No*

	
	     
	
	     
	
	   %
	
	$     
	 FORMCHECKBOX 
 - Yes    FORMCHECKBOX 
 - No*

	*If the subcontractor(s) you selected is not a Texas certified HUB, provide written justification of your selection process below:

	
	     
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	Enter your company’s name here:
	     
	
	Solicitation #:
	     
	

	
	
	
	
	
	


	SECTION 9
	-  sELF PERFORMANCE JUSTIFICATION

(If you responded “No” to SECTION 2, you shall complete SECTION 9 and 10.)

	
	


Does your response/proposal contain an explanation demonstrating how your company will fulfill the entire contract with its own resources?

 FORMCHECKBOX 
 -Yes
If Yes, in the space provided below, list the specific page/section of your proposal which identifies how your company will perform the entire contract

with its own equipment, supplies, materials and/or employees.
 FORMCHECKBOX 
 - No
If No, in the space provided below, explain how your company will perform the entire contract with its own equipment, supplies, materials, 
and/or employees.

	     


	SECTION 10
	-  Affirmation


As evidenced by my signature below, I affirm that I am an authorized representative of the respondent listed in SECTION 1, and that the information and supporting documentation submitted with the HSP are true and correct. Respondent understands and agrees that, if awarded any portion of the solicitation:
· The respondent shall submit monthly compliance reports (Prime Contractor Progress Assessment Report – PAR) to the contracting agency, verifying their compliance with the HSP, including the use/expenditures they have made to subcontractors.  (The PAR is available at http://www.window.state.tx.us/procurement/prog/hub/hub-forms/progressassessmentrpt.xls).
· The respondent shall seek approval from the contracting agency prior to making any modifications to their HSP.  If the HSP is modified without the contracting agency’s prior approval, respondent may be subject to debarment pursuant to Gov’t Code §2161.253(d).
· The respondent shall, upon request, allow the contracting agency to perform on-site reviews of the company’s headquarters and/or work-site where services are to be performed and shall provide documents regarding staff and other resources.

____________________________________
_________________________________
___________________
___________________


Signature
Printed Name
Title
Date

IMPORTANT NOTICE:  IF YOUR RESPONSE TO THIS SOLICITATION DOES NOT CONTAIN ONE INK ORIGINAL OF THIS FULLY COMPLETED AND SIGNED ATTACHMENT, YOUR RESPONSE MAY BE DISQUALIFIED FOR FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH THE ADVERTISED SPECIFICATIONS, EVEN IF ALL OTHER MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS, LETTERS AND EXHIBITS ARE FULLY COMPLETED, SIGNED AND RETURNED.  IN THE OFFER MARKED “ORIGINAL”, RESPONDENT SHALL ENSURE BOTH FULL COMPLETION AND ORIGINAL INK SIGNATURE BY AN AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE OF RESPONDENT.

Appendix A

RFO Definitions
· Access/Security/Other. Internal or external security access required for customers to use the Treasury Operations’ systems.

· Affidavit of Forgery. A legal document claiming forged endorsement on a Treasury Warrant.

· Agency Object. USAS data element (statutory).

· Appropriation Number. USAS data element (statutory).

· Automated Clearing House (ACH). Type of electronic payment (non-wire) originated and received by Treasury Operations that is settled daily through the nationwide financial system.

· Banking and Electronic Processing (BEP). Division in Treasury Operations.

· Business Intelligence (BI). Refers to technologies, applications and practices for the collection, integration, analysis and presentation of business information to support better decision-making. BI systems provide historical, current and predictive views of business operations using data that has been gathered into a data warehouse.

· Capture. Creating electronic images of checks and deposits utilizing check processing software.

· Cash & Securities Management (CSM). Division in Treasury Operations.

· Cash Letter. Bundle listings and recap of checks included in a bank deposit.

· Character Amount Recognition (CAR). Software used to recognize numeric amounts on checks.

· Chargeback. Warrant request for state agencies to track status of forgery claims.

· Check 21 Method. Process used to make deposits and receive cash letters via image in accordance with law enacted in October 2004.

· Comp Object Code. USAS data element (statutory).

· Comptroller of Public Accounts (CPA).  A state agency.

· Computer Associates (CA) Clipper. An application development language (xBase) and integrated navigational database management system (DBF) used by Treasury Operations.

· Concentration Account. Local bank account used to receive state agency/field office deposits which are usually swept into Treasury Operations daily by ACH debit.

· COTS. Commercial Off-the-Shelf Software.

· CZT. Central Zone Time.

· Daily Proof Item Capture Summary (DPIC). A daily report of all deposit types by capture.

· Data Providers. External entities (outside Treasury) that provide data and information to complete the process.

· Data Warehouse. An extraction of other CPA system’s enterprise data.

· Deposit Document (DDOC). USAS deposit entry requiring matching Treasury Operations entry before completion.

· Disaster Recovery.  A coordinated activity to enable the recovery of IT/business systems due to a CPA-declared emergency. Disaster recovery can be achieved by restoring IT/business operations at an alternate location, recovering IT/business operations using alternate equipment, and/or performing some or all of the affected business processes using manual methods. 

· Documentation.  The complete set of operating manuals necessary to enable CPA to properly install and use the Licensed Software and Hardware, including but not limited to all updates, revisions, and corrections to the manual.
· Electronic Benefits Transfer (EBT). The automated distribution of financial benefits to state welfare recipients.

· Electronic Data Interchange (EDI). Nationally approved format for electronic submission of electronic tax reports/payments. Treasury Operations receives ACH file of electronic payments.
· Enterprise Service Bus (ESB). The software infrastructure that acts as a message broker between applications.

· Error Corrections. The correction of software malfunctions due to development/coding issues that prevent the software program from operating as designed.
· FDOC. USAS pre-approved deposit entry not requiring matching entry.

· FileMaker Pro. A tool that allows building of database applications.

· Fiscal Year. The State of Texas and CPA’s fiscal year that begins on September 1 and ends on August 31.

· Frequency. Describes how often the process occurs (For example, Daily, Weekly, Monthly, Semi-Annual, Yearly.) 

· Fund. USAS data element (statutory).

· Go-Live.  The date by which Treasury transactions from CPA, the public, other state agencies, institutions of higher education, state agencies, financial institutions, and other external entities are processed and balanced in a production environment using the Treasury Solution with production files submitted to all appropriate interfacing systems. The result of this processing becomes official state records.

· GetWire (GWTEXNET).  Microsoft Excel spreadsheet used to report wire transactions received in the Federal Reserve Account.
· Hardware Maintenance and Technical Support. Telephone and on-line services, including but not limited to, error corrections, updates, upgrades, fixes, patches, enhancements, extensions, releases, latest features, performance improvements, documentation, and Technical Library CD series, if applicable.

· Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC). A state agency.

· Image Cash Letter (ICL). An electronic bank deposit.

· Improvements. Describes process changes needed to improve process efficiency, streamline process flow, eliminate/reduce manual interaction, reduce staffing, and increase customer satisfaction.

· INFOSGA. Electronic report delivery system accessible through CPA mainframe.

· Innovation and Technology (IT). CPA division comprised of the Project Management Office, Information Security, Software Development, IT Infrastructure, IR Planning, Budgeting & Contracting, and Business Process and Requirements Management.
· Inputs. Any data feed that is directly fed into the process and which could prevent this specific process from occurring without it. (Example:  ACH Flat file.)

· Interactive Voice Response (IVR). A phone technology that allows a computer to detect voice and touch tones using a normal phone call.  The main purpose of Treasury Operations’ IVR systems (Warrant & TexNet/Concentration) is not to route phone calls. Treasury Operations’ Warrant IVR system accurately and reliably provides inquiry access on warrant status for the public, and also for state agencies. The Treasury Operations’ TexNet/Concentration IVR system accurately and reliably generates critical financial transactions for a significant percentage of the state's revenue daily. 
· Interfaces. Any non-Treasury system that is accessed to complete this process. (Example:  Internet Banking Systems, USAS.)

· Internet Banking Systems.  Web-based financial systems maintained by financial institutions and used by Treasury to research bank accounts.

· IP Rights. All intellectual property rights, including copyrights, patents, trade secrets, trademarks, and other proprietary rights that are embedded in or used in connection with the Treasury Solution Software and the Documentation.

· IPTAPE Summary. A daily detailed summary report of deposits by state agency by capture.

· Licensed Software. The version of the program(s) provided under any agreement resulting from this RFO in Object Code form, any released corrections, Software Updates, and Software Upgrades of such version.  Licensed Software comes with full title, ownership, and IP Rights.

· Lightweight Directory Access Protocol (LDAP). Application protocol for querying and modifying directory services.
· Lockbox. A process used to receive and record incoming remittance mail utilizing automated processing equipment and document scanners to streamline and increase processing efficiencies.

· Lotus. An IBM software spreadsheet used by Treasury Operations.

· Magnetic Ink Character Recognition (MICR). Process used to electronically capture check information (bank account number, bank routing number, check amount and check serial number) by scanning checks with high-speed magnetic ink readers.

· Metavante. Vendor which provides check processing software.

· Microsoft .Net ASP. A software language used by Treasury Operations.

· Microsoft Excel.
A software spreadsheet program used by Treasury Operations.

· Microsoft FoxPro. An application development language (xBase) and integrated navigational database management system (DBF) used by Treasury Operations.

· Microsoft VB 6. A software language used by Treasury Operations.

· National Automated Clearing House Association (NACHA). An organization that develops electronic solutions to improve the ACH payment system. NACHA represents more than 11,000 financial institutions through direct memberships and a network of regional payments associations,  and 585 organizations through its industry councils.
· Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information Repository (NRMSIRS). An entity designated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) to receive final official statements, material event notices and annual financial information.

· NDP1150. A Unisys machine used to sort, scan and image checks and documents. It is an integral part of the Treasury Operations’ system. 
· Negotiable Order of Withdrawal Account (NOW). Typically an interest-bearing checking account.

· Number of Employees. Total number of employees that perform the process on a routine basis. Does not include “temps” or additional employees due to unscheduled absences; however, does include additional employees due to peak periods.

· Object Code. The machine code that can be directly executed by a computer’s central processing unit.

· Office of the Attorney General (OAG).  A state agency.

· Open Records Tracking System (ORTS). A mainframe system maintained by CPA used to track open records requests

· Outputs. Any product that is created because of the process being completed. 

· Parallel Test. To ensure that processing by the new application or new version is consistent with processing by the previous application or version. 
· Payment In Lieu of Tax Report (PILT). Federal report reflecting county distribution activity. "Payments in Lieu of Taxes" are Federal payments to local governments that help offset losses in property taxes due to non-taxable Federal lands within their boundaries.

· Project Control Account (PCA). USAS data element (statutory).

· RACF Security. Mainframe security used by customers to access Treasury Systems.

· Returned Deposit Document (RDOC). USAS document to record returned item entries.

· Security Assurance Rating/Level. System security evaluation determined by criteria standards:  Rating - National Computer Security Center (NCSC) security assurance evaluation against DoD Trusted Computer System Evaluation Criteria (e.g., C1, C2) / Level – Multinational EAL (Evaluation Assurance Level) security assurance achieved under Common Criteria Certification (e.g., EAL 1, EAL 2).
· Service-Oriented Architecture (SOA). A Service Oriented Architecture (SOA) is the underlying framework that supports the complete lifecycle of one or more services. In this context, a service is defined as a unit of work to be performed on behalf of some entity, such as a computer program or a human user. The SOA lifecycle defines the structure, creation, operation and communications between services in a loosely coupled federation. An SOA will orchestrate the messaging workflow between services, and guaranty message delivery and reliability.
· Software Enhancement/Release. A change to a software product, intended to increase functionality, productivity, interface, and/or compatibility.

· Software Maintenance and Technical Support. Telephone and on-line services, including but not limited to, error corrections, updates, upgrades, fixes, patches, enhancements, extensions, releases, latest features, performance improvements, documentation, and Technical Library CD series, if applicable.

· Software Patch/Fix.  Addition to a piece of code, usually as an immediate remedy to an existing Hardware/Software error or defect.  A Software patch or fix is usually a temporary measure until a more permanent solution is implemented with a Software enhancement, release, and/or Software update.

· Software Update(s). Any (a) commercially released versions of the Licensed Software that the Successful Respondent(s) releases after the Effective Date of any Agreement resulting from this RFO with its version number designation increased by tenths or greater, (b) any migration aids for users migrating from the prior version of the Licensed Software, and (c) any Documentation related to either (a) or (b).  This definition shall include any subsequent variation of the Licensed Software, which provides essentially the same functionality and accomplished substantially the same tasks as the Licensed Software but which Original Software Manufacturer releases under a different name or label.

· Software Upgrade.  Periodically published Software bulletins and Software provided upgrades at no additional charge, and any other services that ordinarily would be provided under Successful Respondent(s)’s standard Software service.
· State Disbursement Unit (SDU). Centralized location for processing child support payments for State of Texas.

· Strong System Integrity. Mandates of operational and technical parameters are within prescribed limits, performing intended functions in an unimpaired manner, free from deliberate or inadvertent unauthorized manipulation.

· System Development Life Cycle (SDLC). A conceptual model used in project management that describes the stages involved in an information system development project, from an initial feasibility study through maintenance of the completed application. Source: SoftwareQuality.com.
· Systems/Screens/Tools.  For example, internal or external system applications, specific inquiry/data entry screens, spreadsheets, reports, electronic data used to complete this process.
· Tax and Revenue Anticipation Note (TRAN). Debt instrument used by State of Texas to annually borrow funds for cash management purposes.

· T-code. Transaction code.

· Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission (TABC). A state agency.

· Texas Electronic Financial Network (TexNet). System used by payors to submit electronic payments.

· Texas State Library. A state agency.

· Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company (TTSTC). A special purpose trust company that manages, safeguards and invests public funds and securities belonging to the State of Texas, its agencies and local political subdivisions of the state.
· Texas Workforce Commission (TWC). A state agency.

· TexasOnline. The official website for State of Texas through which persons may access information and transact business.

· TexNet Enrollment and Account Maintenance System (TEAMS). A Microsoft Net VB.Net application using a SQL database to enroll electronic payors and capture, originate and track their transactions.

· Time Spent. Total average amount of time for all employees required to complete process.

· Transaction Agency. USAS data element (statutory).

· Treasury Application Gateway (TAG). Older Treasury software used to control security access to Treasury Systems.

· Treasury Pool Rate. The average yield on pooled invested funds of the Treasury.
· U.S. Federal Reserve Regulation CC. Regulation CC requires that financial institutions provide customers who have a transaction account with disclosures stating when their funds will be available for withdrawal; many institutions use the model disclosure statements included in Regulation CC. It is also referred to as the Expedited Funds Availability Act (EFA or EFAA). It standardizes hold periods on deposits made to commercial banks and regulates institutions’ use of deposit holds.
· Uniform Statewide Accounting System (USAS) . A system used to track and capture financial fund information.

· Uniform Statewide Payroll System (USPS). A system used by state agencies to process payroll transactions.

· USASMK. Application which creates USAS input file from daily Treasury transaction file.

· Volume. Average number of units produced based upon “Frequency” of process. (Example:  500,000)

· Warrant. A negotiable instrument drawn on the State Treasury to pay state’s financial obligations.
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SRS Glossary of Terms:

	  TERMS
	ABBREVIATION
	DEFINITION

	Affidavit of Forgery
	
	A legal document claiming forged endorsement on a Treasury Warrant.

	Agency Object
	
	USAS data element (statutory).

	Appropriation Number
	
	USAS data element (statutory).

	Automated Change Request
	ACR
	Reports system defect or enhancement.

	Automated Clearing House
	ACH
	Type of electronic payment (non-wire) originated and received by Treasury Operations that is settled daily through nationwide financial system. 

	Banking and Electronic Processing
	BEP
	Division in Treasury Operations.

	Cash & Securities Management  
	CSM
	Division in Treasury Operations.

	Cash Letter
	
	Bundle listings and recap of checks included in a bank deposit.

	Cash Management Improvement Act
	CMIA
	Provides the general rules and procedures for the efficient transfer of Federal financial assistance between the Federal Government and the States (including the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, and the Territories of American Samoa, Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, Guam, and the Virgin Islands).



	Character Amount Recognition
	CAR
	Software used to recognize numeric amounts on checks.

	Check 21  Method
	
	Process used to make deposits and receive cash letters via image in accordance with law enacted in October 2004.

	Comp Object Code
	
	USAS data element (statutory).

	Comptroller of Public Accounts
	CPA
	This state agency.

	Concentration Account
	
	Local bank account used to receive state agency/field office deposits which are usually swept into Treasury Operations daily by ACH debit.

	Daily Proof Item Capture Summary
	DPIC
	A daily report of all deposit types by capture.

	Deposit Document
	DDOC
	USAS deposit entry requiring matching Treasury Operations entry before completion.

	Deposit Document
	FDOC
	USAS pre-approved deposit entry not requiring matching entry.

	Electronic Benefits Transfer
	EBT
	The automated distribution of financial benefits to state welfare recipients.

	Electronic Data Interchange
	EDI
	Nationally approved format for electronic submission of electronic tax reports/payments.  Treasury Operations receives ACH file of electronic payments.

	Fund
	
	USAS data element (statutory).

	Health and Human Services Commission
	HHSC
	A state agency.

	Image Cash Letter
	ICL
	An electronic bank deposit.

	Internet Banking System
	
	External web-based financial systems maintained by financial institutions and used by Treasury to research bank accounts.



	IPTAPE Summary
	 
	A daily detailed summary report of deposits by state agency by capture.

	Lockbox
	
	A process used to receive and record incoming remittance mail utilizing automated processing equipment and document scanners to streamline and increase processing efficiencies.

	Magnetic Ink Character Recognition
	MICR
	Process used to electronically capture check information (bank account number, bank routing number, check amount and check serial number) by scanning checks with high-speed magnetic ink readers. 

	Metavante
	
	Vendor which provides the check processing system.

	Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities Information Repository
	NRMSIRS
	An entity designated by the SEC to receive final official statements, material event notices and annual financial information under Rule 15c2-12. 

	NDP1150
	
	A Unisys sorter used to process checks.

	Negotiable Order of Withdrawal Account
	NOW Acct
	Typically an interest bearing checking account.

	Office of the Attorney General 
	 AG or OAG
	A state agency.

	Payment In Lieu of Tax Report 
	PILT
	 Federal report reflecting county distribution activity.

	Project Control Account
	PCA
	USAS data element (statutory).

	RACF Security
	 
	Mainframe security used by customers to access Treasury Systems.

	Returned Deposit Document
	RDOC
	USAS document to record returned item entries.

	State Disbursement Unit
	SDU
	Centralized location for processing child support payments for State of Texas.

	Tax and Revenue Anticipation Note
	TRAN
	Debt instrument used by State of Texas to annually borrow funds for cash management purposes.

	T-code
	
	Transaction code.

	Teacher Retirement System
	TRS
	A state agency.

	Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission
	TABC
	A state agency

	Texas Electronic Financial Network  
	TexNet
	System used by payors to submit electronic payments.

	Texas Public Finance Authority
	TPFA
	The Authority is a public authority and body politic and corporate created in 1984 by an act of the Texas Legislature to provide financing for the construction or acquisition of facilities for State agencies.

	Texas Rating Agency Report
	TRAN
	A report.

	Texas State Library
	
	A state agency.

	Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company 
	TTSTC
	A special purpose trust company that manages, safeguards and invests public funds and securities belonging to the State of Texas, its agencies and local political subdivisions of the state.



	Texas Workforce Commission
	TWC
	A state agency.

	TexasOnline
	TOL
	The official website for State of Texas through which persons may access information and transact business.

	TexNet 
	TEAMS
	A data base to enroll electronic payors and capture, originate and track their transactions.

	Transaction Agency
	
	USAS data element (statutory).

	Treasury Application Gateway
	TAG
	Treasury software used to control security access to Treasury Systems.

	Treasury Pool Rate
	
	The average yield on pooled invested funds of the Treasury.

	Uniform Statewide Accounting System
	USAS
	A statewide system used to track and capture financial fund information. 

	Uniform Statewide Payroll System
	USPS
	System used by state agencies to process payroll transactions.

	USASMK
	USASMK
	Application which creates USAS input file from daily Treasury transaction file.

	Warrant
	
	A negotiable instrument drawn on the State Treasury to pay state’s financial obligations.


1 PROCESS ELECTRONIC AND MISCELLANEOUS FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS – Receive and Process Electronic Transactions and Miscellaneous Financial Transactions Completely, Accurately, Efficiently and in accordance with State and Federal requirements. 
	Criteria
	Summary

	Data Providers
	· Financial institutions  - 400 +

· State Agencies -  250

· Agency Vendors – 15+

· Clearing Banks - 3

· TexNet Participants and Deposit Concentration Participants -  150,000+

· External System - 1

· Credit Card Processor  - 10+

· TexasOnline Vendor – 1+

	Inputs
	· Flat files from approved financial institutions

· Files From outside agencies



	Outputs
	· Reformatted Daily Financial Transactions (ACH credits, ACH debits, Wires, etc.)

· Texas Online Transactions-For warehousing and pass thru to originating agencies

· Texas Online- Funded Transactions

· Concatenated Outside Agency ACH Files

· Formatted ACH Debit/Credit Files

· Balancing Reports

· Agency specific transactional reports-50 different formats

· Agency and program specific files for transmission to agencies-50 different formats

· Accounting Details for Statewide Accounting System-USAS

· Bank Transactions-Specific format for import into internal bank transaction system

	Interfaces
	· Internet Banking Systems



	Transaction Volume
	· External files from approved financial institution -  Totals - 500,000 daily transactions –

· External files from other state agencies – 200,000+ daily-

· Internal files – 2 daily

· Concentration Account Transactions: 1,000+ daily

· TexNet Transactions: 100,000+ daily


IVR Application (25 + unique prompts)


· CPA file -  5,000+ transactions daily

· TexasOnline Transactions with Matching Details: 400,000 daily

A. Transaction Detail (TP029) from credit card processor

B. Transaction Detail from TexasOnline vendor

· Bank Transactions-300+ daily

· Generate Statewide Accounting Information:
 10,000+ daily



	Access/ Security 
	· Security to Financial Institutions

· Network Access

· RACF

· Bank Internet Access

	Number of Employees
	· 11

	Time Spent
	· 70+ hrs per day

	Systems/ Screens/ Tools-Current
	· 200+ miscellaneous data entry screens
· E-mail Notifications
· Mainframe Screen –WARP
· Mainframe Screen –BEPM

· Bank Reports

· TexasOnline Reconciliation 

· Automated Warehousing Agent

· Automated Processing Agent

	Statutory Requirements 
	· Tex. Gov't Code § 404.094, 404.095 and 404.096



	Generate Reports using CPA’s Data Warehouse
	Produce internal and external reports to satisfy State Agencies’ needs and statutory requirements (Estimated – Large Number– Greater than 500 reports) 




1.1 Process Electronic Transactions - Receive and Record electronic transactions received from approved financial institution
1.1.1 Process Incoming ACH Transactions – Receive and Record ACH transactions received from approved financial institution  (STATUTORY)
1.1.1.1 Process incoming ACH transactions from approved financial institution 
1.1.1.1.1 Retrieve ACH file from approved financial institution (Chase).  ACH format types include the following, but not limited to (See NACHA Rules):
· CCD – Cash Concentration Disbursement
· CTX – Corporate Trade Exchange (EDI)

· TEL – Telephone transaction

· WEB – Web transaction

· CIE – Customer Initiated Entry Transaction

· PPD –  Prearranged Payment or Deposit(Consumer Payments)

· CCD + - Cash Concentration Disbursement with Addenda (Corporate Payments)

1.1.1.1.2 Parse ACH file based upon: ACH “7” record (or parsed “7” value from ISA entry).  CPA “7” record fields are parsed by identifying values separated by asterisks.

· Field 1
- Tax id

· Field 2
- Transaction Code

· Field 3
- Filing Period

· Field 4
- Tax Type identifier

· Field 5
- Previous Tax Type amount

· Field 6
- Tax Type identifier

· Field 7
- Previous Tax Type amount

· Field 8
- Tax Type identifier

· Field 9
- Previous Tax Type amount

· Field 10
- Tax Type identifier

· Field 11 
 - Previous Tax Type amount

1.1.1.1.3 Identify and resolve exceptions.  Exception reasons include:
· Unrecognized credit card merchant number
· Unrecognized transaction code
· Unrecognized transaction
· Unauthorized debits
· Payment identifier missing or invalid
· Credit amount differs between bank ACH file (file dump) and bank account balance 
· Same day ACH credit/missing transactions
· Invalid addenda information

· Funds deposited in incorrect bank account

1.1.1.2 Process Formatted ACH Transactions received from other state agencies and CPA divisions - Receive, Transmit and Record ACH formatted transactions from other state agencies and CPA divisions
1.1.1.2.1 Identify ACH file received from each state agency.  State agency codes are:  
· 302-Attorney General

· 320-TWC

· 320-TWC benefits

· 315-CPA cigarette trust refund

· 323-TRS

· 305-SOS

· 362-Lottery

1.1.1.2.2 Download ACH file for further processing
1.1.1.2.3 Calculate record count, settlement date and credit/debit amounts for each state agency
1.1.1.2.4 Send record count, settlement date and credit/debit amounts to state agencies
1.1.1.3 Process Non-Formatted ACH Transactions received from other State Agencies and CPA Divisions - Receive, Transmit and Record ACH non-Formatted transactions from other state agencies and CPA divisions
1.1.1.3.1 Identify file received from each state agency.  State agency codes are:  Includes but not limited to:
· 902-CPA

· 325-FireFighters

· 327-ERS

· 451-Banking

· 802-Parks

· 802-Parks TAC

· 902-Portal credits

· 781-THECB

· 781-THECB-Tel

· 902-EDI warehouse

· VLB

1.1.1.3.2 Convert file into ACH format for further processing
1.1.1.3.3 Download ACH file for further processing
1.1.1.3.4 Calculate record count, settlement date and credit/debit amounts
1.1.1.3.5 Send record count, settlement date and credit/debit amounts to state agencies 
1.1.1.4 Create and Process Internal ACH Transactions -  Create and Transmit internally generated ACH files 
1.1.1.4.1 Create internally generated ACH transactions
1.1.1.4.2 Transmit internally generated ACH transactions
1.1.1.4.3 Go to Process 5
1.1.1.5 Process ACH Credit Transactions received from Attorney General’s Child Support Division - Receive and Record ACH credit transactions received from Attorney General’s Office for child support
1.1.1.5.1 Retrieve internet bank reports
1.1.1.5.2 Print FDOC summary report to determine discrepancies
1.1.1.5.3 Identify and resolve discrepancies.  Exceptions reasons include:
· Debits
· Credit amount differs between bank ACH file and bank account balance 
· Same day ACH credit/missing transactions
1.1.1.5.4 Send notification to Attorney General to notify State Disbursement Unit (SDU) of ACH credits 
1.1.1.5.5 Send electronic FDOC file and paper report to Attorney General
1.1.1.6 Process Credit Card Receipts and Other Miscellaneous ACH Transactions – Receive and Record credit card and miscellaneous ACH transactions.
1.1.1.6.1 Retrieve internet bank reports
1.1.1.6.2 Print FDOCs and customized reports to identify discrepancies
1.1.1.6.3 Identify and resolve discrepancies.  Exception reasons include:
· Unrecognized credit card merchant number
· Unauthorized debits
· Payment identifier missing or invalid
· Credit amount differs between bank ACH file  and bank account balance 
· Same day ACH credit/missing transactions
· Invalid addenda information

· Funds deposited in incorrect bank account

1.1.1.6.4 Send report information to state agencies with specific information/file through automatic e-mail.  Information includes:
· Payment amount
· Remitter Name
· Document number
· Agency comp object
· Agency object
· Fund
· PCA
· T-code
· Index
· Vendor number
· Mail code
· Legal text
· Deposit date
· Extraneous detail included in ACH transaction
· State agency number
1.1.1.6.5 Send FDOCs and reports to state agencies
1.1.1.7 Approve and Concatenate ACH Files - Approve, Combine and Transmit ACH files to approved financial institution (Chase Bank)
1.1.1.7.1 Approve, Concatenate and Transmit ACH electronic files at 1:30 p.m. (Approval should be initiated by state agencies through Web)
· Receive automatic e-mail notification indicating that deposit concentration transaction file is ready for processing
· Retrieve IVR file for processing
· Print IVR summary information
· Verify agency e-mail notifications matches automated acknowledgement e-mails
· Consolidate ACH files 
· Verify that the Treasury and non-Treasury combined totals matches the IVR report totals
· Confirm and approve  “file selections” for transmission
· Identify duplicate file(s) and remove from transmission file
· Generate combined report
· Verify bank file data matches e-mail acknowledgements (Settlement date, record counts, credit amount, debit amount) from various sources.
1.1.1.7.1..1 Treasury has 2 day settlement
1.1.1.7.1..2 Non-Treasury has 1 day settlement
· Identify and resolve discrepancies
1.1.1.7.1..1 Duplicate files
1.1.1.7.1..2 Files do not match agency notification
1.1.1.7.1..3 Incorrect payor setup flag
1.1.1.7.1..4 Receipt of late file
· Transmit file to approved financial institution
1.1.1.7.2 Approve and Concatenate ACH electronic file.
· TexNet – TWC (creating accounting transactions for posting next business day)
· TexNet – CPA and Other (creating accounting transactions for posting next business day)
· TexNet – EDI (creating accounting transactions for posting next business day)
· Warehouse EDI Transactions
· Import daily EDI transactions from mainframe

· Release EDI Transactions according to settlement date
· TexasOnline debit File
· TexasOnline credit File
1.1.1.8 Process Deposit Concentration Account Transactions – Receive, Transmit and Record transactions from entities remitting funds to state agencies 
1.1.1.8.1 Process Deposit Concentration Transactions (CPA Accounts) – Receive, Transmit and Record transactions from bank accounts (CPA only)
· Recognize deposits in Internal System S for CPA’s local bank accounts on the day of deposit through input applications
· Create FDOCs (same day)
· Create ACH file with two day settlement to sweep deposits from CPA bank accounts to clearing bank account (same day)
· Post deposits (sweep) to clearing bank account Internal System S (second day)
· Update CPA tax system if applicable
· Verify totals, identify and resolve exceptions.  Exceptions include:
1.1.1.8.1..1 Customer setup error
1.1.1.8.1..2 Invalid deposit codes
1.1.1.8.2 Process Deposit Concentration Transactions (non-CPA accounts) – Receive, Transmit and Record transactions from bank accounts (non-CPA)
· Create ACH file with one day settlement to sweep deposits from non-CPA bank accounts to clearing bank account (same day)
· Create FDOCs (next day)
· Update CPA tax system if applicable
· Verify totals, identify and resolve exceptions.  Exceptions include:
1.1.1.8.2..1 Customer setup error
1.1.1.8.2..2 Invalid deposit codes
1.1.2 Process TexNet Transactions – Process payments via TexNet as required by law (STATUTORY)
1.1.2.1 Process TexNet Transactions – Receive, Transmit and Record TexNet transactions from entities remitting funds to state agencies (STATUTORY)  
1.1.2.1.1 Process TexNet transactions (same day)
· Identify TexNet transaction.  
· Retrieve reports from bank websites and internal systems
· Verify amounts posted in bank accounts match internal system amounts by transaction type 
1.1.2.1.1..1 Debit
1.1.2.1.1..2 Credit
1.1.2.1.1..3 EDI
1.1.2.1.1..4 Webfile
· Transfer funds to federal account for investment purposes
· Generate FDOCS (vouchers) 
· Verify totals, identify and resolve exceptions (as needed).  Exceptions include:
1.1.2.1.1..1 Debits
1.1.2.1.1..2 Credit amount differs between bank ACH file (file dump) and bank account balance 
1.1.2.1.1..3 Same day ACH credit/missing transactions
1.1.2.1.1..4 Invalid addenda information

1.1.2.1.1..5 Funds deposited in incorrect bank account

· Send file to CPA to update tax system 
· Transfer funds to federal government for Texas Workforce Commission unemployment taxes
· Initiate and send update files to state agencies in specified format 
1.1.2.1.2 Process TexNet wire transactions (same day)
· Enter corresponding payment information into TexNet website
· Update spreadsheet with incoming TexNet wire transactions.
· Match wires with payment information
· Generate FDOCS (vouchers)
· Verify totals, identify and resolve exceptions (as needed).  Exceptions include:
1.1.2.1.2..1 Amount differs between TexNet entry and actual wire receipt
1.1.2.1.2..2 Funds deposited in incorrect bank account

· Send file to CPA to update tax system 
· Initiate and send update files to state agencies in specified format 
· Transfer funds to federal government for Texas Workforce Commission unemployment taxes
1.1.3 Process CPA field office transactions – Receive, Transmit and Record CPA Field Office transactions.
1.1.3.1 Warehouse CPA field office transactions
1.1.3.1.1 Import CPA field office transactions from mainframe  
1.1.3.1.2 Batch CPA field office  transactions from mainframe  
1.1.3.2 Process Funded CPA field office transactions
1.1.3.2.1 Retrieve internet bank report file 
1.1.3.2.2 Download file 
1.1.3.2.3 Import file into database and manually key bank deposit totals if necessary
1.1.3.2.4 Match CPA field office transactions to bank detail
1.1.3.2.5 Identify and resolve exceptions.  Exceptions include:
· Missing CPA field office transactions
· Missing bank transactions
· Amount differs between CPA field office transactions and bank
· Debits
· Bank adjustments
· Funds in wrong account

1.1.3.2.6 Create FDOC file
1.1.3.2.7 Send file to CPA to update tax system
1.1.4 Process Miscellaneous Other Transactions -   Process chargebacks (RDOCS) and chargeback credits (FDOCS), credit card fees (WDOCS), and EBT debits (LDOCS).
1.1.4.1 Process Credit Card Fees – Process credit card fees charged to state agencies
1.1.4.1.1 Identify credit card charge 
1.1.4.1.2 Process appropriate document into statewide accounting system (WDOCS)
1.1.4.1.3 Identify and resolve exceptions.  Exceptions include:
· Unrecognized credit card merchant number
· Unauthorized debits
· Payment identifier missing or invalid
· Funds posted in incorrect bank account

1.1.4.2 Process Electronic Benefit Transfer (EBT)  - Process vendor debit transactions for Health and Human Services Commission (HHSC)
1.1.4.2.1 Identify debits 
1.1.4.2.2 Process appropriate document into statewide accounting system (LDOCS)
1.1.4.2.3 Identify and resolve exceptions.  Exceptions include:
· Unauthorized debits
· Payment identifier missing or invalid
· Funds posted in incorrect bank account

1.1.4.3 Process TexasOnline transactions with no matching detail

1.1.4.3.1 Identify TexasOnline chargebacks and chargeback credits and fees
1.1.4.3.2 Process appropriate document into statewide accounting system (WDOCS, FDOCS, and RDOCS)
1.1.4.3.3 Identify and resolve exceptions.  Exceptions include:
· Unrecognized credit card merchant number
· Duplicate transaction
· Funds posted in incorrect bank account

1.1.5 Process TexasOnline transactions with matching detail - Process electronic transactions received from TexasOnline vendor and credit card processors.
1.1.5.1 Warehouse TexasOnline Transactions – Store TexasOnline and credit card transaction details until funds are received.
1.1.5.1.1 Warehouse TexasOnline transactions 
1.1.5.1.2 Warehouse credit card processor details 
1.1.5.2  Process Funded Transactions – Match money received to “warehoused transactions”
1.1.5.2.1 Receive notification that TexasOnline file is ready for processing
1.1.5.2.2 Identify and resolve exceptions.  Exceptions include:
· Unrecognized credit card merchant number
· Unauthorized debits
· Payment identifier missing or invalid
· Funds posted in incorrect bank account

· Fees netted from individual transactions

· Incomplete and/or missing data from credit card processor

· Setup errors by credit card company or agency

1.1.5.2.3 Process “warehoused” transactions 
1.2 Process Miscellaneous Financial Transactions – Process daily miscellaneous financial  transactions as needed to update Statewide Accounting System and Internal System S
1.2.1 Non-electronic transactions that are manually entered into Internal System W include:
1.2.1.1 Lockbox
1.2.1.2 Credit adjustments
1.2.1.3 Other miscellaneous transactions
1.3 Generate Statewide Accounting Information – Generate detailed accounting information to update statewide accounting system (USAS) 
1.3.1 Generate statewide accounting detail information for Statewide Accounting System – Generate USAS detail information for transactions.
1.3.1.1 Generate automated and manual FDOCS as needed 

1.3.1.2 Import bank transactions (manual and automatic) into Internal System AE.

1.3.1.3 Balance deposit amounts on spreadsheet to amounts in Internal System AE.

1.3.1.4 Compare statewide accounting summary to bank deposit transactions for FDOCS prior to detail distribution to internal and external accounting systems 

1.3.1.5 Identify and resolve discrepancies.   Exceptions include:

1.3.1.5.1 Software and hardware failures

1.3.1.5.2 Incomplete data

1.3.1.6 Create new and historical reports as needed.
1.3.1.7 Distribute detail transactions to update statewide accounting systems.  
1.3.2 Send statewide accounting and payment detail and summary information (USAS) to state agencies – Generate USAS details and summary information for State Agency use.

1.4 Generate Reports
1.4.1 Treasury Operations will need to produce internal routine and customized reports for Process 1.  
1.4.2  Generate reports using business intelligence software package (Business Objects) and data w report information.
1.4.2.1 There are approximately 200 state agencies. Treasury Operations will need to provide numerous routine and customized reports with multiple delivery methods for each agency.  
1.4.2.2 Treasury Operations will need the ability to produce various reports based upon approximately 7,000 agency funds and 600+ bank accounts.
1.4.2.3 Treasury Operations and State agencies should have ability to generate new modifiable reports upon demand. 
2 DEPOSIT STATE AGENCY RECEIPTS - Receive, Process, and Record Revenue Transactions to apply to State Agency’s Funds on a daily basis. 

	Criteria
	Summary

	Data Providers
	· State Agencies – 250

· Financial Institutions – 400+

· TexasOnline Vendor – 1+

· Credit Card Vendors - 3

	Inputs
	· Checks/Currency
· Foreign Checks/Currency
· TexNet
· Internal System
· Concentration
· Credit Card
· TexasOnline
· State Disbursement Unit
· Agency Work Manager
· ACH Origination
· Miscellaneous ACH
· Miscellaneous Wires

· Lockbox

· Trust

· ACH Receiver Services

	Outputs
	· Receive Checks/Currency –  35,000 + daily

· Receive Foreign Checks/Currency – 10 daily

· Receive TexNet   – 100,000 + daily

· Receive Internal System D   – 500,000 + daily

· Receive Concentration   -  1,000 daily

· Receive Credit Card  - 2,000 + daily

· Receive TexasOnline  - 150,000 + daily

· Receive State Disbursement Unit  -  5 daily

· Receive Agency Work Manager   - 3 daily

· Receive ACH Origination  - 20+ daily

· Receive Miscellaneous ACH – 50+ daily

· Receive Miscellaneous Wire – 50+ daily

· Receive Lockbox – 50+ daily

· Receive Trust – 20+ daily

· Receive ACH Receiver Services – 10+ daily

	Interfaces
	· Internet Banking Systems

	Transaction Volume
	· 30,000+ paid daily

	Access/ Security
	· All levels of security from unnamed to highly restricted will be supported.

	Number of Employees
	· 8

	Time Spent
	· 63 hrs per day

	Systems/ Screens/ Tools
	· Internal System F

	Statutory Requirements 
	· None



	Generate Reports using CPA’s Data Warehouse
	Produce internal and external reports to satisfy State Agencies’ needs and statutory requirements (Estimated – Large Number – Greater than 500 reports) 




2.1 Recognize and Record State Agency Deposits  - 

2.1.1 Identify State Agency Receipt Transaction Types – Identify deposit transaction types prior to processing.
2.1.1.1 Receive Checks/Currency –  35,000 +

2.1.1.2 Receive Foreign Checks/Currency – 10

2.1.1.3 Receive TexNet   – 100,000 +

2.1.1.4 Receive Internal System D   – 500,000 +

2.1.1.5 Receive Concentration   -  1,000 

2.1.1.6 Receive Credit Card  - 2,000 +

2.1.1.7 Receive TexasOnline  - 150,000 +

2.1.1.8 Receive State Disbursement Unit  -  5

2.1.1.9 Receive Agency Work Manager   - 3

2.1.1.10 Receive ACH Origination  - 20+

2.1.1.11 Receive Miscellaneous ACH – 50+

2.1.1.12 Receive Miscellaneous Wire – 50+

2.1.1.13 Receive Lockbox – 50+

2.1.1.14 Receive Trust – 20+

2.1.1.15 Receive ACH Receiver Services – 10+     

2.2 Process and Deposit Checks -  Prepare, Process, Balance and Deposit checks to financial institutions (STATUTORY)
2.2.1 Process checks via Check 21 method – Law providing acceptance of deposits via images rather than paper checks.  Excludes Texas Department of Criminal Justice (TDCJ)
2.2.1.1 Prepare checks and internal documents for processing on internal check processing machine

2.2.1.2 Process checks 

2.2.1.3 Capture check/document image and CAR (Character Amount Recognition)

2.2.1.4 Balance checks to agency deposits

2.2.1.5 Initiate check MICR repair

2.2.1.6 Perform image quality assurance

2.2.1.7 Generate image cash letters  

2.2.1.8 Transmit image cash letter file to approved state financial institution

2.2.1.9 Receive bank confirmation of image cash letter

2.2.2 Process checks via other method - Texas Department of Criminal Justice (TDCJ) requires Treasury Operations to return problem batches to them prior to depositing.
2.2.2.1 Prepare checks and internal documents for processing on internal check processing machine

2.2.2.1.1 Encode and endorse checks for processing

2.2.2.1.2 Balance checks to agency batch and deposit total

2.2.2.2 Process checks through internal check processing machine

2.2.2.3 Capture check and document image 

2.2.2.4 Balance checks to agency deposits

2.2.2.5 Generate cash letters and bank deposit slips

2.2.2.6 Prepare check bundles for courier pickup

2.3 Perform End-of-day Balancing – Balance Deposit Transactions (including input of internal accounting transactions) for end of day. (STATUTORY)  (This includes electronic deposits included in 1.1)
2.3.1 Import electronic transactions into Internal System F.

2.3.2 Manually enter internal accounting transactions into Internal System F.

2.3.3 Import daily transactions from Internal System F 

2.3.4 Generate the Daily Proof Item Capture Report (DPIC)

2.3.5 Balance DPIC with spreadsheet

2.3.6 Identify and resolve exceptions.  Exceptions include:

2.3.6.1 Missing entry on spreadsheet

2.3.6.2 Incorrect deposit type

2.3.6.3 Incorrect amount

2.3.6.4 Other miscellaneous exceptions

2.3.7 Create FDOC  and DDOC file

2.3.8 Perform comparison of FDOC file – Internal file against USAS detail file.

2.3.9 Identify and resolve exceptions.  Exceptions include:

2.3.9.1 FDOC not on IPTape

2.3.9.2 Other miscellaneous exceptions

2.3.10 Create IPTape 

2.3.11 Create FDOC file for USAS upload

2.4 Record State Agency Deposits - Record state agency deposit information into Statewide Accounting System and Internal System S  (STATUTORY)
2.4.1 Release files for mainframe upload
2.5 Research Bank Account Discrepancies– Identify and resolve outstanding discrepancies between bank and Treasury records.

2.5.1 Research and resolve discrepancies using various internal and external reports:

2.6 Research Agency Deposit Issues– Identify and resolve state agency deposit problems.

2.6.1.1 Research and resolve deposit discrepancies using various internal and external reports.  
2.7 Balance TexasOnline Receipts – ACH– Reconcile receipts from TexasOnline

2.7.1 Reconcile today’s receipts from TexasOnline 

2.7.1.1 Review today’s receipts from vendors and financial institutions

2.7.1.2 Identify and resolve exceptions.  

2.7.1.3 Balance receipts

2.7.2 Reconcile prior day’s receipts from TexasOnline

2.7.2.1 Go to bank’s website

2.7.2.2 Print out reports of payments from yesterday – two different bank accounts

2.7.2.3 Review detailed listing of payment transactions

2.7.2.4 Compare yesterday’s portal report (spreadsheet) to today’s portal report.  Enter totals amount from bank, differences, totals to balance.

2.7.2.5 Research detailed bank account information  

2.8 Generate reports

2.8.1.1 Treasury Operations will need to produce internal routine and customized reports for Process 2.  
2.8.1.2 Generate reports using business intelligence software package (Business Objects) and data warehouse and provide CPA and state agencies with on-line access to view report information.
3 PROCESS DEPOSIT & DISBURSEMENT RETURNS - Record Daily returns and adjustments transactions to reflect financial impact on state agency funds. 

	Criteria
	Summary

	Data Providers
	· Financial Institutions – 400+

	Inputs
	· ACH Return file with debits and credits

· Return Checks – Checks returned to Treasury for non-payment

· Other Debits – Miscellaneous adjustments from various sources which reduce agency funds

· Bank Debits/Return Checks – Bank debits with return checks

· Manual Request – Internal requests

	Outputs
	· Update to Internal System AE

· Update to Internal System S

· Spreadsheet– Identifies total return transactions for each transaction type

· USAS File – RDOC Detail

· Paper Reports – RDOCS, return checks/supporting documentation

	Interfaces
	· Manual Process



	Transaction Volume
	· ACH Returns – 15,000+ records

· Return Checks – 24,000+ yearly

· TexasOnline Returns – 10 daily

· Concentration Returns (Rapid) – 6,650+ per year

	Access/ Security
	· Network Access Security

	Number of Employees
	· 3

	Time Spent
	· 8 hrs per day

	Systems/ Screens/ Tools

Current
	· ACH Return File from approve bank

· Internal System F

· Spreadsheets



	Statutory Requirements 
	· Tex. Gov't Code § 404.032, 404.054, 404.065, and 404.094, 



	Generate Reports using CPA’s Data Warehouse
	Produce internal and external reports to satisfy State Agencies’ needs and statutory requirements (Estimated – Medium Number – between 101 and 500 reports) 




3.1 Process ACH Returns – Receive, Balance and Record ACH Returns. Distribute ACH returns to State Agencies
3.1.1 Receive ACH file of returns – Receive ACH transactions for processing
3.1.2 Identify return transactions

3.1.2.1 Identify and Process ACH Debit Returns –Provide returned debit information to returned check processor
3.1.2.1.1 Record debit return information:

· Agency name

· Debit return amount

3.1.2.1.2 Send RDOC to state agency

3.1.2.2 Identify and Process Credits –  Record USAS Code Block Information
3.1.2.2.1 Determine file source (State Agency, TexNet, ACH Origination, etc)

3.1.2.2.2 Create FDOC

3.1.2.2.3 Send FDOC to state agency

3.1.2.3 Process NOC transactions – Receive Notification of Change for various state agencies
3.1.2.3.1 Sort NOC transactions
3.1.2.3.2 Send NOC transactions to appropriate state agency
3.2 Process Return Checks – Receive, Balance and Record returned checks.  Distribute returned checks to state agencies
3.2.1 Receive Returned Checks and adjustments – Receive various return check data for processing
3.2.1.1 Receive returned checks from clearing banks

3.2.1.2 Receive miscellaneous adjustments

3.2.1.3 Receive CPA field office returns

3.2.1.4 Receive AG-SDU adjustments

3.2.1.5 Receive foreign item adjustments

3.2.2 Sort and image returned checks – Sort returns by bank and type
3.2.3 Record return check information –Enter data to a daily spreadsheet
3.2.4 Create return vouchers – Creates USAS coding block data
3.2.5 Balance return data – Balance edit reports and spreadsheet to actual returns, adjustments and ACH returns
3.2.6 Create ACH transaction for rapid returns – Creates an ACH credit transaction to replenish the concentration account that was debited for the return
3.2.7 Distribute return check information to state agency – Provide paper report with return check and/or supporting documentation
3.2.8 Provide financial accounting information – create data file for internal systems and USAS.
3.3 Record TexasOnline Returns – The TexasOnline returns are created when an agency allows customers to make payments via the internet payment portal (TexasOnline).
3.3.1 TexasOnline returns may include credit cards.  Customer may request a refund directly from the credit card company or state agency.
3.3.1.1 Debit is sent to financial institution and the customer’s credit card is credited.
3.3.1.2 Chase debits CPA bank account
3.3.1.3 Create RDOC to debit state agency
3.3.1.4 RDOC updates USAS and deducts amount from state agency fund
3.4 Process and Record Concentration Returns – Process and Record returns received from concentration state bank accounts.
3.4.1 Record account number

3.4.2 Record amount of return

3.4.3 Record return “reason” code

3.4.3.1 01 – Insufficient funds

3.4.3.2 02 – Account closed

3.4.3.3 03 – Stop payment

3.4.3.4 04 – Refer to maker

3.4.3.5 05 – Drawn in error

3.4.3.6 06 – Unable to locate

3.4.3.7 07 – Uncollected funds

3.4.3.8 08 – Amount differs

3.4.3.9 09 – Stale date

3.4.3.10 10 – Foreign for collection only

3.4.3.11 11 – Balance held

3.4.3.12 12 – Post Dated

3.4.3.13 13 – Endorsement and signature

3.4.3.14 14 – Other

3.4.4 Record person who signed check or responsible party

3.4.5 Create ACH transaction for rapid returns – Create ACH credit transaction to replenish the concentration account that was debited for the return
3.4.6 Create RDOC 

3.4.7 Send check and RDOC to State Agency

3.5  Generate reports:

3.5.1 Treasury Operations will need to produce internal routine and customized reports for Process 3.  
3.5.2 Generate reports using business intelligence software package (Business Objects) and data warehouse and provide CPA and state agencies with on-line access to view report information.
4 ALLOCATE EARNED FUND INTEREST - Allocate monthly earnings to agencies on pro-rata basis 

	Criteria
	Summary

	Data Providers
	· State Agencies – 250 

· Financial Institutions – 400+

	Inputs
	· Daily Interest Earned

· Monthly Fund Accounting Reports

· Interest Earnings Spreadsheets 

	Outputs
	· Allocated interest

· Annual credit interest rate

· Reports

	Interfaces
	· USAS



	Transaction Volume
	· Daily Interest Earned - deposit vouchers 2+ – semi-monthly

· Monthly Fund Accounting Reports, Interest Earnings Spreadsheets  - 6,000 + daily

	Access/ Security
	· TAG

· RACF

	Number of Employees
	· 3

	Time Spent
	· 15 hrs daily

	Systems/ Screens/ Tools
	· Internal systems

· Data entry screens

· Spreadsheets

	Statutory Requirements 
	· Tex. Gov't Code § 404.056, 404.057, 404.058, 404.059, 404.060, 404.066, and 404.070



	Generate Reports using CPA’s Data Warehouse
	Produce internal and external reports to satisfy State Agencies’ needs and statutory requirements (Estimated – Medium Number – between 101 and 500 reports) 




4.1 Recognize Interest Earnings - Record earnings from investment portfolio and financial institutions to the State’s books. (STATUTORY)
4.1.1 Receive Interest Earnings Statement – 
4.1.1.1 Receive and record daily statements from TTSTC   
4.1.1.1.1 Record daily interest into spreadsheet
4.1.1.1.2 Record Treasury Pool Fund Balances in spreadsheet (daily)
4.1.1.1.3 Prepare deposit voucher to record interest earnings into USAS (monthly)
4.1.1.1.4 Reconcile voucher to spreadsheet (monthly)
4.1.1.1.5 Process deposit voucher(s)
4.1.1.2 Receive and record daily statements from depository banks (Internet) – (Receive information from 4.3)  Record interest earnings and service charges into spreadsheet; 
4.1.1.2.1 Download daily bank statements from clearing banks
4.1.1.2.2 Reconcile interest bank statements (daily)
4.1.1.2.3 Record interest earnings in spreadsheet (monthly)
4.1.1.2.4 Record monthly service charges in spreadsheet 
4.1.1.2.5 Calculate daily bank service charge (Monthly)
4.1.1.2.6 Prepare deposit voucher to record interest earnings into USAS (monthly)
4.1.1.2.7 Reconcile voucher to spreadsheet (monthly)
4.1.1.2.8 Process deposit voucher(s)
4.1.1.3 Receive and record daily statements from Concentration Accounts– (Receive information from 4.3)  Record service charges into spreadsheet:
4.1.1.3.1 Receive paper statement from Concentration Accounts
4.1.1.3.2 Reconcile bank statements (Monthly- Clipper)
4.1.1.3.3 Record monthly service charges in spreadsheet 
4.1.1.3.4 Calculate daily bank service charge (Monthly)
4.1.1.3.5 Prepare deposit voucher to record interest earnings into USAS (monthly)
4.1.1.3.6 Reconcile voucher to spreadsheet (monthly)
4.1.1.3.7 Process deposit voucher(s)
4.2 Apportion Interest – Calculate and credit interest earnings to State agency funds.  (STATUTORY)
4.2.1 Identify new fund information 
4.2.1.1 Receive notification of new fund for mainframe (HX file of USAS – daily history of USAS activity)
4.2.1.2 Create new fund information on Internal System N (Daily)
4.2.2 Calculate average daily cash balance
4.2.2.1 Receive information from internal system (Daily)
4.2.2.2 Balance fund balances between internal systems(Daily)
4.2.2.3 Balance internal system 
4.2.2.4 Perform “End of Month Closeout” 
4.2.2.4.1 Determine average daily balance for each fund
4.2.2.4.2 Produce Average Daily Balance Report for each fund
4.2.3 Download monthly fund balances from Internal System A to Internal System B (monthly) 
4.2.4 Print New Fund Report (Monthly)
4.2.5 Research new funds 
4.2.5.1 Determine interest receiving fund
4.2.5.2 Determine interest receiving PCA
4.2.5.3 Determine interest receiving Object Code
4.2.5.4 Determine interest receiving T-code
4.2.5.5 Determine interest receiving Appropriation Number
4.2.6 Enter new fund information obtained (Monthly)
4.2.7 Print monthly balance reports (Monthly)
4.2.8 Reconcile monthly balance reports with interest allocation reports and fund/ post monthly balance reports
4.2.9 Perform fund 6 calculation (spreadsheet) – (Determines balance that interest will be paid on)
4.2.10 Perform routine adjustments (Monthly)
4.2.11 Enter total interest earnings by day (Monthly)
4.2.12 Calculate pro-rata interest (Monthly)
4.2.13 Reconcile interest information 
4.2.13.1 Print monthly balance reports 
4.2.13.2 Compare balance reports to spreadsheets
4.2.14 Send interest earning information to CPA’s Revenue Estimating Division 
4.2.15 Send Treasury Pool Rate to Innovation and Technology Division to add rate to Window on State Government. 
4.2.16 Update USAS file – Create financial accounting information and transmit to statewide accounting system.
4.3 Generate Reports
4.3.1 Treasury Operations will need to produce internal routine and customized reports for Process 4.  
4.3.2 Generate reports using business intelligence software package (Business Objects) and data warehouse and provide CPA and state agencies with on-line access to view report information. 
5 RECONCILE STATEWIDE FUNDS - Reconcile State Funds to Total cash and state bank accounts & investments (one day lag.

	Criteria
	Summary

	Data Providers
	· Financial Institutions – 400+



	Inputs
	· E-mails from Cash and Securities Management
· Bank Account Statements
· Depository Support Reports
· Portal Reports
· Concentration Bank Statements
· Warrants Issue Reports from Issuing Agencies
· USAS HX Detail
· Warrant Database
· Cash Control Reports
· Mainframe Control Reports
· Fund Accounting System Reports

· Paid Warrant Spreadsheet 

· TTSTC Portfolio Reports

· IP Tape Report

· Warrant to Fund Reconciliation Spreadsheet 

· Cash to Fund Reconciliation Report

	Outputs
	· Reconciled Bank Accounts

· Recognized Cash Position

	Interfaces
	· Internet Banking Systems

· USAS

	Transaction Volume
	· E-mails from Cash and Securities Management -  as needed, 100+ per year
· Bank Account Statements, Depository Support Reports, Portal Reports - 25+ daily
· Concentration Bank Statements - 500+ monthly
· Warrants Issue Reports from issuing agencies - 30,000+ daily
· USAS HX detail, Warrant Database, Cash Control Reports - 1.2 million of cash transactions daily
· Mainframe Control Reports - 10+ daily
· Fund Accounting Reports, Paid Warrant Worksheet (Spreadsheet), TTSTC Portfolio Reports, IP Tape Report, Warrant to Fund Reconciliation Spreadsheet – 1 daily

· Cash to Fund Reconciliation Report – 5 weekly

	Access/ Security
	· TAG

· RACF

· Security to Internet Banking Systems

	Number of Employees
	· 9

	Time Spent
	· 63 hrs per day

	Systems/ Screens/ Tools
	· Internal System F 

· Spreadsheets

· Internet Banking Systems

	Statutory Requirements
	· Tex. Gov't Code § 403.111, 404.031, 404.068, 404.069, 404.0221, 1201.066, 1203.021, 1203.041 and  1203.042



	Generate Reports using CPA’s Data Warehouse
	Produce internal and external reports to satisfy State Agencies’ needs and statutory requirements (Estimated – Medium Number – between 101 and 500 reports) 




5.1 Setup Financial Institutions’ Accounts – Create individual bank account information on Internal Systems. (STATUTORY)
5.1.1 Receive e-mail from Cash and Securities Management Section
5.1.2 Enter data on financial institution account
5.1.3 Notify requestor of account setup
5.1.4 Stamp signature cards and return to financial institution
5.2 Reconcile Cash in Bank Accounts – Reconcile bank statements to Internal System S. (STATUTORY)
5.2.1 Obtain daily NOW statements from banks.  
5.2.2 Receive daily CMD 250 Transaction Detail by Institution. Compare balances, recognize 9 and record all differences.
5.2.3 Research bank account discrepancies – Identify and resolve outstanding discrepancies between bank and Treasury records.

5.3 Reconcile Concentration Accounts - Reconcile bank statements to Internal System T. (STATUTORY)
5.3.1 Receive paper statement or retrieve internet statement from financial institutions
5.3.2 Reconcile accounts
5.3.3 Recognize outstanding items 
5.3.4 Work with agencies, financial institutions and Cash & Securities Management Section to resolve outstanding items.
5.3.5 Report reconciliations on monthly MIS Reports
5.4 Reconcile Fund Accounting - Balance daily statewide accounting system (USAS) account activity to cash control reports and update Fund Accounting Balances. (STATUTORY)
5.4.1 Obtain cash control sheets from BEP and CSM and compare to USAS file.
5.4.2 Research agency deposit issues – Identify and resolve State Agency deposit problems.

5.5 Adjust Fund Cash Activity – - Make necessary corrections to balance transaction detail on internal systems. (STATUTORY)
5.5.1 Recognize discrepancies
5.5.2 Enter necessary adjustments
5.5.3 Print voucher
5.5.4 Enter detail on USAS and internal systems
5.5.5 Balance systems
5.5.6 File detail information
5.6 Balance Cash to Fund (Spreadsheet) – Reconcile total cash assets in financial institutions and investment portfolios to State’s accounting system. (STATUTORY)
5.6.1 Gather necessary reports
5.6.2 Enter data on spreadsheet 
5.6.3 Identify all discrepancies
5.6.4 Initiate research for corrective action
5.7 Review Fund Activity and Balances – Review account activity weekly - by Management (STATUTORY)
5.7.1 Receive account information 
5.7.2 Review account activity for extraordinary exceptions
5.7.3 Sign report
5.7.4 Take required action as necessary
5.7.5 Report significant exceptions to division director
5.8  Generate Reports.
5.8.1 Produce internal and external reports to satisfy state agencies’ needs and statutory requirements.  
5.8.2 Generate reports using business intelligence software package (Business Objects) and data warehouse and provide CPA and state agencies with on-line access to view report information.
6 PERFORM CASH MANAGEMENT - Manage State’s Cash Assets timely, efficiently, and securely on a daily basis to maximize state’s earning potential and minimize the risk of financial loss.
	Criteria
	Summary

	Data Providers
	· Financial Institutions – 400+

· State Agencies – 250

· TTSTC

	Inputs
	· Internal systems’ data

· Paper Requests

· E-mails

· Spreadsheets

· Bank Reports

· Miscellaneous Reports

· Revenue Estimating Data

· State Agency Data

· Phone Calls

· Forms

· Letters

· Legislation

· State Depository Application

	Outputs
	· Fund transfers



	Interfaces
	· Internet Banking Systems

	Transaction Volume
	· Paper Requests, E-mails – 50+ daily

· Spreadsheets, Bank Reports, Internal System Reports, Misc. Reports - 1+ daily

· Revenue Estimating Data, State Agency Data - 1+ daily

· Phone Calls, E-mails, Forms, Letter, Legislation – varies daily

· State Depository Application - 1,500 + daily

	Access/ Security
	· Treasury Application Gateway (TAG)

	Number of Employees
	· 11

	Time Spent
	· 70 hrs per day

	Systems/ Screens/ Tools
	· Internal Systems

	Statutory Requirements
	· Tex. Gov't Code § 404.094

	Generate Reports using CPA’s Data Warehouse
	Produce internal and external reports to satisfy State Agencies’ needs and statutory requirements (Estimated – Large Number – between 101 and 500 reports) 




6.1 Make Cash Transfers -  Initiate, Monitor, Balance, and Record requests to transfer cash funds for State’s daily needs, (liquidity needs, collateral, investments, etc) – DAILY several times daily  (STATUTORY)
6.1.1 Cash and Securities Management receives “authorized” cash transfer request

6.1.1.1 Receive cash transfer requests (spreadsheet)

6.1.1.2 Receive paper warrants for cash transfers (state agencies)

6.1.1.2.1 Verify and balance warrants

6.1.1.2.2 Enter warrants into spreadsheet

6.1.1.2.3 Deliver warrants to BEP

6.1.1.3  Retrieve direct deposit payment amounts from CPA’s Claims Division and enter into spreadsheet and internal system

6.1.2 Transfer cash through financial institutions and/or wire

6.1.2.1 Logon to financial institution’s website using security access or print wire transfer

6.1.2.2 Initiate and release cash transfers as requested 

6.1.2.3 Prepare balancing worksheet (spreadsheet)

6.1.2.4 Transfer cash through TTSTC wire room (Fed Account)

6.1.2.4.1 Enter transfer information internal system 

6.1.2.4.2 Print wire transfer request

6.1.2.4.3 Approve wire transfer which requires two signatures

6.1.2.4.4 Walk wire transfer requests to TTSTC Wire Room and Accounting Room

6.1.3 Record cash transfers (financial institutions and non-wire transfers previously made) in Internal System J (Wire transfer already done) (Daily)

6.1.3.1 Record other transfers (Trust Companies, BidTX, Linked Deposits, Open Time, HHSC EBT (Electronic Benefits Transfer), TexasOnline, TWC, and AG) 

6.1.3.2 Record cash transfers from financial institutions

6.1.3.3 Record cash transfers from spreadsheet

6.1.3.4 Record cash transfers to pay “paper” warrants that are presented by state agencies

6.1.4 Balance cash transfers

6.1.4.1 Enter cash transfers into balance worksheets

6.1.4.2 Verify cash transfers match cash transfer requests 

6.1.4.3 Print Summary Report from Balancing Worksheet and internal system J

6.1.4.4 Balance cash transfers

6.1.5 Generate process reports from Internal System J

6.1.5.1  Print Wire Transfer Report – Documentation files (Daily)

6.1.5.2  Print Cash Transfer Transaction Report – Treasury Accounting (Daily)

6.1.5.3 Print Consolidated Cash Transfer Report for manager review (Daily)

6.1.6 Upload cash transfers Internal System J

6.1.7 Research Cash Transfers (As Needed)

6.1.7.1 Receive requests for cash transfer information

6.1.7.2 Research cash transfer transactions 

6.2 Establish Cash Position – Assess Cash Availability based upon daily cash activity. (STATUTORY)
6.2.1 Enter liquidity needs(Spreadsheet)

6.2.2 Enter expedite warrant information

6.2.3 Enter transfers

6.2.4 Enter revenue

6.2.5 Enter expenditures

6.2.6 Enter collateral information

6.2.7 Obtain & verify bank account activity information

6.2.8 Enter Bank Activity

6.2.9 Calculate cash position

6.2.10 Balance daily deposit activity

6.3 Perform Cash Forecasting – Develop forecast net amounts revenue/expenditures and monitor on daily basis to determine cash needs (STATUTORY)
6.3.1 Gather information from CPA’s Revenue Estimating Division and state agencies 

6.3.1.1 Create twelve spreadsheets that are tied into annual spreadsheet

6.3.2 Research historical data to determine pattern of revenue and expenditure flow

6.3.2.1 Determine lowest cash point during year during summer (deep hole occurs mid-December)

6.3.2.2 Senior Treasury staff, Legal and CPA’s Revenue Estimating meet with Bond Counsel

6.3.2.3 Present proposal to Cash Management Committee

6.3.3 Prepare annual spreadsheet of revenue and expenditures for State of Texas (TRAN) draft and provide to Governor, Lt Governor, Speaker and CPA

6.3.4 Determine cash need for next biennium

6.3.4.1 Submit “Cash Need” reports for approval

6.3.4.2 Meet with TTSTC and on coupon rate

6.3.4.3 Issue preliminary TRAN

6.3.5 Meet with cash management committee (TRAN process) to obtain approval

6.3.5.1 Prepare cash management booklet for Cash Management Committee

6.3.5.2 Make TRAN presentation

6.3.6 Meet with financial divisions and bond council to prepare legal documents 

6.3.7 Meet with rating agencies to seek rating for State of Texas funds

6.3.7.1 Prepare State of Texas Rating Agency Report

6.3.7.2 Make TRAN presentation ($7.437 billion)

6.3.8 Notify auction vendor (Grant Street) of official rating for Texas Fund and sales date and amount 

6.3.9 Set coupon rate for sale of note 

6.3.10 Conduct Sale of Notes  (TRAN)

6.3.10.1 Conduct closed bid auction for 1 hour

6.3.10.2 If approved, release list of winners from auction – bond closing information

6.3.10.3 Obtain “good-faith” money from bidders on previous day

6.3.10.4 Return “good-faith” money to non-winners after sale is completed

6.3.10.5 Collect money from winners

6.3.10.6 Pay back current TRAN with previous year’s issuance

6.3.10.7 Register bonds and obtain approval (OAG, Governor, etc)

6.3.10.8 Move money from TRAN to Fund 0001;On September 1st…………money in bank

6.3.10.9 Pay expenditures from General Revenue Fund

6.3.11 Compare actual revenue and expenditures data versus forecasted amount and send to rating agency

6.3.12 Prepare Money Bag Report  - 

6.3.12.1 Download monthly data from mainframe 

6.3.12.2 Convert data to spreadsheet

6.3.12.3 Compare forecast to actual; actual to previous year

6.3.12.4 Prepare Money Bag Report 

6.3.12.5 Print Money Bag Report

6.3.12.6 Produce two page report 

6.3.12.7 Prepare Treasury Balance Graph

6.3.12.8 Obtain data from investments

6.3.12.9 Prepare Money Bag Report  for Rating Agency 

6.3.13 Calculate Arbitrage and send to Bond Counsel tax attorney 

6.3.13.1 Calculate arbitrage

6.3.13.2 Prepare Arbitrage Report

6.3.13.3 Send report to Bond Counsel

6.3.14 In early December, submit Cash Flow Report to publication financial world quarterly 

6.3.15 Prepare and Distribute Bond Appendix– Quarterly – Bond Appendix – Prepare State’s Bond Appendix which reflects the state’s quarterly cash position and is available for all  bonds - Litigation, Economic, Demographic, State Debt, Education, Higher Education, Fiscal Matters, State Revenue and Expenditures, Retirement Systems, State Government 

6.3.15.1 E-mail entities template for Bond Appendix Information to CPA personnel, Bond Review Board, OAG, Trust Company (Send in Middle month - Due in 10 working days)

6.3.15.2 Obtain information for Bond Appendix from CPA personnel, Bond Review Board, OAG, Trust Company 

6.3.15.3 Consolidate Quarterly Bond Appendix information

6.3.15.4 Edit and revise Quarterly Bond Appendix for accuracy and completeness and make 508 compliant 

6.3.15.5 Distribute “Revised” Quarterly Bond Appendix to Public Outreach 

6.3.15.6 Public Outreach uploads to web and notifies affected divisions

6.3.15.7 Treasury submits Quarterly Bond Appendix to SIDS (State Investment Depository System) and NRMSIRS) to be registered

6.3.15.8 Issue disclosure letters for state agencies bond closings– Send letter to Executive Administration for approval – Disclosure letters certifies quarterly bond issuance.
6.3.16 Receive e-mail from state agencies requesting bond disclosure letter

6.3.17 Offer  “liquidity” to state agencies for outstanding bonds

6.3.17.1 Receive requests from state agencies for “liquidity” or extend “liquidity” contracts

6.3.17.2 Treasury personnel meet with TTSTC to discuss current Treasury Pool and determine if request can be met

6.3.17.3 Submit formal request to Treasury Director and Legal for approval

6.3.17.4 Legal submits contract to state agency (Veterans Land Board and TPFA) and Treasury for signature

6.3.17.5 Prepare monthly Liquidity Summary Sheet and send to bond rating agencies and TTSTC

6.3.17.6 Establish bond “liquidity” fees 

6.3.17.7 Submit bond liquidity fee amount to Budget for billing

6.4 Administer Cash Management Programs – Establish and maintain programs to increase efficiency in processing State’s revenue. (TexNet, Concentration, ACH, Credit Cards, TexasOnline, Lockbox)(State Agencies are not supposed to have relationship with Financial Accounts) (STATUTORY)
6.4.1 Consult with customers (State Agencies & Universities)

6.4.1.1 Customer contacts Treasury regarding new receipts

6.4.1.2 Determine customer requirements for receiving payments

6.4.1.3 Propose cash management solution which best fits customer and also maximizes efficiency in making deposits

6.4.1.4 If receipts exceed statutory EFT threshold, TexNet shall be used

6.4.1.4.1 Enroll customers on TexNet 

6.4.1.4.2 Provide customer assistance on TexNet

6.4.1.4.3 Provide training materials to customers

6.4.1.4.4 Utilize internal system to setup payers; records amount paid, creates ACH, tracks payers, etc)

6.4.1.5 If receipts will NOT exceed statutory EFT threshold, customer may select from TexNet, Concentration, ACH, Credit Cards, TexasOnline and Lockbox

6.4.1.5.1 Establish Concentration Accounts (Daily)

· Open bank accounts in state approved depository

· Bank pledges collateral

· Order deposit slips and endorsement stamps

· Initiate agreement with Bank

6.4.1.5.2 Establish ACH account

6.4.1.5.3 Establish credit card account

6.4.1.5.4 Establish TexasOnline account

6.4.1.5.5 Establish Lockbox account

6.4.1.6 Select cash management solution for customer

6.4.1.6.1 Meet with customer to determine cash management needs

6.4.1.6.2 Consult with Innovation and Technology Division to discuss modification of cash management solution

6.4.1.6.3 Design and customize cash management solution for customer by identifying requirements

· Identify compliance requirement

· Identify training needs

· Identify data requirements

· Identify report information

· Identify deposit processing

6.4.1.6.4 Collaborate with customer on solution to confirm needs are being met

6.4.1.6.5 Submit Automated Change Request (ACR) to Innovation and Technology Division

· Develop new cash management program

· Conduct acceptance testing of new cash management program

· Sign-off on new cash management solution

· Conduct internal training

6.4.1.6.6 Implement new cash management solution for customer

· Make new cash management solution available to  customers

· Provide training to customers

· Enroll customers into new cash management solution

· Evaluate cash management solution to identify improvements needed

6.4.2 Maintain cash management program

6.4.2.1 Make modifications to existing cash management solutions as required by law

6.4.2.2 Conduct acceptance testing for modified cash management solution

6.4.2.3 Train personnel on modifications

6.4.2.4 Provide customers with information on system modifications 

6.4.2.5 Implement modifications to cash management program

6.5 Manage Bank & Vendor Relationships – Establish, monitor and maintain working relationship with approved State depositories and other financial service providers. 
6.5.1 Notify financial institutions 

6.5.1.1 Provide financial institutions with requirements for becoming state depository (Every 2 Years) – Mail letter and applications; also available on web 

6.5.1.2 Mail booklet to “approved” state depositories (every 2 years)

6.5.2 Process depository application (May – August)

6.5.2.1 Receive depository application by mail which pledges collateral and is binding contract with financial institution.  Banking board shall approve application before submitting.

6.5.2.2 Verify application completeness and $25.00 fee

6.5.2.3 Notify Treasury Accounting to deposit fee

6.5.2.4 Verify applicant is in compliance with Unclaimed Property Reporting Statutes

6.5.2.5 Enter “to be approved” application in Internal System Y pending approval.  Also, enter e-mail/contact information.

6.5.2.6 Prepare list of eligible state depositories

6.5.2.7 Upload demographic data from Mainframe to Internal System and update approval status (A or N)

6.5.2.8 Print “preliminary-approved” list of state depositories and provide to CPA for signature/approval

6.5.2.9 Upload “approval amounts” to Internal System Y

6.5.2.10 Notify approved financial institutions 

6.5.2.11 Upload file to TTSTC with approval amounts (as needed)

6.5.3 Maintain Approved Depository Information

6.5.3.1 Keep depository applications on file for two years.

6.5.3.2 Update e-mail and contact information as needed

6.5.4 Designate and contract with clearing bank

6.5.4.1 Contract with clearing bank

6.5.4.2 Perform contract monitoring

6.5.5 Identify credit card companies

6.5.5.1 Create RFO for credit card services

6.5.5.2 Contract with winning bidder

6.5.5.3 Perform contract monitoring 

6.6 Generate Reports
6.6.1 Produce internal and external reports to satisfy state agencies’ needs and statutory requirements. 
6.6.2 Generate cash forecast reports with net amounts of revenue and expenditures using business intelligence software package (Business Objects) and data warehouse and provide CPA and state agencies with on-line access to view report information.  These reports will determine State’s cash forecast needs.
7 MANAGE ASSETS & SECURITIES -  Maintain, Monitor, and Safe-keep State Assets and Register State Bonds daily

	Criteria
	Summary

	Data Providers
	· State Agencies – 14

· Financial Institutions – 400

· Bond Counsel – 225+

· Depository and Custodian Banks – 15

· Bond Owners – 10



	Inputs
	· State agencies’ Deposit and Withdrawal Forms
· Securities
· Valuables
· Request for Change of Ownership (Veteran’s Land Board)
· Bond Owner
· Signature Guarantee Form
· Letter Describing Action to be Performed
· Trust Receipts
· Depository and Custodian Banks
· Transcripts
· Office of Attorney General (OAG) Approval Certificate
· E-mail

	Outputs
	· Released securities and valuables

· Miscellaneous reports (e.g., collateral reports) 

· Held securities and valuables

· Bonds

· Registration Certificate

	Interfaces
	· External System

	Transaction Volume
	· State agencies’ Deposit and Withdrawal Forms, Securities, Valuables – 10+ daily (As requested)

· Trust Receipts  – 6 daily

· Transcripts,  OAG approval certificate, bonds, e-mail, letters  – 10+ daily

	Access/ Security
	· Treasury Application Gateway (TAG)

	Number of Employees
	· 3

	Time Spent
	· 24 hrs per day

	Systems/ Screens/ Tools
	· Internal Systems

· Spreadsheets

	Statutory Requirements
	· None

	Generate Reports using CPA’s Data Warehouse
	Produce internal and external reports to satisfy State Agencies’ needs and statutory requirements (Estimated – Medium Number – between 101 and 500 reports) 




7.1 Provide Trust Services – Provide Trust and Safe-keeping Services to hold State’s assets (Example, Insurance Company provides security/collateral). (STATUTORY)
7.1.1 Provide Vault Services - Store physical property and collateral held by the State in State Vault.
7.1.1.1 Safe-keep Treasury Pool - Provides security for Treasury Pool Assets

7.1.1.2 Safe-keep Unclaimed Property – Provide physical security for unclaimed property

7.1.1.2.1 Store property in vault – Receive unclaimed property from Unclaimed Property Section and secure in state’s vault.
7.1.1.2.2 Create property index – Develop and maintain list of property owners who have property stored in vault.
7.1.1.3 Safe-keep property for other state agencies – Provide physical security for property held by State Agencies
7.1.2 Provide non-vault Services – Record and track trust receipts of State Agencies’ assets. 
7.1.2.1 Safe-keep miscellaneous receipts – Maintain records for State agency receipts 

7.1.2.1.1 Receive trust receipts from state agencies – State Agency buys securities (paper) and provide Treasury with trust receipts for safe-keeping
7.1.2.1.2 Execute principal and interest payments on Trust Receipts – State Agencies make principal & interest payments for Trust Receipts
7.1.2.1.3 Pledge private sector collateral - 

7.1.2.1.4 Record trust receipt information ––Daily -  Enter Trust Receipt information
7.1.2.1.5 Balance trust receipts – Balance spreadsheet (totals) with Internal Systems
7.1.2.1.6 Perform self audit – Twice Yearly – Treasury personnel perform audit of Internal System
7.1.2.1.7 Release receipts at maturity – Courier picks up and signs logout sheet
7.1.2.1.8 Prepare report for AFR – Yearly

7.1.2.1.9 Distribute monthly holding statements to state agencies and financial institutions – Monthly 

7.2 Perform Registrar Services for Bond Ownership – Act as official record keeper for ownership of bearer bonds (State Law – ends in 2020) 5 issues from Texas Veteran Land Board – Bearer bonds (STATUTORY)
7.2.1 Receive bonds.

7.2.2 Record legal bond ownership – Record legal bond ownership upon receipt
7.2.3 Update bond ownership – Update bond ownership due to death or marriage
7.2.4 Confirm ownership as needed – Send notification to each paying bank and bond owner

7.3 Manage Collateral - Monitor and control collateral pledged by financial institutions to secure State’s deposits  (STATUTORY)
7.3.1 Receive Collateral – Bank pledges collateral for amounts over $100,000.  
7.3.1.1 Send pledge forms (state issued forms) to custodians of collateral.

7.3.1.2 Ensure collateral sufficiency – Verify that collateral meets state’s requirements (Daily); identifies collateral exceptions; does NOT sweep time deposits and interest deposits, highway retainage - TXDOT pays contractors to build roads/highways. 
7.3.1.3 Price (Value/Re-value) Collateral – Daily – Price collateral upon receipt & re-valuate collateral weekly – automatically sent out for re-evaluation from download file -- fee charged for service. Upload new values into Internal System
7.3.1.4 Enter collateral receipts into spreadsheet.

7.3.1.5 Enter collateral receipts into Internal System 

7.3.1.6 Execute principal and interest payments on collateral

7.3.1.7 Detach and distribute bearer bond coupons – Clip coupons off bond and send to paying entity (Water Board)
7.3.1.8 Release collateral 

7.3.2 Perform self-audit – Twice Yearly - 
7.3.3 Prepare report for AFR – Provides data for AFR Report (yearly)
7.3.4 Prepare reports for management review

7.3.5 Distribute monthly holding statements to financial institutions upon request 

7.4 Register Bonds - Record official issuance of municipal bonds by State entities (STATUTORY)
7.4.1 Receive bond and transcript – Couriers deliver bond and transcripts to Treasury from the Bond Counsel (Daily)
7.4.2 Verify approval by OAG – Validate OAG approval and transcript is complete (Daily)
7.4.3 Record bond – Enter bond information into Internal System– (Daily)
7.4.4 Prepare official registration statement – Produces Word document with official registration statement – (Daily)
7.4.5 Provide bond information upon request –– Provide Ad-hoc reports upon request. 
7.4.6 Perform monthly self-audit for quality control – Perform random sampling of 10% of bonds (Monthly)

7.4.7 Archive bond transcript information (retention approximately 50 years) – Physically box bond transcripts and send to State Library – (Quarterly)

7.5 Generate Reports
7.5.1 Produce internal and external reports to satisfy state agencies’ needs and statutory requirements.
7.5.2 Generate reports using business intelligence software package (Business Objects) and data warehouse to reflect state’s assets.

8 EXECUTE AGENCY DISBURSEMENTS – (See Process 10.4 – Reconcile Warrant Information) – Provide funding for state disbursements and serve as State’s warrant record keeper. 
	Criteria
	Summary

	Data Providers
	· Financial Institutions – 3

· State Agencies that issue warrants – 5

	Inputs
	· Warrant Details and images from financial institutions

· Warrant issue file

· Warrant Reinstatement List

	Outputs
	· Updated warrant information

· Updated direct deposit information

· Files of warrant cancellations and voids to state agencies

· USAS file of updated warrant status information

	Interfaces
	· Internet Banking Systems

	Transaction Volume
	· 30,000+ paid daily

	Access/ Security
	· Network Access Security

· RACF

· Security to Internet Banking System

	Number of Employees
	· 9

	Time Spent
	· 28  hrs per day

	Systems/ Screens/ Tools
	· Internal System AE

· Spreadsheets

· Internal System R

· Internal System F

	Statutory Requirements
	· Tex. Gov't Code § 404.021, 404.022, 404.024, 404.096 and  404.121-404.126

· Texas Property Code § - Chapters 72-74

	Generate Reports using CPA’s Data Warehouse
	Produce internal and external reports to satisfy State Agencies’ needs and statutory requirements (Estimated – Large Number – greater than 500 reports) 




8.1  Reconcile Warrant Information - (Mainframe) – Balance warrant issues, payments, warrant cancellations, voided warrants, and direct deposit detail to control reports. (STATUTORY)

8.1.1 Serve as State’s Warrant Record Keeper –- Serve as State’s authority and record keeper for state warrants. 
8.1.1.1 Update Warrant Details 
8.1.1.1.1 Receive Warrant Issues (Daily – from USAS/TWC/HHSC)

8.1.1.1.2 Generate miscellaneous reports 

8.1.1.1.3 Reconcile reports

8.1.1.1.4 Submit request to ITD to run Daily Close Job 

8.1.1.1.5 Update Warrant information – (Daily)

8.1.1.1.6 Update Warrant Cancellations (daily)

· Receive Warrant Cancellations  from WWIC  

· Receive Warrant Cancellation files from  TWC (Texas Workforce Commission)

· Receive Warrant Cancellation files from AG (Attorney General)

· Receive Warrant Cancellation files from HHSC (Health and Human Services Commission)

· Update Warrant Database with cancellation information

· Send file to statewide accounting system (USAS) - (Daily)

8.1.1.2 Update Warrant Reinstatements

8.1.1.2.1 Receive list of warrants that should be reinstated (Paper report)

8.1.1.2.2 Update warrant status to “Reinstated”   

8.1.1.2.3 Update Warrant Voids 

· Update daily voids for TWC (Warrants issued 1 year past calendar year)

8.1.1.2.3..1 Produce list of potential daily voids

8.1.1.2.3..2 Verify warrant voids

8.1.1.2.3..3 Update warrant status to “Voided”

· Update annual voids (Warrants issued 2 years past fiscal year end date)

8.1.1.2.3..1 Produce list of potential warrant voids

8.1.1.2.3..2 Verify warrant voids

8.1.1.2.3..3 Update warrant status to “Voided”

· Update daily voids for Higher Education Coordinating Board (Warrants issued 6 months past calendar year)

8.1.1.2.3..1 Produce list of potential daily voids

8.1.1.2.3..2 Verify warrant voids

8.1.1.2.3..3 Update warrant status to “Voided”

8.1.1.3 Provide testimony for court cases involving warrant issuance and encashment 
8.1.1.4 Research & Archive Warrants 
8.2 Validate and Update Warrants for Disbursements – Receive and process warrants presented for payment on Internal System R  (STATUTORY)
8.2.1 Receive image cash letters/warrants

8.2.1.1 Receive image cash letters from financial institutions

8.2.1.2 Receive warrants from CPA’s Claims Division 

8.2.1.3 Receive warrants presented through tellers

8.2.2 Receive e-mails/internet information from financial institutions

8.2.3 Identify data capture method for recording into Internal System AE  

8.2.3.1 Import image file from financial institutions

8.2.3.2 Capture paper warrants through check processing equipment

8.2.4 Manually key rejects, IQA (Image Quality Assurance), MICR repair items 

8.2.5 Print Warrant Summary Report – Provides detailed warrant information
8.2.6 Reconcile totals on Warrant Summary Report to bank information 
8.2.7 Enter totals to spreadsheet for payment to financial institutions 

8.2.8 Upload warrants by assigned groups.  Groups are:

8.2.8.1   Group 2 – Federal Reserve Bank

8.2.8.2   Group 3 – Presentments from other financial institutions

8.2.8.3   Group 4 and 5  – Warrant Expedites

8.2.8.4   Group 6 – Counter Warrants

8.2.9 Upload file to Internal System R

8.2.10 Produce Exception Reports (3 times – 2 reports in morning and 1 in afternoon)
8.2.11 Identify and resolve exceptions.  Exceptions include:

8.2.11.1 Incorrect warrant number

8.2.11.2 Incorrect amount

8.2.11.3 Fraudulent item

8.2.11.4 Duplicate presentment

8.2.11.5 Void warrant

8.2.11.6 Stop payment

8.2.11.7 Cancelled warrant

8.2.11.8 Missing image

8.2.11.9 Miscellaneous exceptions

8.2.12 Import “reject” and “adjusted” warrant information from Internal System AE
8.2.12.1 Generate “reject” warrant file which includes (Voided Warrants, Cancelled Warrants, Counterfeit Warrants, Stops, etc) and generate Image Cash Letters to paying banks (Bank of first deposit). See 4.3
8.2.12.2 Record detailed adjustments (encoding errors) on Daily Correction Form and send to financial institutions 
8.2.13 Record total adjustments into spreadsheet. 
8.2.14 Update spreadsheet with warrant information – (Warrant Summary Report)  
8.2.15 Generate final posting reports

8.2.16 Updates Warrant Information – Updates warrant status from “Issued” to “Paid” on Internal System R.

8.2.17 Balance Warrant Summary to spreadsheet and 255 Reports 

8.2.18 Upload warrant information into Internal System Q
8.2.19 Close books from prior day’s business
8.3 Deposit Unpaid Warrants – Deposit unpaid warrants to financial institutions (STATUTORY)
8.3.1 Create Returns Report (OXRET) from Internal System AE

8.3.2 Manually enter return code for each warrant into Internal System AE

8.3.3 Create Image Cash Letter (ICL) file and transmit to financial institution (Frost)

8.3.4 Verify ICL total to Return Report

8.3.5 Enter Returns Total into spreadsheet

8.4 Fund Warrants and Electronic Payments - Place funds in bank accounts or wire money to financial institutions daily in payment of presented warrants and direct deposit payments (STATUTORY)
8.4.1 Fund Warrants – Receive, Process and Balance warrant information for daily settlement activity.   Make settlement payments.
8.4.1.1 Balance payment activity

8.4.1.2 Balance issue files

8.4.1.3 Make/transfer payment settlement
8.4.2 Fund Electronic Payments –Receive and Record settlement information for electronic payments from state agencies.

8.4.2.1 Process ACH Origination (Child Support/Unemployment)

8.4.2.2 Determine settlement details for electronic payments
8.5 Process  “Forged” Warrants  – Collect payments for forged warrants and breach of warranty from financial institutions (STATUTORY)
8.5.1 Receive request from state agency to send collection notice to bank on “Forged” Warrant (First Bank of Deposit and Charge Back Request Form/Affidavit of Forgery)
8.5.2 Update Internal System V with paid information for “forged” warrant
8.5.3 Send collection notice/letter with copy of forms (Completed Chargeback Request Form & Affidavit of Forgery) to Bank of First Deposit – (Mail)
8.5.3.1 Attach copy of warrant
8.5.3.2 Attach copy of affidavit form
8.5.4 Request follow-up register
8.5.5 Receive bank notification of payment status for warrant
8.5.5.1 Receive cashier’s check for forged warrant
8.5.5.1.1 Prepare deposit slip and attach cashier’s check

8.5.5.1.2 Send deposit to Chase bank by courier

8.5.5.1.3 Deposit cashier’s check

8.5.5.1.4 Update Internal System V of receipt and generate Warrant Reinstatement Report
· Send copy of report to Treasury Fund Accounting to notify them of receipt payment.
· Update warrant status to reinstated on Internal System S.
· Update Internal System AE with warrant reinstatement information 
· Update Internal System S
· Send reinstatement letter to state agency that warrant has been reinstated (interagency/US mail) 
8.5.5.2 Receive “Non-Payment” notification from bank to refuse payment of forged warrant
8.5.5.2.1 Receive refusal letter from bank (mail)
8.5.5.2.2 Update Internal System V with refusal to pay
8.6 Serve as State’s Warrant Record Keeper - Maintain historical records and provide warrant information as requested. (STATUTORY)
8.6.1 Store physical warrants in Texas State Library for 1 year.

8.6.2 Store images of paid warrant detail information (issued data/paid data) for 10 years (microfiche and microfilm - DVD’s to State Library)

8.6.3 Store “void” warrants information for 2 years after end of physical year (microfiche).

8.6.3.1 Void TWC warrants – 1 year from date of issuance

8.6.3.2 Void Higher Education warrants – 125 days (6 months) – from date of issuance

8.6.3.3 Void all other warrants – 2 years from end of current physical year

8.6.4 Provide state agencies with historical warrant information upon request (1,000 per month if not on Internal System AD (only retains 2 years) – 
8.7 Generate Reports.
8.7.1 Produce internal and external reports to satisfy state agencies’ needs and statutory requirements.  
8.7.2 Generate reports with historical warrant information using business intelligence software package (Business Objects) and data warehouse and provide CPA and state agencies with on-line access to view reports.

9 PERFORM AGENCY 311 ACCOUNTING FUNCTIONS – Prepare and distribute required 311 Annual Financial Report, Report to Budget and Internal Accounting, Perform Agency 311 Accounting Functions, Federal Fund Distribution, Banking/Accounting Services for TWC and establish credit interest rate.

	Criteria
	Summary

	Data Providers
	· Federal Agencies - 3

· State Agencies - 250

· Financial Institutions - 400



	Inputs
	· Spreadsheets
· Portfolio Information
· Collateral Information
· Endowment Statement from TTSTC
· Fund Accounting Detail
· Tax and Revenue Anticipation Note (TRAN) Documents
· Endowment Fund Statements  from TTSTC
· E-mail Requests for Corrective Actions
· Federal Reports
· County Reports
· Miscellaneous Reports
· Fund Accounting Detail
· Fund Accounting Balance Reports

· Interest Allocation Reports

· Interest Earnings Reports  from TTSTC

	Outputs
	· 311 Annual Financial Report (AFR)

· Updates to Internal System Q
· Updates to USAS

· Distribution of funds to Texas Counties

· Payment In Lieu of Tax Report (PILT)

· Letters to Counties

· Fund 936 and 937 Statements

· Determined Liquidity Needs

· Required Funds 

· Annual Credit Interest Rate

	Interfaces
	· USAS

· CPA’s Internal System Q


	Transaction Volume
	· Spreadsheets, Portfolio Information, Collateral Information, Endowment Statement (TTSTC), Fund Accounting Detail – 1 annually
· TRAN Documents, Endowment Fund Statements (TTSTC), E-mail Request for Corrective Actions - 10+ as needed

· Federal Reports, County Reports, Misc. Reports, Fund Accounting Detail – 12+ semi-annually

· Spreadsheets, Fund Accounting Balance Reports, Interest Allocation Reports, Interest Earnings Reports (TTSTC) -  1 annually

	Access/ Security
	· Network Access Security

	Number of Employees
	· 4

	Time Spent
	· 20+ hrs per day

	Systems/ Screens/ Tools
	· Internal System F

	Statutory Requirements
	· Tex. Gov't Code § 404.071

	Generate Reports using CPA’s Data Warehouse
	Produce internal and external reports to satisfy State Agencies’ needs and statutory requirements (Estimated – Small Number – between 1-100 reports) 




9.1 Prepare Agency 311 Reports – Prepare and distribute required 311 Annual Financial Report to Budget and Internal Accounting Division.
9.1.1 Gather cash and investment information – Receive, assemble and prepare accounting data related to cash and investments.

9.1.2 Prepare required exhibits and schedules – Update prior fiscal year’s financial information.

9.1.3 Provide report to Financial Reporting Section of CPA’s Fund Accounting Division  – Distribute Annual Financial Report (spreadsheet) electronically to Fund Accounting Division.

9.2 Perform Agency 311 Tobacco Fund Accounting Functions – Perform various accounting functions for Tobacco Funds..
9.2.1 Provide Tobacco Fund Accounting Services – Perform special accounting functions and services related to Tobacco Funds.

9.2.1.1 Receive fund distribution - Receive distribution from Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company (TTSTC) 
9.2.1.2 Prepare vouchers - Prepare and enter voucher information into USAS.

9.2.1.3 Update USAS information - Update net value of investments on USAS (monthly) 

9.3 Perform Federal Fund Distribution – Distribute federal re-imbursements to counties for timber usage.  (Federal Law)
9.3.1 Receive detail from counties on how prior funds were spent
9.3.2 Receive notification from Cash and Securities Management Section that funds have been received
9.3.3 Initiate and enter deposit vouchers into USAS
9.3.4 Receive distribution reports from federal agency
9.3.5 Initiate and enter payment voucher information into USAS 
9.3.6 Receive warrants and distribute them to counties with cover letter 
9.3.7 Receive report for ACH payments and send letter to counties
9.3.8 File reports
9.4 Provide Banking and Accounting Services for Texas Workforce Commission - Perform specific banking and accounting services for Texas Workforce Commission (since 1980’s).

9.4.1 Record daily fund activity – Receive and record activity in appropriated Funds 0936 and 0937

9.4.2 Prepare statements - Prepare daily and monthly statements and reports of fund activity for Funds 0936 and 0937
9.4.3 Provide reports - Perform  required federal reporting services (Federal Unemployment Laws)
9.4.4 Determine liquidity needs – Calculate daily fund settlement amount to pay unemployment disbursement needs (Cash Management Improvement Act - CMIA)

9.4.5 Establish funds availability - Calculate daily funds availability for fund transfer to federal government
9.5 Establish State’s Credit Interest Rate – Determine State’s annual credit interest rate for next year. (STATUTORY)

9.5.1 Determine rate - Calculate allocation rate for interest earnings 

9.5.2 Provide  rate – Provide next year’s credit interest rate to Revenue Accounting Division and publish on Window On State Government

9.6 Generate Reports. 
9.6.1 Treasury Operations will need to produce internal routine and customized reports for Process 9.  
9.6.2 Generate Annual Financial Report using business intelligence software package (Business Objects) and data warehouse and provide to Fund Accounting Division, CPA with on-line access to view reports.

10 PROVIDE TELLER SERVICES  -   Receive State Agency deposits, (cash, checks) and conduct various cash transactions (cash and currency in a centralized and secure environment (process) daily)

	Criteria
	Summary

	Data Providers
	· State agencies - 250

· Public - 100

	Inputs
	· Spreadsheet
· Agency Deposits
· Warrants
· Cash
· Checks

	Outputs
	· Cash

· Receipts

	Interfaces
	· None

	Transaction Volume
	· Spreadsheet – $200,000+  monthly

· Agency Deposits, Warrants, Cash, Checks – 100 daily

	Access/ Security
	· None

	Number of Employees
	· 4

	Time Spent
	· 16 hrs per day

	Systems/ Screens/ Tools
	· None

	Statutory Requirements
	· Tex. Gov't Code § 404.045, 404.054 - 404.060, 404.065, 404.066, 404.096

	Generate Reports using CPA’s Data Warehouse
	Produce internal and external reports to satisfy State Agencies’ needs and statutory requirements (Estimated – Small Number – between 1 -100  reports) 




10.1 Determine Cash Needed -   Determine and secure cash for daily use. 
10.1.1 Determine Cash Needed

10.1.2 Order Cash

10.1.3 Receive and Verify

10.1.4 Distribute Cash

10.1.5 Record Transactions
10.2 Provide Counter Services – Establish and maintain bank-teller services for State’s needs (STATUTORY)
10.2.1 Receive Deposits 

10.2.2 Cash Warrants  
10.2.3 Provide Change Orders

10.2.4 Make Cash Deposits

10.2.5 Perform End of Day Balancing
10.2.6 Record Transactions
10.3 Generate Reports
10.3.1 Treasury Operations will need to produce internal routine and customized reports for Process 10.  
10.3.2 Generate teller reports using business intelligence software package (Business Objects) and data warehouse. 
11 PROVIDE LOCKBOX SERVICES (iBox) – Receive, Process and Deposit Remittance mail on behalf of State Agencies and Universities

	Criteria
	Summary

	Data Providers
	· State agencies – 40+ (daily)

· Clients of state agencies – 100,000+ (monthly)

	Inputs
	· Incoming US Postal Mail

· Agency Delivered Mail

· Overnight Mail

· Checks

· Coupons

· Source Documents

· Payment Totals

· Data Entry Files

· Data Capture Files

	Outputs
	· Incoming US Postal Mail, Agency Delivered Mail, Overnight Mail - 8,000+  daily

· Checks, coupons and source documents - 5,000+ daily

· Payment totals - 55+ deposits daily

· Data Entry and Data Capture files – 55+ daily

	Interfaces
	· USAS

· State Agencies

	Transaction Volume
	· 2,000,0000+ per year

	Access/ Security

For this  process
	· CPA core network security

· Security to access Internal System AE

	Number of Employees
	· 9

	Time Spent
	· 72 hrs per day

	Systems/ Screens/ Tools
	· Internal System AE

· iBox

	Statutory Requirements
	· None

	Generate Reports using CPA’s Data Warehouse
	Produce internal and external reports to satisfy State Agencies’ needs and statutory requirements (Estimated – Medium Number – between 101 and 500 reports) 




11.1 Collect, Open and Stage Mail from Post Office – Collect, open and stage mail from various Post Office boxes twice daily (7a.m. & 11:00 a.m.)

11.1.1 Sort mail by lockbox (40-50)
11.1.2 Sort mail by type
11.1.2.1 Identify Wholesale
11.1.2.2 Identify Retail
11.1.2.3 Identify Auto Wholesale
11.2 Process Payments and Documents – Capture and Record payments and/or details remitted to state agencies received through Auto Wholesale, Wholesale, and Retail Accounts.
11.2.1 Process Wholesale Payments
11.2.1.1 Stage Wholesale Mail for extraction (Manual Extraction) – (Each lockbox has unique processing requirements)
11.2.1.2 Extract Wholesale Mail 
11.2.1.3 Identify problem checks and remove from processing 
11.2.1.4 Stamp documents with control number and write check amount on document 
11.2.1.5 Separate checks from documents 
11.2.1.6 Total checks from lockbox
11.2.1.7 Enter total dollars with FDOC (USAS) from checks
11.2.2 Process Auto-Wholesale Payments
11.2.2.1 Stage Auto-Wholesale Mail for extraction 
11.2.2.2 Extract Auto-Wholesale Mail 
11.2.2.3 Identify problem checks and remove from processing 
11.2.2.4 Stamp documents with control number and write check amount on document 
11.2.2.5 Separate checks from documents 
11.2.2.6 Total checks from lockbox
11.2.2.7 Enter data into Internal System F
11.2.2.7.1 Data requirements are unique by account (2-20 pieces of data)
11.2.2.7.2 Utilize zip code filler
11.2.2.7.3 Utilize character recognition/auto complete feature
11.2.2.7.4 Utilize license information (data file)
11.2.2.8 Enter total dollars with FDOC (USAS) from checks
11.2.2.9 Print FDOC (Creates entry for USAS daily upload)
11.2.2.10 Attach deposit slips to checks.
11.2.2.11 Receive “Balance Confirmation” from Balancing Area
11.2.2.12 Create data transaction file(s) based upon state agency requirements
11.2.2.13 Send data transaction file(s) to state agencies once daily
11.2.2.14 Complete Lockbox checklist 
11.2.3 Process Retail Payments
11.2.3.1 Stage Retail Lockbox 
11.2.3.2 Process Retail Lockbox – (Current as of December 2007)
11.2.3.2.1 Extract contents from envelopes
11.2.3.2.2 Send coupons and checks to Remittance Processing (NDP1150 - iBox)

11.2.3.2.3 Load state agency’s sort pattern

· Place coupons/checks in hopper

· Image documents

· Read, virtually encode and endorse checks (CAR – numeric amount in box on check)

· Process rejects

11.2.3.2.3..1 Review payments where amount on coupon scan-line does not match check amount

11.2.3.2.3..2 Separate coupons from checks

11.3 Deposit Payments – Prepare and Deposit Wholesale, Auto-wholesale and Retail payments to Treasury for state agencies and Record financial accounting transactions.
11.3.1 Deposit Wholesale Payments
11.3.1.1 Print FDOC (Creates entry for USAS)
11.3.1.2 Attach deposit slips to checks 
11.3.1.3 Make deposit
11.3.2 Deposit Auto-Wholesale Payments
11.3.2.1 Create “Virtual” FDOC for Auto-Wholesale Lockbox (iBox )

11.3.2.1.1 Updates Internal System W 

11.3.2.1.2 Creates USAS information

11.3.2.2 Receive “Balance Confirmation” from Balancing Area
11.3.2.3 Create data transaction file(s) based upon state agency requirements
11.3.2.4 Send data transaction file(s) to state agencies (daily)
11.3.3 Deposit Retail Lockbox Payments (December 2007)
11.3.3.1 Create “Virtual” FDOC for Retail Lockbox (iBox) 

11.3.3.1.1 Updates Internal System W
11.3.3.1.2 Creates USAS information

11.3.3.2 Produce detailed reports (Bundle Listing and Recap Report) – 

11.3.3.3 Upload data file(s) (Clipper) – (Multiple Times)

11.3.3.4 Create files and verify totals against Bundle Listing and Recap Report – (Daily)

11.3.3.5 Print reports

11.3.3.6 Create and print FDOC for each lockbox

11.3.3.7 Combine FDOC with checks and send to Check Processing

11.3.3.8 Send  “Verified Lockbox” files to state agencies
11.4 Generate Reports – Generate reports for Wholesale, Auto-wholesale and Retail Lockbox payments.
11.4.1 Treasury Operations will need to produce internal routine and customized reports for Process 11.  
11.4.2 Generate Auto-Wholesale, Wholesale and Retail Account reports using business intelligence software package (Business Objects) and data warehouse and provide state agencies with on-line access to view reports.

11.5 Distribute Source Documents and Reports to State Agencies – Distribute Source Documents and Reports to State Agencies for Lockbox Payments.
11.5.1 Prepare State Agency Lockbox daily processed materials for distribution
11.5.1.1 Collect lockbox materials, reports, problem checks, correspondence, etc 
11.5.1.2 Enclose lockbox materials (processed and non-processed documents) in black bag
11.5.1.3 Insert tie to seal and secure contents
11.5.1.4 Label bag
11.5.1.5 Prepare logout sheet for approved couriers to pick up
11.5.1.6 Complete lockbox checklist
11.5.2 Distribute Source documents and reports to state agencies

11.5.2.1 Provide approved courier with Agency lockbox daily processed documents
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